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Licence 

(Licence for Transmission of Electricity under the Electricity Act, 2003) 

RERC/Transmission Licence/15  Date:  1st November, 2017 

License is hereby granted for transmission of electricity to the person whose

name  and  address  is  given  below  with  powers  and  upon  terms  and  conditions 
specified hereunder: - 

1. Name of the Licensee:

M/s Hadoti Power Transmission Service Limited 

2. Address of the Licensee:

31 –A, 6th Floor, Mahima Triniti, 
Plot No. 5, Swej Farm, New Sanganer Road, 
Jaipur- 302019 (Rajasthan) 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE LICENCE 

1. Security

The Licensee shall deposit as security an amount of Rs.10.00 lacs (Rupees
Ten  Lacs) before  the  date  of  commencement  of  this l icence  towards
fulfillment of terms and conditions of this l icence and efficient discharge of
duties and obl igations imposed upon him by this l icence.

2. Area of Transmission

The Licensee is authorised to transmit electricity through the transmission
system specified in clause 3 below.

3. Details of Transmission Line

The Licensee is authorised to establish, operate and maintain the following
transmission line (s) and sub-station (s):
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S. No. Perticulars 
1 (I ) 220 kV GSS Ranpur, Kota. 

(II ) •  LILO of 220 kV S/C Kota-Badod line (03 kM) 
•  LILO of 220 kV S/C KTPS- Modak line (03 kM) 
•  LILO of 132 kV S/C Kota- Mandana Towan line (0.8 kM) 
•  LILO of 132 kV S/C Mahaveer Nagar Deoli Manjhi l ine (10 kM) 

(III ) Feeder bays for RVPN connection in addition to standard GSS lay-out shall 
be 4 Nos. on 220 kV, 4 Nos. on 132 kV side and 6 Nos. on 33 kV side. 

2 (I ) 132 kV GSS Peeplu, Distt. Tonk. 
(II ) 132  kV S/C Malpura –  Peeplu line (45  kM) associated with  132 kV GSS 

Peeplu. 
(III ) Feeder bays for RVPN connection in addition to standard GSS lay-out shall 

be 01 No. on 132 kV side and 6 Nos. on 33 kV side. 
3 (I ) 132 kV GSS Chitri, Distt. Dungarpur. 

(II ) LILO of 132 kV S/C Seemalwara – Sagwara line (3 kM) 
(III ) Feeder bays for RVPN connection in addition to standard GSS lay-out shall 

be 2 Nos. on 132 kV side and 6 Nos. on 33 kV side. 
4 (I ) 132 kV GSS Bambora, Distt. Udaipur. 

(II ) 132  kV  GSS  Salumbar#    S/C  line  (25  kM)  associated  with  132  kV  GSS 
Bambora. 
(# Line  length  of Salumbar  to  Bambora  is 33 KM  out of which 8 KM  long  220 KV  LILO  Salumbar is 
available on the way to Salumbar to Bambora which will be uti lized therefore cost of 25 KM, 132 kV S/C 
Line has been considered) 

(III ) Feeder bays for RVPN connection in addition to standard GSS lay-out shall 
be 1 No. on 132 kV side and 6 Nos. on 33 kV side. 

5 (I ) 132 kV GSS Khatoti Distt. Bharatpur. 

(II ) LILO of 132 kV Nadbai-Weir l ine (15 kM) associated with 132 kV GSS Khatoti, 
Distt. Bharatpur. 

(III ) Feeder bays for RVPN connection in addition to standard GSS lay-out shall 
be 2 Nos. on 132 kV side and 6 Nos. 33 kV side. 

 
4.  Compliance with Provisions of the Act 

 

The Licensee shall comply with the provisions of the Electricity Act, 2003, 
and rules and regulations made thereunder. 

 
 

5.  Terms of Licence 
 

(1)  The date of commencement of this l icence shall be 9th  November, 
2017. 
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(2)  The l icence  shall be in force for a period of  twenty five years from the 
date of its commencement unless the licence is revoked earlier. 

 
6.  General Conditions of Licence 

 

In addition to the said terms and conditions of this l icence, the general 
conditions of l icence specified by the Commission in the order dated 1st 

November, 2017 granting licence, shall apply to the Licence e and shall 
also be deemed to be the conditions of this l icence . 

 
7.  Revocation of Licence 

 

The licence shall be liable to revocation under Section 19 of the Electricity 
Act, 2003, for reasons mentioned therein and also for breach of any terms 
or conditions of this l icence or the conditions specified by the Commission 
under Section 16 of the Act. 

 

By orders of the Commission 
 
 
 
 

Secretary 
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No. RVPN/ SE(NPP&RA)/ XEN (NPP-1)/ D. 

M/s. Adani Energy Solutions Limited, 
Shanti Gram, Near Vaishno Devi Circle, 

S.G. Highway, Khodiyar, 
Ahmedabad-382421 

Sub: 
Ref: 

Dear Sir(s), 

1 

RAJASTHAN RAJYA VIDYUT PRASARAN NIGAM 

(An I50 9001:2008 Certified Company) 
(Corporate kdentity Number (CIN) No.U40109XJ20005GCO16485] 
OFFICE OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER (NPPERA) 

Regd. Office : Vidyut Bhawan, Jyoti Nagar, Jaipur 302005 
Phone. 91-141-2744290, E-mail: ce.npp@rvpn.co. in 

2 
3 

Regarding the additional transformer augmentation plan at various PPP GSS. 
(E-mail: info@adani.com) 

Your letter No. AESL/ RVPN/ PPP GSS/ 2024 dated 13.02.2024. 
This office raj kaj letter dated 21.09.2023. 
This office raj kaj letter dated 24.01.2024. 

Date: 29lo2|202y 

LIMITED 

On the subject cited above and letter under reference at sr. no. 1, vide which you have 
conveyed your concurrence to carry out augmentation work at PPP 8, 9 and 10 transmission system 

as approved by SCT in its meeting held on dated 26.05.2022 and further requested to convey 
regarding implementation of said augmentation work through RTM mode under Section-62 of 
Electricity Act-2003 and pursuant to this, you will approach Hon'tble RERC for the Issuance of new 
licenses for executing augmentation work as per the decision of SCT separately for three PPP 
projects 8 9 and 10 and for approval of Capital cost and for determination of tariff, corresponding 
to augmentation work. 

In this context, vide this office letter dated 21.09.2023 (under reference at sr. no. 2), it 
has already been intimated to RERC that "based on decision of SCT Meeting, it has been decided 
that the Capital Investment (CAPEX) as evaluated against various TSA's of TSP's mentioned for 

transformer augmentation work be recommended to Honlble RERC for further necessary due 
diligence for allowing incremental addition in existing levelized tariff against various TSA'S". 
Further it has already been clarified vide this office letter dated 24.01.2024 (under reference at sr. 
no. 3) that you may file a petition before RERC with necessary justification to allow required tariff. 

In view of above, you may take action towards implementation of augmentation work of 
the projects as mentioned in the letter dated 21.09.2023 through RTM mode °nder Section-62 of 
Electricity Act-2003 at the earliest as the matter is already much delayed. 

Rajkaj Ref 
5653565 

(Hari Mohan Gupta) 
Addl. Chief Engineer (NPP&RA) 

Copy to the Chief Engineer (PP&D) RVPN Jaipur for information and necessary action please. 

Signatuzeyalidaxa 
Engineer 

Digitally signed by Hár nohan Gupta 
Designation, upeig ending 
Date: 2024.02%36:21:58 IST 

Reason: Approved 
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Form -1 

[Clause-3] 

Form of Application for grant of Licence for transmission or distribution of electricity 

in the State of Rajasthan. 

Part-I 

BEFORE THE RAJASTHAN ELECTRICITY REGULATORY COMMISSION, JAIPUR 

Application No.___________ 

Case No.__________________ 

(To be filled by Commission’s office) 

IN THE MATTER OF: 

Grant of Licence for transmission/distribution of electricity under section 14 of 

Electricity Act, 2003 

to: - 

1. (Full Name) : Hadoti Power Transmission Service Limited 

2. (Full Address) : Adani Corporate House, Shantigram Near Vaishno Devi 

Circle, S.G. Highway, Khodiyar, Ahmedabad, Gujarat - 

382421 

The applicant hereby submits to the Commission the following particulars for the grant 

of a licence for transmission/distribution of electricity under section 14 of the 

Electricity Act, 2003 in the area of transmission/supply as indicated in this application: 

1. Particulars of existing licences, or exemption if any

Application is for Licence for augmentation of transformer at various substation

locations under Regulated Tariff Mechanism (RTM) route.

Annexure A-3
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a) The category of licence & licence number or particulars of exemption. 

Not Applicable 

 

b) Its Area of transmission or supply. 

Khatoti 

c) How long has the applicant been in the business of transmission / distribution 

of electricity? 

Adani Energy Solutions Limited 100 % holding company of the Applicant has 

more than 13 year’s experience in power transmission. It is to be noted that the 

SPV is Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) Company promoted especially to 

undertake and perform the obligation and exercise the rights of selected 

Transmission Service Provider. 

 

2. Principal business activity undertaken/proposed to be undertaken. 

Application is for Licence of additional scope of work “1X20/25 MVA, 132/33 kV 

Transformer along with 1 no. 132 kV Bay and 1 no. 33 kV Bay” under Regulated 

Tariff Mechanism(RTM) route. 

 

3. Details of ownership: 

a) Whether applicant is a Company, Firm, Cooperative Society, Individual, Local 

authority or Government department/establishment or of any other category. 

Hadoti Power Transmission Service Limited is a Company incorporated under 

the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

b) Whether it is a registered company, firm, society etc. 

Hadoti Power Transmission Service Limited is a Registered Company. 

 

c) If so, when and where registered with registration number and address of 

registered office. 

THE COMPANY IS REGISTERED WITH REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES, 

RAJASTHAN 

 

REGISTRATION NO :   U40106GJ2016PLC119637 
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REGISTERED ADDRESS:   Adani Corporate House, Shantigram  

      Near Vaishno Devi Circle, S.G. Highway,  

      Khodiyar, Ahmedabad, Gujrat - 382421 

 

d) Names and addresses of directors with shareholding / financial stake: 

 

Sr. 

No. 
Name Address, PAN of 
Directors 

Designation 
Date of 

Appointment 
DIN Shareholding 

1. 

Mr. Rajeev Kumar Jain  

324, Gayatri Nagar A, 
Maharani Farm, 
Durgapura, Jaipur – 
302019 
 
PAN: ABKPJ1294J 

Director 11/08/2017 06768290 Nil 

2. 

Mr. Nitinkumar 
Ranchhodbhai Patel 

25, Royal-2 Bunglows, 
Opp. Sidhdharth 
Residency, New Vavol, 
Gandhinagar - 382016 

PAN: AKSPP4319H 

Whole – time 

Director 
23/03/2023 

 
10045885 

 
Nil 

3. 

Mr. Atulkumar 
Jayantilal Sadaria 

E1-1004, The 
Meadows, Adani 
Shantigram Township, 
S.G. Highway, 
Ahmedabad, Gujarat – 
382421 
 
PAN: ATHPS4835M 

Director 16/01/2023 09753841 Nil 
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4. Names of principal shareholders/ partners/ members: 

 

 

5. Resume of the Organisation giving details of 

a) Management Capability 

It is to submit that the applicant is promoted by Adani Energy Solutions 

Limited. Adani Energy Solutions Limited (AESL) headquartered at Ahmedabad 

in Gujarat, is one of the largest private sector power transmission companies 

in India with a presence across all the regions of India. AESL owns and operates 

various High voltage AC transmission lines and substations of 132kV, 220kV, 

400kV, 765kV voltage level and also High Voltage DC transmission lines and 

Authorized Share Capital: 

1,20,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each amounting to Rs. 12,00,00,000/- 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up Share Capital: 

1,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each amounting to Rs. 10,00,00,000/- 

Members Shares Held % 

Adani Energy Solutions Limited (AESL) 99,99,994 99.99% 

Mr. Jay Ambani – (Nominee of AESL) 01 0.01% 

Mr. Gaurav Goyal– (Nominee of AESL) 01 0.00% 

Mr. Jatinkumar Jalundhwala – (Nominee of AESL) 01 0.00% 

Mr. Bhanu Pratap Singh Naruka – (Nominee of AESL) 01 0.00% 

Mr. Krutarth Thakkar -   (Nominee of AESL) 01 0.00% 

Mr. Pritesh Shah – (Nominee of AESL) 01 0.00% 

TOTAL 1,00,00,000 100% 
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substations of +/- 500kV voltage level. Today, AESL has portfolio of more than 

19,700 ckt km of transmission lines and around 46,000 MVA of power 

transformation capacity.  

b) Financial Strength 

As mentioned above that the applicant is promoted by Adani Energy Solutions 

Limited who is majority shareholder of the applicant and has strong financial 

position. The applicant being 100 % subsidiary of Adani Energy Solutions 

Limited have full financial support from its promoters.  

c) Ability to perform functions of transmission/ distribution of electricity in a 

sustainable manner. 

It is to submit that the applicant is promoted by Adani Energy Solutions 
Limited. Adani Energy Solutions Limited (AESL) headquartered at Ahmedabad 
in Gujarat, is one of the largest private sector power transmission companies 
in India with a presence across all the regions of India. AESL owns and operates 
various High voltage AC transmission lines and substations of 132kV, 220kV, 
400kV, 765kV voltage level and also High Voltage DC transmission lines and 
substations of +/- 500kV voltage level. Today, AESL has portfolio of more than 
19,700 ckt km of transmission lines and around 46,000 MVA of power 
transformation capacity.  

6. Details of licence applied for 

a) Type of licence (Transmission/ Distribution) applied for. 

Applied for Separate Transmission License for Hadoti Power Transmission 

Service Limited as developer for augmentation of transformer at various 

substation locations under Regulated Tariff Mechanism (RTM) route at Khatoti 

Substation. 

 

b) Proposed area of transmission or supply (give names of districts, tehsils, 

panchayat samitis or towns, villages. If a smaller area is proposed, identify it by 

its boundaries on east, west, north and south and demarcate it on the map) 

The above details, tehsils and villages enclosed as Annexure B-2 

 

c) If transmission licence is sought for any specific transmission line, indicate such 

line and substations to be used. 
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This transmission licence is sought for additional scope of work “1X20/25 MVA, 

132/33 kV Transformer along with 1 no. 132 kV Bay and 1 no. 33 kV Bay” under 

Regulated Tariff Mechanism(RTM) route at Khatoti Substation. 

 

7. Proposed date of commencement of licence.   

From the date of order of Hon’ble Commission for grant of licence 

 

8. Particulars of the existing distribution system proposed to be used and maintained 

for the purpose of supplying electricity (For distribution licence only)  

NOT APPLICABLE 

 

a) Length of electric lines in circuit kms. (Voltage wise)   

NOT APPLICABLE 

b) Number of substations and their transformation capacity in MVA (voltage wise).  

NOT APPLICABLE 

 

9. Particulars of the existing transmission system proposed to be operated (for 

transmission licensee only). 

a) Particulars of EHT lines in circuit kms. (Voltage wise) 

b) Particulars of HT lines in circuit kms. (Voltage wise) 

c) Particulars of Substations and their transformation capacity in MVA. (Voltage 

wise) 

Details along with transmission license issued by the Hon’ble Commission is 

provided as an Annexure - A1. 

 

10. Scheme of transmission lines/ substations or distribution system proposed to be 

established in next five years (Describe or attach separately) 

Hadoti Power Transmission Service Limited, applicant for Transmission License 

for additional scope of work “1X20/25 MVA, 132/33 kV Transformer along with 1 

no. 132 kV Bay and 1 no. 33 kV Bay” under Regulated Tariff Mechanism(RTM) 

route at Khatoti Substation. 

 

11. Particulars of demand/supply (for distribution licensee) 
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a) Expected demand in area of supply 

b) Sources of obtaining power 

(i) Own generation 

(ii) Power to be purchased 

c) Sources and quantity of power proposed to be purchased from various sources 

NOT APPLICABLE 

 

12. If licence for transmission or distribution of electricity has been granted to any 

other person in the proposed area of transmission or supply, give full name and 

address of such person. 

Not Applicable: Application is being applied for Separate transmission license 

for development of additional scope of work “1X20/25 MVA, 132/33 kV 

Transformer along with 1 no. 132 kV Bay and 1 no. 33 kV Bay” under Regulated 

Tariff Mechanism (RTM) route at Khatoti Substation. 

 

13. Any other information applicant may like to furnish. 

 

 

 

 

 

(Signature of the applicant) 
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 PART-III 

List of documents to accompany licence applications 

1. Information relating to existing licences  

Copy of existing licence/exemption if any, and map of the area of transmission or supply 

Copy of existing license issued by the Hon’ble Commission is provided as an Annexure 

A1. 

 

2. Documents relating to status of the applicant  

A copy of company’s Memorandum/Articles of Association / Partnership Deed/ 

Constitution of Society etc. and copies of certificate of registration of company/society 

and certificate of commencement of business. (Annexure B-3) 

3. Data relating to management, financial and technical capability 

A licensee must have sufficient managerial, financial and technical capability to function 

as a transmission or distribution licensee on a sustainable basis. Documents 

demonstrating these capabilities shall include: 

(a) Managerial capability (Annexure C-1) 

(i) Senior management’s curriculum vitae. 

(ii) Cadre strength for different categories, technical and non-technical. 

(b) Financial capability (Annexure C-2) 

(i) Bank references regarding applicant’s solvency.  

(ii) Most recent balance sheet. 

(iii) Audited accounts of the applicant and its holding company, subsidiary 

or affiliated company for each of the three most recent financial years. 

(iv) Any accompanying notes and certifications on the above statements 

from a reputed chartered accountant. 

(c) Technical capability (Annexure C-3) 

             Experience in System Operation, Construction maintenance of transmission 

/distribution system and System Safety.    

                                                                                                                                         

4. Map of the area of supply /transmission (Annexure B-1) 
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Detailed map, showing the area of supply/transmission as mentioned in the regulation. 

  

5. Data relating to the applicant’s future business  

(i) Five year Business Plan for transmission or distribution of electricity for which 

the application is being made and funding arrangements for meeting its 

obligations under proposed licence for maintenance, operation, improvement 

and expansion for future load growth. (Annexure C-4) 

(ii) Five year annual forecasts of costs, sales, revenues and project financing stating 

the assumptions underlying the figures provided. (Annexure C-5) 

6. Relevant resolution of Company/Society/local authority. (Annexure B-5) 

 

7. Letter of authority of the Board of Directors in favour of person applying and signing 

the application (Annexure B-5) 

 

8. Copies of agreements for purchase of power, if executed (for distribution licence only) 

(Not Applicable) 
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Annexure B-2 

  

SSPPVV:: HHAADDOOTTII  PPOOWWEERR TTRRAANNSSMMIISSSSIIOONN SSEERRVVIICCEE LLIIMMIITTEEDD [[PPPPPP--88]] 
 

TTRRAANNSSMMIISSSSIIOONN SSCCHHEEMMEE:: 1X20/25 MVA, 132/33 kV Transformer along with 1 no. 132 kV Bay and 1 no. 
33 kV Bay at Hadoti Power Transmission Service Limited (PPP-8) 

 
1 A) 1X20/25 MVA, 132/33 kV Transformer along with 1 no. 132 kV Bay and 1 no. 
33 kV Bay 

 
State: Rajasthan 

Name Of Village Tehsil District 

Khatoti Nadbai Bharatpur 
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42 Powers
towards
share

to Board
forfeiture of

43 Arrears to be paid
notwithstanding
forfeiture

44 Title of purchaser
and allottee of
forfeited shares

45 Application of
Forfeiture

46 Power to Increase
the Share Capital

47 In Case of Conversion
of Shares into Stocks

(i) A forfeited share may be sold or otherwise disposed of on
such terms and in such manner as the Board thinks fit.

(ii) At any time before a sale or disposal as aforesaid, the Board
may cancel the forfeiture on such terms as it thinks fit.

(i) A person whose shares have been forfeited shall cease to be
a member in respect of the forfeited shares, but shall,
notwithstanding the forfeiture, remain liable to pay to the
Company all monies which, at the date of forfeiture, were
presently payable by him to the Company in respect of the
shares.
The liability of such person shall cease if and when the
Company shall have received payment in full of all such
monies in respect of the shares.

(ii)

(i) A duly verified declaration in writing that the declarant is a.
director, the manager or the secretary, of the Company, and
that a share in the Company has been duly forfeited on a date
stated in the declaration, shall be conclusive evidence of the
facts therein stated as against all persons claiming to be
entitled to the share;

(11)' . Tfie Company may receive tFieconsloeraliol1,lTany, grvenTcir
the share on any sale or disposal thereof and may execute a
transfer of the share in favour of the person to whom the
stTare-is" -softtor disposed of;

(iii) The fransteree shall thereupon be registered as the holder of
the share; and

(iv) The transferee shall not be bound to see to the appiication of
the purchase money, if any, nor shall his title to the share be
affected by any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings in
reference to the forfeiture, sale or disposal of the share.

The provisions of these regulations as to forfeiture shall apply in the
_~case of non~payment of an~ sum which, by. the terms of issue_of a.

iR;;II:8, be~omei piiI¥iilble ilt iii fixed time, 'Alilelber OR iilccounl ~tAe. '
nominaL~a1ue..,Qtthe. share. CLby wa)'_m.pr.em1u.Il1","'lSif the same had
been paYli!bl~byvirtu~of a call,dyly made-andnotifi,ed

ALTERATION OF CAPITAL

The Company may, from time to time, by ordinary resolution increase
the share capital by such sum, to be divided into shares of such amount,
as may be specified in the resolution.
Subject to the provisions of section 61, the Company may, by ordinary
resolution,-
(a) consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital into shares of

larger amount than its existing shares;
(b) convert all or any of its fully paid-up shares into stock, and reconvert

that stock into fully paid-up shares of any denomination;
(c) sub-divide its existing shares or any of them into shares of smaller

amount than is fixed by the memorandum;
(d) cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution,

have not been taken or agreed to be taken by any person.

Where shares are converted into stock,-
(a) the holders of stock may transfer the same or any part thereof in the

same manner as, and subject to the same regulations under which,
the shares from which the stock arose might before the conversion
have been transferred, or as near thereto as circumstances admit:

8
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Provided that the Board may, from time to time, fix 111eminimum
amount of stock transferable, so, however, that such minimum shall
not exceed the nominal amount of the shares from wh :h the stock
arose.

(b) The holders of stock shall, according to the amount of S or k held by
them, have the same rights, privileges and advantaqen a s regards
dividends, voting at meetings of the Company, and othe - rr atters, as
if they held the shares from which the stock arose; _ut no such
privilege or advantage (except participation in the di',id,mds and
profits of the Company and in the assets on winding .P: shall be
conferred by an amount of stock which would not, i' e I(isting in
shares, have conferred that privilege or advantage.

(c) Such of the regulations of the Company as are applicabl. t) paid-up
shares shall apply to stock and the words "share" and "s ra reholder"
in those regulations shall include "stock" and "soc k-holder'
respectively _

48 Provision for reduction The Company may, by special resolution, reduce in any r .anner and
of Capital with, and subject to, any incident authorized and consent ecuired by

law,-
-....-- ..-~--~-.~ .•----~---.--..---.•-.-~.-••,-.--....-.~,•.~ ~_._._'"•.~,__ (al its share capital' __ .~. . . ... ~_~.~_•..__
- ) (b) any capital redemption reserve account; or

(c) any share premium account.

CAPIT.At.rzATIONOF'PRoms
• -J

49 Capitalization of
Reserves

(i) The Company in general meeting may,
recommendation of the Board, resolve-

IP'ln the

,
i

(a) That it is desirable to capitalize any part of the amc.rr: for the
time being standing to the credit of any of the Compan ,'~;reserve
accounts, or to the credit of the profit and loss a :c, nmt, or
otherwise available for distribution; and

-----------------,,----.---...(.bL That such SIIFU he accordingly set tree for dlstnbu. OJ: '---.in....the_
-----------.------------ 1118.Iiler speCified iii claUSe<ii) allioligst tire members-. iIh :J-wut:Jftt'- -

-,Aa~ DeeR emitledthereto, if ~-by way of di\ dHndcand
in th"samepr-oportions.

~}­

-T
(ii) The sum aforesaid shall not be paid in cash but shall t :l .spplied,

subject to the provision contained in clause (iii), either in or
towards-

)

(A) Paying up any amounts for the time being unpaid on a I}' shares
held by such members respectively;

(B) Paying up in full, unissued shares of the Company to t e allotted
and distributed, credited as fully paid-up, to and amo Ig!it such
members in the proportions aforesaid;

(C) Partly in the way specified in sub-clause (A) and partly in that
specified in sub-clause (B);

(D) A securities premium account and a capital redemptio I I' sserve
account may, for the purposes of this regulation, be app eo:'in the
paying up of unissued shares to be issued to rnembs 's of the
Company as fully paid bonus shares;

(E) The Board shall give effect to the resolution passe I )y the
Company in pursuance of this regulation.

50 When Resolution (i) Whenever such a resolution as aforesaid shall have been ps ss.ed,
passed by Board and its the Board shall-
Powers

(a) make all appropriations and applications of the undividec profits
resolved to be capitalized thereby, and all allotments anc is sues

)
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of fully paid shares if any; and
(b) generally do all acts and things required to give effect thereto.

(ii) The Board shall have power-

(a) to make such provisions, by the issue of fractional certificates or
by payment in cash or otherwise as it thinks fit, for the case of
shares becoming distributable in fractions; and

(b) to authorize any person to enter, on behalf of all the members
entitled thereto, into an agreement with the Company providing
for the allotment to them respectively, credited as fully paid-up, of
any further shares to which they may be entitled upon such
capitalization, or as the case may require, for the payment by the
Company on their behalf, by the application thereto of their
respective proportions of profits resolved to be capitalized, of the
amount or any part of the amounts remaining unpaid on their
existing shares;

(iii) Any agreement made under such authority shall be effective and
binding on such members.

BUY-BACK OF SHARES

" '5'f ''Btfy:oacKofsFiares ., n' Notwithstanding anYthing containecriii1ffese' ai'bcTes'151lfsufSJecno'tffe
provisions of s-ections68 to 70 and any other applicable provision of the
Act or any other law for the time b~.ing in force, the Company may
I*'reAseeite 8\f"iA e~liIre8er e&neF speeif~ sec-urfties,

GENERAL MEETINGS

52 Extra Ordinary
General Meeting

All general meetings other than annual general meeting shall be called
extraordinary general meeting.

53 Calling of an EGM (i) The Board may, whenever it thinks fit, call an extraordinary general
meeting

If. at aby tiiiie drreCtors capaoleJlfl@m:rrWffiLafesrjffrae:non: ... __ .
number to. form a gu01J.l1'!lE!~Dot 'Y!tI}[lJnru<t. ~!:lY,di~~C:!9~_2.r:..c:!ny
~() ~f!:11.:I~",~t~,J~ompany Olay c:a.1I ~n ~~raor~i!1ary 9_eneral
meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
such ameeting ma}i becalled by the Board.

PROCEEDINGS OF THE GENERAL MEETINGS

54 Quorum to be No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a
present when business quorum of members is present at the time when the meeting proceeds
commenced to business.

Save as otherwise provided herein, the quorum for the general meetings
shall be as provided in section 103.

55 Chairperson of General The Chairperson, if any, of the Board shall preside as Chairperson at
Meetings every general meeting of the company.

If there is no such Chairperson, or if he is not present within fifteen
minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting, or is unwilling
to act as Chairperson of the meeting, the directors present shall elect
one of their members to be Chairperson of the meeting.

If at any meeting no director is willing to act as Chairperson or if no
director is present within fifteen minutes after the time appointed for
holding the meeting, the members present shall choose one of their
members to be Chairperson of the meeting.
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56 Power to adjourn
General Meeting

57 Ruies for
Meeting

ADJOURNMENT OF THE MEETING

The Chairperson may, with the consent of any meeting al which a
quorum is present, and shall, if so directed by the meeting adjourn the
meeting from time to time and from place to place.

Adjourned (i) No business shall be transacted at any adjourned meetir I other than
the business left unfinished at the meeting from 'I,hich the
adjournment took place.

(ii) When a meeting is adjourned for thirty days or more, r )ti ce of the
adjourned meeting shall be given as in the case of a' 1 original
meeting.

(iii) Save as aforesaid, and as provided in section 103 of the A,:t, it shall
not be necessary to give any notice of an adjournmei t )r of the
business to be transacted at an adjourned meeting.

-)
58 How questions to be

decided at meetings

VOTING RIGHTS

Subject to any rights or restrictions for the time being attar 1E! d to any
class or classes of shares,-
-_~L~.L~Q_[!t!OW of ba.nd~L~~EZ!Y",'1LE1m2.~.LQ[~~er1tJl!J2£!rsQ!',§!191LJt9'i~

one vote; and
(b) On a poll, the voting rights of members shall be in p )J: ortion to

his share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Cor IP,my.

59 Electronic Vote A member may exercise his vote at a meeting by electroni nleans in
accordance with section '108 and shall vote only once.

60 In case of Joint Holders In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tend ~r::a vote,
whether in person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exch .i-:n of the
votes of the other joint holders.

... -'. . .--- -_. -- -. F;:orthis purpose, seniority ,shall.be determin~c;l~ th~Qrder ir ~I tliclLttle
•..... - ....•.• 'h" , -·~-~--,~ame8staRe-i,. tRe Fegi!HeFo#meR'leeFs,· --~ .__• __... h •• _.'_,, __ ._

61 Disqu;alificatioo
member to vote

62 Business may proceed
Notwithstanding

r: demand for poll

63 No member entitled
to vote etc while

) call due to Company

64 Objection raised in case
of Qualification of Voter

i

'-;"
J

of A member of unsound.mind,. or in respect of whom an.orde! aus.been
mi:lde by 1:lr1Y.covrt hayingjurisdiction in lunacy, may vote, wt ~t:'ier on a
show of hands or on a poll, by his committee or other lega, gl iardian,
and any such committee or guardian may, on a poll, vote by p! )):(.

Any business other than that upon which a poll has been Ie' nanded
may be proceeded with, pending the taking of the poll.

No member shall be entitled to vote at any general meeting mless all
calls or other sums presently payable by him in respect of she 'e ; in the
company have been paid.

(i) No objection shall be raised to the qualification of any voter e:,cept at
the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the vote obje :11:d to is
given or tendered, and every vote not disallowed at sucl meetinq
shall be valid for all purposes.

(ii) Any such objection made in due time shall be referre d to the
Chairperson of the meeting, whose decision shall be in 31 and
conclusive.
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65 Procedure for
appointment of Proxy

66 Form of Proxy

67 When vote by proxy
valid, though
authority revoked

PROXY

The instrument appointing a proxy and the power-of-attorney or other
authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarized copy of that
power or authority, shall be deposited at the registered office of the
Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting
or adjourned meeting at which the person named in the instrument
proposes to vote, or, in the case of a poll, not less than 24 hours before
the time appointed for the taking of the poll; and in default the instrument
of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

An instrument appointing a proxy shall be in the form as prescribed in
the rules made under section 105.

A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of proxy
shall be valid, notwithstanding the previous death or insanity of the
principal or the revocation of the prexy or of the authority under which
the proxy was executed, or the transfer of the shares in respect of which
the proxy is given.

Provided that no intimation in writing of such death, insanity, revocation
or transfer shall have been received by the Company at its office before
the commencem~nt. of the meet!!!.a...~r adjou~,!!~d.!:I'leeting.~.~i£.h~th!l
proxy IS used.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
---- -, - - - .

68 Management of Affairs Subject to the provisions of the Act, the business of the Company shall
be managed by a Board of Directors.

69 Number of Directors

70 Appointment of
Directors on the
Board of Directors

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 or any
amendment or re-enactment thereof, the number of Directors of the
Company shall not be less than 3 (three) and not more than 15 (fifteen)
including independent directors. The Directors shall not be required to
hold qualification shares and their remuneration, if any, shall be
determined b~ CMD, RVPN. The First Directors of the Company are;. __

.~ ..Mr..liajeru;IraErasacLaar:waL
Oil. Mr..ShJiniWS$Vijay
{iH)Jv1r.Rajendra Kumar A.9.al'\\f~1

(a) Subject to the provisions of the Act, the CMD, RVPN shall have the
right to nominate and appoint all the Directors of the Board of the
Company and shall have also the right to remove the Director(s)
from office at any time at its absolute discretion and appoint
another/others in his/their place (s) and also fill any vacancy which
may occur as a result of such Directors(s) ceasing to hold office for
any reason whatsoever

(b) Subject to the provisions of the Act, the CMD, RVPN shall have the
right to nominate and appoint one or more of the Directors to the
office of the Chairperson of the Board of Directors or Managing
Director or Whole time Director of the Company for such term and
on such remuneration and/or allowance as it may think fit subject to
the provisions of the Act and at any time remove him/them from
office and appoint another/others in his/their place(s).

(c) The Directors appointed or nominated by the CMD, RVPN shall hold
office until removed by him or until their resignation, retirement, and
death or otherwise.
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71 Additional Director

)
72 Nominee Directors

Subject to the provisions of the Companies act 2013 , the Board may,
appoint one or more persons as additional director wh!:h shall not
exceed the maximum number fixed by these articles. T "e additional
directors so appointed shall hold office upto the date 01 the next
Annual General Meeting and shall be eligible for re 8f: pointment
by the Company at that meeting.

Subject to provisions of the Act, or any amendment or I s-unactment
thereof where any financial institutions or Banks lend to the ~t: mpany or
give guarantees in connection with the grant of a loan to or 1€! supply of
machinery or other equipment for the company, such Fls/ Banks shall
be entitled to nominate a Director or Directors of the conpany, who
shall be called as Nominee Director of such institution/ bar k, if that be
agreed to as a condition of the grant of loan or giving of sue £1uarantee.
The Director so appointed would have the same powers ar d Drivileges
as other Directors of the Company.

73 Appointment of Subject to provisions of the Companies Act, or any arnenc I'llmt or re-
Independent Directors enactment thereof the Company shall have power to a pi lint such

number of Independent Directors as it may deem fit and in ac cordance
with the applicable laws, for a term specified in the order apr )i' Iting him.
An Independent Director may be appointed to hold office for I rraximum

... ~" term of !J1;l to fi~~ cOpsecutiye years QDJbe Board ,gf...1he...~ llllao¥ aDd
shall be eligible for re-appointment. No Independent Directc . :! hall hold
office for more than two consecutive terms.

74 Rel"t'lUneratlorl01
Directors (fJ TIl'! reffiUtietafioiiofffie direCtors shalT, iii so far as it c in .ists 6f a

monthly payment, be deemed to accrue frOO1 day-to-da '.

(ii) In addition to the remuneration payable to them in Pl "SIISnCeof
the Act, the directors may be paid all travelling, hote a id other
expenses properly incurred by them-

(a) In attending and returning from meetings of the I: oard of
Directors or any committee thereof or general meet n!; s of the
company; or

.......- _.- __ -.- ~ - - --.-.-.~- ..l.!ll. In connection With the .business oftha Company

75 Electronic
PartiCipation

·Ibe.~.may PCl¥··aU.'~f>8Rses.incuFfeGin gettiA!tUf) aM e,!listefing
the company.

Subject to applicable law, Directors may participate and vot ii' Board
meetings by video or telephone conferencing or any other rn sans of
communication, in the manner permitted under applicable lav and shall
be counted for the purpose of quorum; provided that the plac ! ,; t which
the Chairperson sits shall be considered the place of the Boan n' eeting.

r<- 76 r Signing of Books for Every director present at any meeting of the Board or of a 0' nmittee
Record thereof shall sign his name in a book to be kept for that purpos ~.

77 Directors may act
notwithstanding
vacancy

78 When office of
Director deemed
to be vacated

J

The continuing Directors or Director may act notwithstar ji'lg any
vacancy in the Board but, so that, if their number falls l.elow the
minimum above fixed, the Directors or Director shall not eXCE)1 for the
purpose of filling vacancies or summoning a General Meetir ~, act so
long as the number is below the minimum.

(a) Subject to the provisions of Companies Act, 201: nr any
amendment or re-enactment thereof the office of Dire ;Ic:r shall
become vacant if :

i) He incurs any of the disqualifications specified I , • ection
164; or
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79 Proceedings of.. ..... __.
Cir:eaors .•--.-~ -- •

80 Decision of
Questions

81 In case of shortfall
of quorum while
proceeding Board
Meeting

82 Chairperson of
the Meetings

ii) He absents himself from all the meetings of the Board of
Directors held during a period of twelve months with or
without seeking leave of absence of the Board; or

iii) He acts in contravention of the provisions of section 184
relating to entering into contracts or arrangements in
which he is directly or indirectly interested; or

Iv) He fails to disclose his interest in any contract or
arrangement in which he is directly or indirectly
interested, in contravention of the provisions of section
184; or

v) He becomes disqualified by an order of a court or the
Tribunal.

vi) He is convicted by a court of any offence, whether
involving moral turpitude or otherwise and sentenced in
respect thereof to imprisonment for not less than six
months; or

vii) He is removed in pursuance of the provisions of this Act;
or

viii) He, having been appointed a director by virtue of his
holding any office or other employment in the holding,
subsidlsf Y llr associate eompal '1,-ceases to hotd, such
office or other employment in that Company; or

(b) Subject to the provisions of the Act a Director may resign his
office at any time by notice in writing addressed to the Company
or to the Board of Directors.

PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS

i) The Board of Directors may meet for the conduct of busin_~~~,
adjoum iilAd oU:l.r:l"is. r:egulat. "Ii R:l8.tiRg&, as it tRiRks fit·· _.

ii) A. director may,.IllfLttlafJ.lanag,er or 3.eCfetaryon the requisition
of a director shall, ~t~y time, summon a m~eting of the Board.

Save as otherwise expressly provided in the Act, questions arising at
any meeting of the Board shall be decided by a majority of votes.

In case of an equality of votes, the Chairperson of the Board, if any,
shall have a second or casting vote.

The continuing directors may act notwithstanding any vacancy in the
Board; but, if and so long as their number is reduced below the quorum
fixed by the Act for a meeting of the Board, the continuing directors or
director may act for the purpose of increasing the number of directors to
that fixed for the quorum, or of summoning a general meeting of the
Company, but for no other purpose.

(i) The Board may elect a Chairperson of its meetings and
determine the period for which he is to hold office.

(ii) If no such Chairperson is elected, or if at any meeting the
Chairperson is not present within five minutes after the time
appointed for holding the meeting, the directors present may
choose one of their member to be Chairperson of the
meeting.

14

39

 



)

.>
_) - ~

'"
i')

)

_}

)

--+----------- -

83 Discretion to form a
Committee

84 Chairperson of the
Committee Meetings

85 Decision of
Questions - in case of
Committee Meetings

"86 -;A.Ctsof Boailor'-
Committee valid
notwithstanding
tte1'ectlve
appointment etc.

87 Resolution by
circulation

88 General power of
the Board

89 Certain powers to be
, exercised by

Directors only at a
meeting

(i) The Board may, subject to the provisions of the ,!.ct, delegate
any of its powers to committees consisting of sue r iernber or
members of its body as it thinks fit.

(ii) Any committee so formed shall, in the exercise 01 UIe powers
so delegated, conform to any regulations til at ma~ b~!imposed
on it by the Board.

(i) A committee may elect a Chairperson of its rneetinps.

(ii) If no such Chairperson is elected, or if at any InE eting the
Chairperson is not present within five minutes ar er the time
appointed for holding the meeting, the members i resent may
choose one of their members to be Chairperson of I Ie meeting.

(i) A committee may meet and adjourn as it thinks fit.

(ii) Questions arising at any meeting of a committee shall be dl.termined
by a majority of votes of the members present, and in c, se of an
equality of votes, the Chairperson shall have a secon« c r casting
vote.

-.-.".---~--~=.'~-~.-----~=-~,~~.....~~.-..~.....-".._._._---.--~~..
acts done in any meeting of the Board or of a cornmitteu t iereof or

by any person acting as a director, shall, notwithstanding th t i~may be
afterwards oiscovered that there WaS some defect in the ap~llh ument of
a"ny'one ormofeoTsUCff arrecTors-or of any person acli,,!j"a: .aforesaid,
or that they or any of them were disqualified, be as valid as if e~ery such
director or such person had been duly appointed and was qu.Ilii ed to be
a director.

Save as otherwise expressly provided in the Act, a resolutio i'l writing,
signed by all the members of the Board or of a committee Ihereof, for
the time being entitled to receive notice of a meeting of thl! Isoard or
committee, shall be valid and effective as if it had been p lSI .ed at a
meeting of the Bpard pr committee, dlllV convened and held .• _.__ .. _.~-------------~--------- _._._--------------

--P-OWaRS-~.:rWi BOARD ~ OJRECTORS

the S'oard shan h~ve--fullpower to' direct the activities ofthe Company.
The -daily management' and operation of -the Compan~ ~Ihall be
delegated to the CEO andlor Managing Director and )ti ier key
managerial personnel in accordance with the approved Bus: 1ess Plan
and in compliance with terms of Agreement.

The Board of Directors of the Company shall exercise th« 11>lIowing
powers on behalf of the Company, and it shall do so, only b} means of
resolutions passed at meeting of the Board of Di et:tors _

a) to make calls on shareholders in respect of money lin laid on
their shares;

b) to authorize buy-back of securities under section 68;
c) to issue securities, including debentures, whether in Ir outside

India;
d) to borrow monies;
e) to invest the funds of the company;
f) to grant loans or give guarantee or provide security in e!;pect of

loans.
g) to approve financial statement and the Board's report
h) to diversify the business of the company
i) to approve amalgamation, merger or reconstruction
j) to take over a company or acquire a controllinq or sub stantial

stake in another company
k) any other matter which may be prescribed:
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Provided that the Board of Directors may, by a resolution passed at a
meeting, delegate to any Committee of Directors, the Managing
Director, the Manager or any other principal officer of the Company
or in the case of a branch office of the Company, a principal officer of
the branch office the powers specified in clauses (d), (e) and (f) as it
may specify c

90 Specific powers
given to Directors

Without prejudice to the general powers conferred by the last preceding
Article and the other powers conferred by these presents it is hereby
expressly declared that the Board shall have the following powers, that
is to say, power;

a) To pay the costs, charges and expenses preliminary and
incidental to the promotion, formation, establishment and
registration of the Company

b) To purchase or otherwise acquire for the Company, any property,
rights or privileges which the Company is authorized to acquire at
such price and generally on such terms and conditions, as they
think fit and in any such purchase or other acquisition to accept
such title as the Directors may believe or may be advised to be
necessarily satisfactory

. "~'''"'-'''''''''' ...c) To insure and Keep insured agalnsf loss ordamage '6Tfireor
otherwise for such period and to such extent as they may think
proper an ofC!ny part of th~ buildings, machin~l)', gC)ods,stores,

. plodoc-e ·am:t-~"iol1able p"operty ot'ttTe'" COltlPSflY either
se.paratelyor jointly; also to Jnsure all QI" any portion of the goods,
produce, machinery and other articles imported or exported by
the Company and to sell, assign, surrender or discontinue any
policies of assurance effected in pursuance of this power

.d) To open accounts with any bank or bankers or with any
company, firm or individual and to pay moneys into and draw
moneys from any such account from time to time as the Directors

•. c. , _ .. ~ •••••• _._ ••~_maythi~ fit ._._ .•_."•. .,~_...._ .._ ....." .•.....

el ....AlJbeiLdi$~JQ"J;l.aV ..fOL.aIl¥JlCSlPedy..."rigbts ,Cl"~pri\(ileges
iQql,!iJ'.ed~y._QLii.fIlt~'lem;t~e.d toJhe .companY,.ei*her wholly
o~J)~r:tl~11yif')c~~!'1()~.in..~.t!~.~e!.~Ll>.C)'!~~J~e!~~n!!'!rl:ls.,m()rtg~ges. or
other securities of the Company and any such shares may be
issued either as fuJly paid up or with such amounts credited as
fully paid up thereon as may be agreed upon, and any such
bonds, debentures, mortgages or other securities may be either
specifically charged upon all or any part of the property of the
Company and its uncalled capital or not so charged

f) To secure the fulfillment of any contracts or agreements entered
into by the Company by mortgage or charge of all or any of the
properties of the Company and its uncalled capital for the time
being or in such other manner as they may think fit

g) To appoint and at their discretion, remove or suspend, such
committee or committees of experts, technicians or advisers,
such managers, secretaries, officers, clerks, agents and servants
for permanent, temporary or special services, as they may from
time to time think fit and to determine their powers and duties and
fix their salaries or emoluments and to require security in such
instances and to such amount as they think fit

h) To contribute to any charitable object of public utility within the
limits prescribed under the provisions of the Act
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i) To support and subscribe to any institution, society r ,;Iub which
may be for the benefit of the Company or its emplc /e es or may
be connected with any town or place where the Cornpsny carries
on business to give pensions, gratuities, bonuses I lr charitable
aid to any person or persons who have served the ::;(mpany or
to the wives, children, or dependants of such person <: r persons
that may appear to the Directors just or proper whet· el any such
person, his widow, children or dependants have 01 ,..ave not a
legal claim upon the Company

j) Subject to the provisions of the Act to accept from e 1y member,
on such terms and conditions as shall be agreed, a iU 'render of
his shares or any part thereof

k) To appoint any person or persons (whether mcorpoi stud or not)
to accept and hold in trust for the Company a Iy property
belonging to the Company or in which it is intereste I :Ir for any
other purposes and to execute and do all such deed and things
as may be requisite in relation to any such trust and tl P'ovide for
the remuneration of such trustee or trustees

I) To institute, conduct, defend, compound or abando I .my legal
prQceeding_s,by Q~ against ~~mL...QL~" Q:t ~~J)r
otherwise concerning the affairs of the Company ,.n,:' also to
compound and allow time for payment or satisfac: i011of any
d~I*~ .dlje and of any claims or demands by or Ig~unst the
Camj:5~fiY

m) To refer any claims or demands by or against the C oripany to
arbitration

n) To make and give receipts, releases and other disr: harqes for
moneys payable to the Company and for the r ai 11S and
demands of the Company

4-~·~·······~·~--·--·-·-~~,....•...".,."....., ,_ '__"H _- Q} TQ getg:rmine wtJQ shallbeentitled lo...sign 00 the :.cl~'s.
,--..,-.---.-.--.-----.---. ~-.-.~ ..-.~-------.,.. beJolelf bill!'!, Mote!'!, receipts, acceptances, end tr.!emerns-;" '

···.·...~ues, !eJeasest"~aGtsand documems

p) To providefrom time to time, for the management of tt u tffairs of
the Company in such manner as they think fit and in prl cular to
appoint any person to be the attorneys or agents of the C ompany
with such powers (including power to sub-delegate) ar d upon
such terms as may be thought fit. The Board may s rb11it and
delegate any matter, function or responsibility to a Me 1"gement
Committee, Investment Committee or any othe : special
committee established by the Board as it may deem al P'opriate,
under guidelines which it may determine.

q) To invest and deal with any of the moneys of the COI.lpmy not
immediately required for the purposes thereof u '011 such
securities (not being shares in this Company) anc i 1 such
manner as they may think fit and from time to time :> .Jary or
realize such investments, provided however, that the profits, if
any, arising on the sale or change of investmen s of the
Company, unless prohibited by any other statute for 11' e time
being in force, shall be treated as capital moneys and ;" ried to
the Capital Reserve Account

r) To execute in the name and on behalf of the Compan, 1favor
of any Director or other person who may incur or be al iout to
incur any personal liability for the benefit of the Comp nj; such
mortgages of the Company's property (present and l' Itl. re) as
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they think fit and any such mortgage may contain a power of sale
and such other powers, covenants and provisions as shall be
agreed upon.

s) To give to any person employed by the Company a commission
on the profits of any particular business or transaction or a share
in the general profits of the Company and such commission or
share of profits shall be treated as part of the working expenses
of the Company

t) From time to time, to make, vary and repeal rules and regulations
for the conduct of the business and affairs of the Company, its
officers and servants

u) Subject to the provisions of the Act and these presents for or in
relation to any of the matters aforesaid or otherwise for the
purposes of the Company to enter into all such negotiations and
contracts and rescind and vary all such contracts and execute
and do all such acts, deeds and things in the name of and on
behalf of the Company as they may consider expedient for or in
relation to any of the matters aforesaid or otherwise for the
purposes of the Company

..........•.•.•......•. ·····vr·'Sefore recommenaing 'anY"OIvTcrerla~ana"suojea ~to·c1he
requirements of Section 123 of the Act, to set aside out of the
profits. of the Company. such sums as they think proper. for
depreeiation "or··to-a-Bepreciatioll Fund or 10 an Insurance ~und
or ~~.~ Reserve Fund or Sinking FYnd or any Special Fund to
meet contingencies or to repay debentures or debenture-stock or
for special dividends or for equalizing dividends or for repairing,
improving, extending and maintaining any of the properties of the
Company and for such other purposes, as the Board of Directors
may, in their absolute discretion, think conducive to the interest of
the Company and subject to Section 179 of the Act to invest the
several sums so set aside or so much thereof as required to be
invested, upon such investments (other than shares of the
cojj\pan~t) as they a:aaytbiak fit aDd ftQa:! tla:!1iI to tiiiia deal with:
.and vary sucll imle~n1§.gnd.~gse.gf.ancl.ap.p.l)1. and exp.end
aIl9fJID¥..Ri!'!JbefeQf fQr the Q.EM'lefiL9fthe CornPc!I1Y,in .sUch
mal1n~'-~!l<!f~~.~uchpurposes asthe E3e>ardof Directors, in their
absolute discretion conducive to the interest of the Company,
notwithstanding that the matters, to which the Board of Directors
apply or upon which they expend the same or any part thereof
may be matters, to or upon which the capital moneys of the
Company might rightly be applied or expended; and to divide the
Reserve Fund into such special funds as the Board of Directors
may think fit, and to employ the assets constituting all 'or any of
the above funds, including the Depreciation Fund, in the business
of the Company or in the purchase or repayment of debentures
or debenture-stock and that without being bound to keep the
same separate from the other assets and without being bound to
pay interest on the same, with power however to the Board of
Directors at their discretion to payor allow to the credit of such
funds interest at such rate as the Board of Directors may think
proper

w) To pay and charge to the capital account of the Company any
commission or interest lawfully payable there from under the
provisions of Sections 40 of the Act

x) To comply with the requirements of any local law which in their
opinion it shall in the interests of the Company be necessary or
expedient to comply with
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From time to time and at any time to establish any Local Board
for managing any of the affairs of the Company in :In:' specified
locality in India or elsewhere and to appoint any erson to be
members of such Local Board or any managers or c' ~E:nts and to
fix their remuneration

Subject to the provisions of Section 179 of the Act fn: m time to
time, and at any time to delegate to any such Local Eo.,rd, or any
member or members thereof of any managers so a, pointed any
of the powers, authorities and discretions for the ti l1e being
vested in the Board of Directors, and to authorize he members
for the time being of any such Local Board, or any (' f t rem to fill
up any vacancies therein and to act notwithstandin. vacancies:
and any such appointment or delegation may be m d'l! on such
terms and subject to such conditions as the Board )f Directors
may think fit, and the Board of Directors may at any me remove
any person so appointed, and may annul or var: .my such
delegation

aa) Generally subject to the provisions of the Act and the ie, presents
to delegate the powers, authorities and discretions vusled in the

4'-"' ,.~~'~~~'~~~''''~"'',"~,~.,="-. " ••~,. -""""" "'~""~ Directors to any per~mmitt~e, .firm, CompaQl.~ JI,J&tLialiml
body of persons.

MINUTES

91 Minutes The Company shall. cause minutes of all proceedings of ew ry General
Meeting and of all proceedings of every meeting of its Board If )irectors
or of every Committee of the Board to be kept as and in re manner
prescribed under Section 118 of the Act.

Any such minutes, if purporting to be signed by the Chairpe son of the
Meeting at which the proceedings take place or by the Chs rperson of
the next succeeding meeting shall be evidence of the procee( in!IS.

~-••••.~...-.--..=-.--..::.- . a3-'-P-r-&-&Y-FM-~-ti-eRs-,t&-*--':::,WAere miflutes ef t"'e I'l'oeeedi"gs· of ~my ee,,~rat M;;e1~:~;fih;
dr.awn wbere., . Compatl¥.or ,QLan)L.-'meetin9 ..,Q.Ltbe. Boara....QJ;..Qt.... Commi .lei •. ()f the
mj~$ dul~ ..drawn Directorshave been made and signed in accordance witn the Pi' i)visions
CirelSigneci QLthe§e cresents an,Lthe Act. then. untiL the .contrary .Is ~ 'ored, the

Meeting shall be deemed to have been duly called and hdd and all
proceedin§s there at to have been duly taken place and in p rticular all
appointments of Directors or Liquidators made at the meetir ~ shall be
deemed to be valid.

92 Minutes to be
evidence

94 Inspection of
Minute Books of
General Meetings by
Members

Any member of the Company shall be entitled to be furnis leiI within
seven days after he has made a request in that behalf to the Company
with a copy of any minute referred to in sub-clause (a) te 'eof on
payment of cost incurred by the Company in respect of the lit' utes to
be copied.

)

19

44

 



95 Appointment

96 Authorising of work

-"'97 ~~The-Seal,its ",
custody and use

Declaration of':::-.--~'=...'=--~~--:.:=-~-----'~-.-.--ID..&Iil¥vi",alCle:un~d__
98

99 Int~m ()iviq~nd

100 Special Right

t

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, MANAGER, COMPANY SECRETARY
OR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Subject to the provisions of the Act,-
(i) A Chief Executive Officer, Manager, Company Secretary or Chief

Financial Officer may be appointed by the Board for such term, at
such remuneration and upon such conditions as it may thinks fit; and
any Chief Executive Officer, Manager, Company Secretary or Chief
Financial Officer so appointed may be removed by means of a
resolution of the Board;

(ii) A director may be appointed as Chief Executive Officer, Manager,
Company Secretary or Chief Financial Officer.

A provision of the Act or these regulations requiring or authorizing a
thing to be done by or to a director and Chief Executive Officer,
Manager, Company Secretary or Chief Financial Officer shall not be
satisfied by its being done by or to the same person actinq both as
director and as, or in place of, Chief Executive Officer, Manager,
Company Secretary or Chief Financial Officer.

THE SEAL

."-TFie eoard shall proviae Torffie safe custoay onne seafTfiesearonne
Company shan not be affixed to any instrument except by the authority
of a res()llJ~onofthe Board or of a committee of the Board authorized by
itirtthat-behaff;-1md'exeepHn'the·presence-otat-least~ dlreetore-and
of the. seC[~tary or such other person 9S the E3Qc;tnj may appoint for the
purpose; and those two directors and the secretary or other person
aforesaid shall sign every instrument to which the seal of the Company
is so affixed in their presence.

DIVIDENDS AND RESERVE

The Company in general meeting may declare dividends, but no
dividend Shall exceed the, ijmO!IOf recoffimendW bV rne 13QIDlf-~'=:_:=="_=,
§y})j~tjilli!:proyt~ig~i Qfs,~~!icm'-1?3:Ih~.[Oiilrd maY' from tim~ to
tifll~ ,Piit t~..!~~,.!!'~Il1~~rs~lJch interim. dividends as appear to it to be
justified by the profits of the Company. '

The Board may, before recommending any dividend, set aside out of the
profits of the Company such sums as it thinks fit as a reserve or
reserves which shall, at the discretion of the Board, be applicable for
any purpose to which the profits of the Company may be properly
applied, including provision for meeting contingencies or for equalizing 't
dividends; and pending such application, may, at the like discretion,
either be employed in the business of the Company or be invested in
such investments (other than shares of the Company) as the Board
may, from time to time, thinks fit.

The Board may also carry forward any profits which it may consider
necessary not to divide, without setting them aside as a Reserve.

(i) Subject to the rights of persons, if any, entitled to shares with special
rights as to dividends, all dividends shall be declared and paid
according to the amounts paid or credited as paid on the shares in
respect whereof the dividend is paid, but if and so long as nothing is
paid upon any of the shares in the Company, dividends may be
declared and paid according to the amounts of the shares.
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101 Deduction of
Dividend

102 Payment of
Dividend

103 Dividend in case of
joint holders

104 Notice of Dividend

)

)

,)

106 Irll?PeCliQnby
Members

107 WINDING UP

(ii) No amount paid or credited as paid on a share in ad»ar ce of calls
shall be treated for the purposes of this regulation ali paid on the
share.

(iii) All dividends shall be apportioned and paid proportlc, lately to the
amounts paid or credited as paid on the shares durin: a ny portion
or portions of the period in respect of which the divider, l i s paid; but
if any share is issued on terms providing that it sllall rank for
dividend as from a particular date such share shall rani f( r dividend
accordingly.

The Board may deduct from any dividend payable to an} rr ember all
sums of money, if any, presently payable by him to the :ompany on
account of calls or otherwise in relation to the shares of the' 01' npany.

Any dividend, interest or other monies payable in cash i respect of
shares may be paid by cheque or warrant sent through the I os t directed
to the registered address of the holder or, in the case of joir : t:alders, to
the registered address of that one of the joint holders who il fil' st named
on the register of members, or to such person and to sue," aildress as

. ~~,.l.tt~L!:lolderS?L.iQ1rll.~~"Il1~,~d.ir.ec.L," ..~,".,..~,.."... ",

Every such cheque or warrant shall be made payable to the )rller of the
person to whom it is sent.

Anyone of two or more joint holders of a share may gi, 'e effective
receipts for any dividends, bonuses or other monies payabl ill respect
of such share.

Notice of any dividend that may have been declared shall re given to
the persons entitled to share therein in the manner mentioner ir the Act.

No dividend shall bear interest against the Company.

ACCQUNl'S

(i) The Board shall from time to. time determine whether a,ld to what
extent and at what times and places and under what C( leiitions or
regulations, the accounts and books of the Company, 01 any of
them, shall be open to the inspection of members nc t being
directors.

(ii) No member (not being a director) shall have any right of mpecting
any account or book or document of the Company sx iept as
conferred by law or authorized by the Board or by the C In pany in
general meeting,

WINDING UP

Subject to the provisions of Chapter XX of the Act and n e: made
thereunder-

(i) If the Company shall be wound up, the liquidator may Vi'ith the
sanction of a special resolution of the Company and In:' other
sanction required by the Act, divide amongst the me thers, in
specie or kind, the whole or any part of the assets of the I .ompany,
whether they shall consist of property of the same kind or r )1
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108 Power to Indemnify

(ii) For the purpose aforesaid, the liquidator may set such value as he
deems fair upon any property to be divided as aforesaid and may
determine how such division shall be carried out as between the
members or different classes of members.

(iii) The liquidator may, with the like sanction, vest the whole or any part
of such assets in trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of the
contributories if he considers necessary, but so that no member
shall be compelled to accept any shares or other securities whereon
there is any liability.

INDEMNITY

Every officer of the Company shall be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against any liability incurred by him in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in his
favour or in which he is acquitted or in which relief is granted to him by
the court or the Tribunal.
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)

We, the several persons, whose names and addresses are subscribed below, are desirous of being formed
into a Company in pursuance of this Articles of Association:

Names, Ad'-d-re-s-se-s-,D-es-c-r-ip-ti-o-n-s--'--S-:-ig-n-a-ttl~eof Subscribe~-Sig;at~re:' -"Nam~,'--Add;:~;'-s'
and Occupations of Subscribers I Description and Occupation of

Witness

1. Sanjay Malhotra, CMD, RVPN Sd/-
On behalf of RVPN
CIN: U40109RJ2000SGC016485
Vidyut Shawan, Jyoti Nagar, Jaipur-
302005

I witness to Subscribers who have
subscribed and signed in my
presence. Further, I have verified I'

their Identity details (10) for the
purpose of their Identification and
satisfied myself of their Identity
particulars as filled in

Sd/-
Gagan Mittal

S/o Dr. P L Mittal
B-'14, Anukampa-II
M.L Road, Jaipur

Chartered Accountant

3. Vijay Mathur
S/o Shri Kailash Narain Mathur Sd/-

) 47, Shrigopal Nagar, Gopalpura
Bypass, Jaipur- 302019

""':'r-~'~~~'-"-1' "·~~~.~:\:eof RVP~~'~' --.,.~-~~~"

\ "~

. 4. Anln Kumar.Gupta
S'76"sm-nUmaRaffiJi Gupta Sdl-

..,.,J 7U162, AcavaJi. Marg, Mansarovar,
Jaipur- 302020
Govt Service
Nominee of RVPN

2 Sanjay Malhotra Sd/-
S/o Shri Krishan Lal Malhotra
R-1!1, Chambal Residential Colony,
Hawa Sadak, Jaipur- 3020,19
Government Service
Nominee of RVPN

5. Rajendra Prasad Barwar
Shri Bhajan Lal Barwar Sd/-
Plot No.2, 1st Floor, Jagdish Vihar,
Prem Nagar, Jagatpura, Jaipur-

)

)

<.~

6. Shriniwas Vijay
SIO Shri'JugaiKish6re Vijay
6-A~1, rvJ<.lhaVeer Na9qr-llI,
Keshopura, Kota- 324005,
Rajasthan
Service
Nominee of RVPN

7. Rajendra Kumar Agarwal
S/o Shri Sohan Lal Agarwal Sd/-
8, RSEB Officers Housing Society,
Opp Inox, Vaishali Nagar, Jaipur-
302021
Service
Nominee of RVPN

8. Narendra Kumar Mathur
S/o Shri Raj Narain Mathur Sd/-
571, Sarkat Nagar, Tonk Phatak,
Jaipur- 302015.
Service
Nominee of RVPN

.-~------_--,---- ._._,.

Dated the 21"day of March, 2016
Place: Jaipur
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Clause II 1Amended in vide Special Resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting held 
on 22nd June, 2020 subject to approval of Central Government (Regional Director) 

 

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 

(COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES) 
 

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION 
 

OF 
HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 

 
NAME OF THE  
COMPANY 

I. The Name of the Company is HADOTI POWER 
TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 
 

REGISTERED 
OFFICE 

II. 1The Registered Office of the Company will be situated in 
the State of Gujarat i.e. within the jurisdiction of the 
Registrar of Companies, Gujarat, Ahmedabad. 
 

OBJECTS III. The objects for which the Company is established are:- 
 

 
(A) MAIN OBJECTS - THE OBJECTS TO BE PURSUED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS 

INCORPORATION ARE:- 
 

1. To Construct, Operate 
and maintain "electricity 
system" as defined  
under Section 2(25) of  
the Electricity Act, 2003, 
state grid code and  
Indian Electricity grid 
code and other 
applicable standards I 
Regulatory norms from 
time to time 

To acquire, establish, construct, take over, erect, lay, 
operate, run, manage, hire, lease, buy, sell, maintain, 
enlarge, alter, work and use, renovate, modernize, 
electrical transmission lines and/or net work through 
extra high voltage, high voltage lines associated sub-
stations, cables, wires, accumulators, plants, motors, 
meters, apparatus, computers and materials 
connected with generation, transmission, distribution, 
ancillary services, telecommunication and 
telemetering equipment. To undertake, for and on 
behalf of others the erection, operation, maintenance, 
management, of extra high voltage, high voltage, 
medium voltage and low voltage lines and associated 
sub-stations, equipments, apparatus and wires etc. 
 

2. To act as Consultants/ 
Technical Advisers of 
public/ private sector 
enterprises etc; 

To carry on the business of Transmission System 
Operation, including finalization of transmission traffic, 
billing and collection thereof. 
 
To execute Transmission Service Agreement with 
generating companies, Central and State generating 
stations, regional Electricity Boards. other States, 
Distribution Licenses Open Access Consumers 
Utilities, Companies and other entities. 
 
To take up any other business for optimum utilization 
of its assets upto prior approval of appropriate 
commission, aid and advise on the activities of other 
companies and concerns, including subsidiaries, 
associates and affiliate engaged in generation, 
transmission , distribution, supply and wheeling of 
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electrical energy. To dispatch generation of all units 
connected to the State power system including the 
centrally owned generating stations, in respect of the 
share assigned to 1the State and electricity purchased 
from other States undertakings as per the schedules 
approved by the State/ Regional Load Dispatch 
Centers.  
 

3. To study, investigate, 
collect information and 
data and review 
operations etc 

To study, investigate, collect information and data, 
review operations, plan, research, design and prepare 
project reports, diagnose operational difficulties and 
weaknesses, and advise on the remedial measures to 
improve and modernize existing Extra High Voltage, 
High Voltage, medium Voltage, Low Voltage lines and 
sub-stations. 
 
To tender and finalize contract for purchase of power 
from new generation plants (both under State & 
Central Sector) including Independent Power 
Producers. 
 

4. To carry on the business 
of Designated Financing 
Vehicle for State and 
Private 
Transmission/Distribution 
Licensees 
 
 
 

To receive from tl1le State Government financial 
support (including, but not limited to, grant and/or 
Equity and/or third party security) in the form of grant, 
cash support, subsidy, equity, third party security or 
through any other form/source as the designated 
financing vehicle/ special purpose vehicle for 
supporting the various State and Private 
Transmission/Distribution Licensees. 

5. To Develop 
Telecommunication 
Networks5 
 

To enter into business and to own assets such as dark 
fibre, right of way, duct space and transmission towers 
along with rights to operate, maintain and 
modifications to the OPGW strands and transmission 
towers and to provide the same on a leasehold/rental 
basis to other entities including communication service 
providers U/S 4 of Indian Telegraph Act. 1885, 
desirous of obtaining such services, on mutually 
agreed terms and conditions for the provision of 
multiple services such as data, voice, internet, sub-
leasing and adjunct services associated with 
Telecommunications. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5Clause III(A)5 inserted pursuant to Special Resolution passed by the Shareholders at                       
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 12th December, 2018. 
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(B) OBJECTS WHICH ARE NECESSARY FOR FURTHERANCE OF THE OBJECTS 
SPECIFIED IN CLAUSE Ill (A) ARE:- 

 
1. To obtain license and 

approvals 
To obtain license, approvals and authorization from 
Government, Statutory and Regulatory Authorities, as 
may be necessary to carry out and achieve the Objects 
of the Company and connected matters which may 
seem expedient to develop the business interests of the 
Company in India and abroad. 
 

2. To carry out 
infrastructure 
development for 
integrated fuel system 

To carry out infrastructure development like port 
development, fuel transportation system to achieve the 
objectives of the company. 
 
 

3. To obtain charters, 
concession etc. 

To enter into any arrangement with the Government of 
India or with, any State Government or with other 
authorities/commissions, local bodies or public sector or 
private sector undertakings, Power/ Transmission 
Utilities, Financial Institutions, Banks, International 
Funding Agencies and obtain such charters, subsidies, 
loans, advances or other money, grants, contracts, 
rights, sanctions, privileges, licenses or concessions 
whatsoever (whether statutory or otherwise) which the 
Company may think it desirable to obtain for carrying its 
activities in furthering the interests of the Company or its 
members. 
 

4. To enter into 
Implementation/ 
Construction 
Agreement 

To enter into any agreement, contract or any 
arrangement for the implementation of the power 
generation, evacuation, transmission and distribution 
system and network with Power/Transmission Utilities, 
State Electricity Boards, Vidyut Boards, Transmission 
Companies, Generation Companies Licensees, 
Statutory bodies, other organizations (whether in 
Private, Public or Joint Sector Undertaking) and bulk 
consumers of power etc. 
 

5. To enter into 
Agreements; etc. 

To secure the payments of money, receivables on 
generation, transmission and distribution of electricity 
and sale of fuel, as the case may be, to the State 
Electricity Boards, Vidyut Boards Transmission Utilities, 
Generating Companies, Transmission Companies, 
Distribution Companies, State Governments, Licensees, 
statutory bodies, other organizations (whether in Private. 
Public or Joint Sector Undertaking) and bulk consumers 
of power etc., through Letter of Credits/ESCROW and 
other security documents. 
 

6. To raise loan and to 
keep security deposits 

To raise loans (secured or unsecured) from nationalized 
and private banks and other financial agencies, 
institutions and donors for the microfinance lending 
activities with or without security and to keep security 
deposits in such banks and institutions for raising such 
loans. 
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7. To act as agency and 
dealers 

To enter into agreements of commission agency, 
consignment agency, representatives and depots 
keepers or authorized dealers, for manufacturers, 
wholesalers, importers or dealers, of building and 
construction materials of raw materials, products or 
accessories, required for 'building, or civil or other 
engineering constructions and builders' requisites. 
 

8. To borrow money Subject to the provisions of the, Companies Act, 2013 or 
any amendment or re-enactment thereof and Rules 
framed there under and directions issued by Reserve 
Bank of India from time to time in this behalf, to borrow 
monies and to receive monies or to deposits for the 
purpose to finance the business or the Company either 
with or without security or mortgage or other security 
charged on the undertaking or all or any of the assets of 
the company including uncalled capital and to increase, 
reduce or pay off any such securities. 
 

9. To lend money To lend money on .property or on mortgage of 
immovable properties or against Bank guarantee and to 
make advances of money against future supply of goods 
and services on such terms as the Directors may 
consider necessary and to invest money of the 
Company in such manner as the Directors may think fit 
and to sell, transfer or to deal with the same. 
 

10. To acquire, own, lease 
or dispose of the 
property 

To own, possess, acquire by purchase, lease or 
otherwise rights, title and interests in and to , exchange 
or hire real estate, equipment, Transmission lines, lands, 
buildings, apartments, plants, equipment, machinery, 
fuel blocks and hereditaments of any tenure or 
descriptions situated in India or abroad or any estate or 
interest therein and any right over or connected with 
land so situated and turn the same to account in any 
manner as may seem necessary or convenient for the 
purpose of business of the Company and to hold, 
improve, exploit, re-organize, manage, lease, sell, 
exchange or otherwise dispose of the whole or any part 
thereof. 
 

11. To acquire business or 
undertaking 

To acquire and undertake the whole or any part of the 
undertaking or business (whether as a going concern or 
not), property, assets, liabilities or any other tangible or 
intangible matter or things having value of any kind, of 
any person, firms or Company or body corporate 
carrying on any business which the Company is 
authorized to carry on or be possessed of any property 
suitable for the purpose of this Company in relation to 
main object. 
 

12. To lend money and 
give Credit, etc. 

To lend and advance money or give credit to any person 
or any Company; or to give guarantee or indemnify for 
the payment of money of the performance of contracts 
or obligations by any person; to secure or 'Undertake in 
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any way the repayment of money lent or advanced to, or 
the liabilities incurred by any person. However, the 
Company shall not carry on any business of banking as 
defined, by the law regulating banking operations in 
India in relation to main object. 
 

13. To provide aid and 
support  

To establish or support or aid in the establishment and 
support of associations, institutions, funds, trusts, and 
conveniences for the benefit of past or present 
employees or Directors or other persons directly or 
indirectly connected with the business of the Company, 
or the dependents of such persons; and to grant 
pension, allowances or any other assistance, to make 
payment towards insurance; toꞏ subscribe or guarantee 
money for charitable or benevolent objects or useful 
objects for general public in relation to main object. 
 

14. To create funds 
appropriate profits 

To create any depreciation fund, reserve fund, sinking 
fund, insurance fund, gratuity, provident fund or any 
other fund, for depreciation or for repairing, improving 
extending or maintaining any of the properties of the 
Company or for any other purposes whatsoever 
conducive to the interests of the Company. 
 

15. To purchase or 
otherwise 
acquire companies 

To acquire shares, stocks, debentures or securities of 
any company carrying on any business which this 
Company is entitled to carry on or acquisition of 
undertaking itself which may seem likely or calculated to 
promote or advance the interests of the Company and to 
sell or dispose of or transfer any such shares, stocks or 
securities and the acquired undertaking. 
 

16. To enter into 
partnership Agreement 
or Merge I Amalgamate 

To enter into partnership or into any agreement for joint 
working, sharing or pooling profits, joint venture, 
amalgamation, union of interests, co-operation, 
reciprocal concessions or otherwise or amalgamate with 
any person or company carrying on or engaged in or 
about to carry on or engaged in any business or 
transaction in India or abroad which the Company is 
authorized to carry on or engage in any business 
undertaking having objects identical or similar to, as are 
being carried on by this Company. 
 

17. To execute contracts 
for Transmission of 
power 

To execute contracts for transmission and export of 
electrical power, whether from conventional' and non-
conventional sources in India or abroad and to realize its 
proceeds. 
 

18. To open accounts 
Banks 

To open an account or accounts with any individual, firm 
or company or with any bank, bankers or shroofs and to 
pay into and Withdraw money from such account or 
accounts. 
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19. To share profits To amalgamate or enter into any arrangement for 
sharing of profits or entering into partnership, union of 
interest, cooperation, reciprocal concession, lease, 
license or otherwise with any person carrying on or 
transaction which the Company is authorized to carry on 
or engage in for sharing or funding of profits in a 
cooperative or joint venture subject to compliance of 
existing law in force. 
 

20. To Insure Property, 
risks, etc 

To insure any of the property, undertakings, contracts, 
risks or obligations of the Company in any manner 
whatsoever 
 

21. To Nominate Directors 
or Employees 

To Nominate Directors or Employees of the Company in 
any Subsidiary company or of any other company in 
which this company is or may be interested or 
concerned. 
 

22. To identify new areas 
of infrastructural 
activities 

To act as an entrepreneur to identify new areas of 
infrastructural activities for development of power and to 
help the undertakings engaged in such activities and 
make investment therein. 
 

23. To take up studies and 
research experiments; 

To establish, provide, maintain and conduct or otherwise 
subsidize research laboratories and experimental 
workshops for scientific, technical or researches, 
experiments and to undertake and carry on directly or in 
collaboration with other agencies scientific and technical 
research experiments and tests of all kinds and to 
process,. improve and invent new products and their 
techniques of manufacture and to promote, encourage, 
reward in every manner studies and research, scientific 
and technical investigations and inventions of any kind 
that may be considered likely to assist, encourage and 
promote rapid advances in technology, economies, 
import substitution or any business which the Company 
is authorized to carry on. 
 

24. To advance money Subject to provisions of Companies Act, 2013 or any 
amendment or re-enactment thereof, to advance deposit 
or lend money, securities and properties to other 
company, body corporate, firm, person or association 
with or without security, in the interest of the Company 
and also to accumulate funds and to invest or otherwise 
employ moneys belonging to the Company not 
immediately required; in the purchase or acquisition of 
and securities or make other investments in movable or 
immovable properties upon such terms as may be 
thought proper and from time to time to realize I recover 
such investments in the manner as the Company may 
think fit. 
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25. To deal in Scrips/ Govt. 
Securities 

Subject to applicable provisions of law, to subscribe for, 
underwrite, or otherwise acquire, hold, dispose of and 
deal with the shares, stocks, debentures or other 
securities and titles of indebtedness or the right to 
participate in profits or other similar documents issued 
by any Government authority, Corporation or body or by 
any company or body of persons and any option or right 
in respect thereof. 
 

26. To apply for tenders 
and contracts 

To apply for, tender, purchase or otherwise acquire any 
contract and concessions for or in relation to the 
construction, execution, carrying out improvement, 
management, administration or control of work and 
conveniences and to undertake, execute, carry out, 
dispose of or otherwise turn to account the same in 
connection with business activities of the company. 
 

27. To administer work 
related to business 
activities 

To construct, execute, carry out, improve, work, 
develop, administer, mange or control in India or 
abroad, work and convenience of all kinds in connection 
with business activities of the company. 
 

28. To sell, dispose or hive 
off an undertaking of 
the Company 

Subject to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 or any 
amendment or re-enactment thereof, sell, dispose or 
hive off an  undertaking of the Company or any part 
thereof for such consideration as the Company may 
think fit and in particular for shares, debentures or 
securities of any other association, corporation, 
company or organization. 
 

29. To sell, improve, 
manage, develop 

To sell, improve, manage, develop, exchange, loan, 
lease or let, under-lease, sub - let, mortgage, dispose of, 
deal with in any manner, turn to account or otherwise 
deal with any rights or property of the Company. 
 

30. To acquire know how 
and import-export of 
machinery and tools 
etc. 

To negotiate and enter into agreements and contracts 
with domestic and foreign companies, persons or other 
organizations, banks and financial institutions, in relation 
to the business of the Company including that of 
technical know-how, import, export, purchase or sale of 
plant, machinery, equipment, tools, accessories and 
consumables, financial assistance and for carrying out 
all or any of the objects of the Company. 
 

31. To enter into 
contracts/arrangements 
in connection with 
issue of 
shares/securities. 

Upon and for the purpose of any issue of shares, 
debentures or any other securities of the Company, to 
enter into agreement with intermediaries including 
brokers, managers of issue/commission agents and 
underwriters and to provide for the remuneration of such 
persons for their services by way of payment in cash or 
issue of shares, debentures or other securities of the 
Company or by granting options to take the same or in 
any other manner as permissible under the law. 
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32. To enter into contracts 
of indemnity and/or 
guarantee 
 

To enter into contracts of indemnity and get guarantee 
and allocations for the business of the Company. 

33. To apply for purchase 
or otherwise acquire 
trademarks, patents, 
licenses, etc 

To apply for purchase or otherwise acquire, arid protect, 
prolong and renew whether in• India or abroad, any 
trademarks, patents, licenses, concessions and the like 
conferring an exclusive or non-exclusive or limited right 
to use, or any secret or other information as to any 
Invention which may seem capable of being used for the 
purposes of the Company, or acquisition of which may 
seem calculated directly or indirectly, to benefit the 
Company and to use, exercise, develop or grant 
licenses in respect of or otherwise turn to account the 
property, rights, or information so acquired for the 
benefit of the Company and to spend money in 
experimenting upon and testing and improving or 
seeking to improve any patent, inventions or rights 
which the Company may acquire or propose to acquire. 
 

34. To insure rights for the 
business of the 
company 

To insure any of the rights, properties, undertakings, 
contracts, guarantees or obligations or profits of the 
Company of every nature and kind in any manner with 
any person, firm, association or company for the 
business of the Company. 
 

35. To train employees To train and pay tor the training of the company's 
employees or to recruit and employ experts, advisors, 
consultants, advisors, etc. in the interest of achieving 
the Company's objects. 
 

36. To provide for welfare 
of employees 

To pay and provide for the remuneration, amelioration 
and welfare of persons ꞏemployed or formerly employed 
by the Company and their families providing for pension, 
allowances, bonuses, other payments or by creating for 
the purpose from time to time the Provident Fund, 
Gratuity and other Funds or Trusts. Further to undertake 
building or contributing to the building of houses, 
dwellings or chawls by grants of money, or by helping 
persons employed by the Company to effect or maintain 
insurance on their lives by contributing to the payment of 
premium or otherwise and by providing or subscribing or 
contributing towards educational institutions, recreation, 
hospitals and dispensaries, medical and other 
assistance as the Company may deem fit. 
 

37. To contribute and make 
donations 

Subject to provisions of Companies Act, 2013 or any 
amendment or re-enactment thereof, to contribute 
money or otherwise assist to charitable, benevolent, 
religious, scientific national, defence, public or other 
institutions or objects or purposes. 
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38. To share the profits 
pay, dividends and 
provide bonus etc 

To distribute among members of the Company dividend 
including interim dividend, bonus shares out of profits, 
accumulated profits or funds and resources of the 
Company in any manner permissible under law. 
 

39. To institute and defend 
the legal proceedings 

To institute, conduct, defend, compound or abandon any 
legal proceedings by or against the 'Company or its 
officers or otherwise concerning the affairs of the 
Company and also to compound and to allow time for 
payment or satisfaction of any debts or recovery due, 
claims or demands by or against the Company and to 
refer any claims or demands by or against the Company 
or any differences arising in execution of contracts to 
conciliation and arbitration and to observe, comply with 
and/or challenge any awards preliminary, interim or final 
made in any such arbitration. 
 

40. To pay for different 
Expenses 

To pay out of the funds of the Company all costs, 
charges, expenses preliminary and incidental to the 
promotion, formation, establishment and registration of 
the Company or other expenses incurred in this regard. 
 

41. To acquire, possess 
and undertake 
business 

To acquire, possess and undertai16 the whole or any 
part of the business, assets, property, goodwill, rights 
and liabilities of any person, firm, society, association, 
corporation or company. 
 

42. To obtain, apply for 
arrange for the issue or 
enactment of order or 
act 

To obtain, apply for, arrange for the issue or enactment 
of order or Act of Legislature or Act of Authority in India 
or any other part of the world for enabling the Company 
to obtain powers, authorities, protection, financial and 
other help necessary or expedient to carry out or extend 
any of the objects of the Company or for any other 
purpose which may seem expedient and to oppose any 
proceedings or application or any other endeavors, 
steps or measures which may seem calculated directly 
or indirectly to prejudice the Company's interests. 
 

43. To manage property To improve, manage, develop, exchange, loan, lease, 
let, under lease sub-let, mortgage, sell, dispose of, turn 
to account or otherwise deal with, any rights or property 
of the Company or the undertaking of the Company or 
any part thereof and, in respect of any disposal of What 
ever nature, for such consideration as the Company 
may think fit and, in particular, for shares, debentures or 
securities of any other association, partnership, 
corporation or company or to promote and undertake 
the formation of any institution or company and to 
promote or aid in the promotion of any other association, 
partnership, corporation or company for the purpose of 
the acquisition of all or any of the properties, rights or 
liabilities of the Company or for any other purpose which 
may seem directly or indirectly calculated to benefit this 
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Company or form subsidiary Company or companies. 
 

44. To receive grants, 
subsidies etc 

To receive grants, subsidies, contributions donations 
loans advances or other monies or deposits of 
whatsoever nature from State Government, Central 
Government, Foreign Government and bodies, banks, 
companies, trusts or individuals with or without 
conditions for the purpose of fulfilment of objects of the 
Company subject to the provisions of Companies Act, 
2013 or any amendment or re-enactment thereof. 
 

45. To make donation To make donations either in cash or in kind for such 
objects or causes as may be directly or indirectly 
conducive to any of the Company's objects or otherwise 
expedient, subject to the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 or any amendment or re-enactment thereof. 
 

46. To establish and 
maintain agencies, 
branch offices and local 
agencies 

To establish and maintain agencies, branch offices and 
local agencies, to obtain/procure registration or 
recognition of the Company and to carry on business in 
any part of India and world and to take such steps as 
may be necessary to give the Company such rights and 
privileges in any part of the world as deemed proper in 
the interest of the Company. 
 

47. To promote and 
undertake the 
formation of any 
institution or Company 

To promote and undertake the formation of any 
institution or Company or subsidiary company or for any 
aforesaid objects intended to benefit the Company 
directly or indirectly and to coordinate, control 
anp1guide their activities. 
 

48. To borrow money in 
Indian rupees or 
foreign currencies and 
obtain  foreign lines of 
credits/grants/aids 

To borrow money in Indian rupees or foreign currencies 
and obtain foreign lines of credits/grants/aids for the 
purpose of the Company's business ꞏin such manner 
and on such terms and with such rights, privileges and 
obligations as the Company may think fit. The Company 
may issue bonds/debentures whether secured or 
unsecured; bills of exchange, promissory notes or other 
securities, mortgage or charge on all or any of the 
immovable and movable properties, present or future 
and all or any of the uncalled capital for the time being 
of the Company as the Company may deem fit and to 
repay, redeem or pay off any such securities or charges. 
 

49. To purchase, hire 
movable/immovable 
property 

To purchase or import, take on lease or in exchange, 
hire or otherwise acquire any movable or immovable 
property and any rights or privileges which the Company 
may think necessary or convenient for the purposes of 
its business and in particular any land, buildings, 
easements, machinery, plant and stock-in-trade. 
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50. To issue shares To issue or allot fully or partly paid shares in the capital 
of the Company in payment or part payment of any 
movable or immovable property purchased or otherwise 
acquired by the Company or any services rendered to 
the Company. 
 

51. To establish 
institutions, schools etc 
for benefit of 
employees 

To establish or support associations, institutions, 
schools, hospitals, guest houses, clubs, funds and trusts 
which may be considered beneficial to any employees 
or ex-employees and to officers and ex-officers of the 
Company or the dependents of any such person. 
 

52. To indemnify officers, 
Directors, Agents and 
Employees of the 
Company 

To indemnify officers, Directors, Agents and Employees 
of the Company against proceedings, cost, damages, 
claims and demands in respect of anything done or 
ordered to be done by them for and in the interest of the 
company or for any loss, damages or misfortune 
whatsoever shall happen in execution of the duties of 
their office or in relation thereof. 
 

53. To sale/dispose the 
Property 

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 or 
any amendment or re-enactment thereof in the event of 
winding up to distribute among the members in specie 
any property of the Company or any proceeds of sale on 
disposal of any property in accordance with the 
provision of the Act. 
 

54. To do things incidental 
to the attainment of the 
Company's Objects 

To do all such other things as may be deemed incidental 
or conducive to the attainment of the! above Objects or 
any of them and to carry on any business which may 
seem to the Company capable of being conveniently 
carried in connection with any of the Company's Objects 
or calculated directly or indirectly to enhance the value 
of or render profitable any of the Company's property or 
rights. 
 

55. To outsource parts of 
its activities 

To outsource part of its activities to achieve higher 
efficiency and throughputs in achievement of its 
business goals. 
 

56. To negotiate and enter 
into agreements etc. 

To negotiate and enter into agreements and contracts 
for execution of turnkey jobs, works,, supplies and 
export of plant, machinery, tools and accessories etc. 
 

IV 
 

LIMITED LIABILITY The Liability of the members is Limited, this liability is 
limited to the amount unpaid, if any, on the shares held 
by them. 

V* SHARE CAPITAL The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is  
Rs. 12,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twelve Crore only) divided 
Into 1,20,00,000 (One Crore Twenty Lakhs) Equity 
Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each. 

 
*Claus V amended pursuant to Special Resolution passed by the Shareholders at                       
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on Wednesday, the 14th February, 
2018 

59

 



')

) ,
t

.J <... :

..-,
)

--4
)

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

OF

. ,

COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

)

60

 



)

)

)

;"'}

)

_)

)

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

OF

HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED

INTERPRETATIONS

1 Interpretation Clause In the interpretation of these Articles the following expre: shms shall
have the following meanings, unless repugnant to or incor ;i~!tent with
the subject or context:-

The Act or the said "The Act" or "the said Act" means the Companies Act, 20 3 and I or
Act, Companies Act, 1956 and inc;:ludes any statutory moe fic::ation or

---;.="" . . '" •.•..•.....~.~~-.- •••,.~.,••••"•.•,."'.,.~,=,•.••"-~ thereof to" tR. -liiA:l •. beiR9 if:!. to,. if:! .~ ~~"
the provisions of the Legislature in relation to 01npanies.

Eioard

Capital "Capital" means the share capital for the time being r! ised or
authorized to be raised for the purpose of the Company,

Company "The "Company" means the "HADOTI POWER TRAN:)~,IlSSION
SERVICE LIMITED",

Chairperson "Chairperson" means the Chairperson of the Board for the in e being
of the Company,

ComJjanv Semtaty ""-, "Ci5mpany Secretary" means a Company' Secretary as- leTiiealFi",
, , cfattse"tcr ohmb 'sectt?rrt11''Of"Seetion ~ Of·ttre' cOmpany :' e.:retartes '.

Act, "'1980 Who is' appoinfed' by a company to perform thE" 11lnctlons'"
of a Company Secretary under this Act.

Director "Director" means a director of the Company on the Board duly ar:pointed
for the time being,

Equity Shares "Equity Shares" means the equity shares of the Cornpanj C urrently
having a par value of INR 10 (Rupees Ten on f) each.

General Meeting "General Meeting" means any meeting of the Sharehol leis duly
convened in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the
Articles of Association of the Company,

Government "Government" means the Government of Rajasthan.

Independent Director Independent Director" shall have the meaning ascribed to it in 11e Act.

Managing Director "Managing Director" means a director who, by virtue of the, rf cles of
the Company or an agreement with the Company or a resolutk '1 Iiassed
in its general meeting, or by its Board of Directors, is entn ;t.,,d with
substantial powers of arrangement of the affairs of the Com: tallY and
includes a director occupying the position of Managing Dh ec :or, by
whatever name called.

1
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Officer

Public Company

Relative

RVPN

Subsidiary

2 Applicability of
Table "F"

"Officer" includes any director, manager or key managerial personnel,
(or any person in accordance with whose directions or instruments the
Board of Directors or any or more of the directors is or are accustomed
to act).

"Public Company" means a company which -
(a) is not a private company:
(b) has a minimum paid up share capital as may be prescribed:

Provided that a company which is a subsidiary of a company, not being
a private company, shall be deemed to be public company for the
purposes of this Act even where such subsidiary company continues to
be a private company in its articles

"Relative" shall have the meaning as set forth in the Act.

"RVPN" means Rajasthan Rajya Vidyut Prasaran Nigam Limited,
a Wholly Owned Company of Government of Rajasthan incorporated
under the Companies Act, 1956.

"Subsidiary" shall have the meaning assigned thereto in the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) or any amendment or re-enactment
thereof.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words of expressions contained
in these Articles shall bear the same meaning as in the Act or any
statUtory-mOdification thereofin force at-the elate at which these Articles
become binding on the Company.

The Regulations contained in Table "F" of the First Schedule to the
Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time shall apply to the
Company and constitute its regulations, except in so far as such
regulations are hereinafter expressly or impliedly excluded, modified or
varied in these Articles.

-- n 3 GeffiJ')any-t&-b&----- _n._ Tl:le regwlatian& for the-management at the--Gampany--aAd-.feF-the
governed by ffiese ---. observance of tlie members thereof and ffielr representatives 5ubJecf1o-

. "Altictes --. ~1mTexercise"ofttre--statutorypO'Wel'S"·of1tnreompanyin reference to the
- repeal" "Or' alteration of, additfoh- to', . its regulations in the manner
prescribed by Section 14 of the Act, shall be such as are contained in
these Articles.

4 Share Capital

5 Power to Increase
the Share Capital

SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company shall be such amount as
stated in Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company.

The Company in general meeting may, by ordinary resolution from time
to time, increase the capital by creation of new shares of such amount
as the resolution shall prescribe. Subject to the provisions of the Act,
any shares of the original or increased capital shall be issued upon such
terms and conditions as the General Meeting resolving upon the
creation thereto shall direct, and if no direction be given, as the Directors
shall determine; and in particular, such shares may be issued with
preferential or qualified rights to dividends, and in the distribution of the
assets of the Company, and with a right of voting at the General Meeting
of the Company in conformity with Sections 47 of the Act.

Whenever the capital of the Company has been increased under the
provisions of this Article, the Directors shall comply with the provisions
of Section 64 of the Act.

2
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The Company shall have power to issue equity capital:
(a) with voting rights
(b) with differentiai rights as to dividend, voting or :th erwise in

accordance with such rules and subject to such c.mditlons as
may be prescribed under the Act.

6 Shares under the
control of Directors

Subject to the provisions of the Act and these Articles, the ~ ia "es in the
capital of the Company shall be under the control of the D 'eltors who
may issue, allot or otherwise dispose of the same or any of tei n to such
persons, in such proportion and on such terms and conditior ; ;,nd either
at a premium or at par and at such time as they may from 'ill' e to time
think fit.

7 Members Right toward Every person whose name is entered as a member in the rt!gister of
share certificate members shall be entitled to receive within two m nlhs after

incorporation, in case of subscribers to the memorandi n or after
allotment or within one month after the application for the re listration of
transfer or transmission or within such other period as the c:In,fitions of
issue shall be provided,-
(a) One certificate for all his shares without payment of any hurqes; or
(b) Several certificates, each for one or more of his st srus, upon

...... _.~~twen!Y l}J£ees for eac'!. £~r!!fic~leaft~.r:J11efir' !;,
8 Certificate shall specify Every certificate shall be under the seal and shall specify th ! !i hares to

amount paid-up which it relates and the amount paid-up thereon,

_yo
,. ,

)

9 In case of Joint Holders In respect of any share or shares held jointly by severn I aersons,
the Company shall not be bound to issue more than one c~rtiflcate,
and delivery of a certificate for a share to one of several je nl holders
shall be sufficient delivery to all such holders,

10 Issue of new
certificate in place
of one defaced, lost
or destroyed. _ ........ ..

If any share certificate be worn out, defaced, mutilated or ton C' if there
be no further space on the back for endorsement of transfer, th en upon
production and surrender thereof to the Company, a new cen fie ate may
be issued in lieu thereof, and if any certificate is lost or des11m ed th~n
UPQRproo' ther:eof t9 U:le sstisfastiOAef4fl&~, -e! (eetltien'

. .of SUChiDdemni~ as tbe .c.omp~.deem.adequate, a oewc: aificate_in
Ji.e,u thereof shalllle given. ellery. certificate under. this Artic II ~hall be
i!l~_lJ~~on payment Qftwenty rvQ~esfor each certificate.

11 In case of debenture The provisions of these Articles shall mutatis mutandis apply to
debentures of the Company.

12 No person shall be
recognized as holding
share of trust

Except as required by law, no person shall be recogniz d by the
Company as holding any share upon any trust, and the Comna iy shall
not be bound by, or be compelled in any way to recognize (e ..-Ein when
having notice thereof) any equitable, contingent, future or part ~I interest
in any share, or any interest in any fractional part of a share, )r (except
only as by these regulations or by law otherwise provided) anyother
rights in respect of any share except an absolute right to tt 9 entirety
thereof in the registered holder.

13 Disclosure
Commission

for The Company may exercise the powers. of paying COl misslons
conferred by sub-section (6) of section 40. provided that thl rite per
cent. or the amount of the commission paid or agreed to be pa j ! hall be
disclosed in the manner required by that section and ru 9S made
thereunder.

14 Percentage
commission

of The rate or amount of the commission shall not exceed tt ~ 'ate or
amount prescribed in rules made under SUb-section(6) of secti In 40,

3
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15 Mode of payment for The commission may be satisfied by the payment of cash or the
commission allotment of fully or partly paid shares or partly in the one way and partly

in the other.

16 In case of different class
of share

17 Issue of further Pari­
passu shares not to
affect the right of shares
already issued

(i) If at any time the share capital is divided into different classes of
shares, the rights attached to any class (unless otherwise provided by
the terms of issue of the shares of that class) may, subject to the
provisions of section 48, and whether or not the Company is being
wound up, be varied with the consent in writing of the holders of
three-fourths of the issued shares of that class, or with the sanction of
a special resolution passed at a separate meeting of the holders of
the shares of that class.

(ii) To every such separate meeting, the provisions of these regulations
relating to general meetings shall mutatis mutandis apply, but so that
the necessary quorum shall be at least two persons holding at least
one-third of the issued shares of the class in question.

The rights conferred upon the holders of the shares of any class issued
with preferred or other rights shall not, unless otherwise expressly
provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class, be deemed to
be varied by the creation or issue of further shares ranking pari passu
therewith.

18 of preference Subject to the provisions of section 55, any preference shares may,
with the sanction of an ordinary resolution, be issued on the terms
thetthey--8f'e-t&be reeeemea-en-sueft-.tefms aM i.,. st:ICnmaAfler as
the Company before the issue of the shares may,
by special resolution, determine.

Issue
share

19 Right towards lien

20 Extent of lien on share

21 Right to sell the share

LIEN

The Company shall have a first and paramount lien-
(a) On every share (not being a fully paid share), for all monies

(whether presently payable or not) called, or payable at a fixed
time, in respect of that share; and

_--r~ ~_~ '__ ' ' -'-"'~---""-~--" ~--~.~.- -- .•----~-----. - -----.~--.-..---.----- ..--.-. ---.--...
.tbL QQ_~.~~§!~~~(n~t~~~'l9.!~I~.e§lidsl1_~!e~)~t~l1~in9r~~i.~tE:!~Eldinthe

nam.eof a single person, for all monies presently payable by him or
fils estate to tfie company:

Provided that the Board of directors may at any time declare any share
to be wholly or in part exempt from the provisions of this clause.

The Company's lien, if any, on a share shall extend to all dividends
payable and bonuses declared from time to time in respect of such
shares.

The Company may sell, in such manner as the Board thinks fit, any

shares on which the company has a lien:

Provided that no sale shall be made-

(a) Unless a sum in respect of which the lien exists is presently
payable; or

(b) Until the expiration of fourteen days after a notice in writing
stating and demanding payment of such part of the amount in
respect of which the lien exists as is presently payable, has been
given to the registered holder for the time being of the share or
the person entitled thereto by reason of his death or insolvency.

4
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22 Validity of sale in
exercise of lien and
after forfeiture

23 Proceeds from sale of
share and its residues

24 Calls

25 Notice of Calls

26 Time for Calls

27 Gi!!~ in case of Joint Tilt iQim hQlgftf,$Qf Cjl share shall be jointly and severally liabl,: til pay all
Holders calls in resp~£tthereof.

28 Amount payable at
fixed times or by
installments payable
as calls

)
29 Calls attraction towards

interest, forfeiture,
expenses

30 Payments of call in
advance

(i) To give effect to any such sale, the Board may au' ro ise some
person to transfer the shares sold to the purchaser there Jf.

(ii) The purchaser shall be registered as the holder 01 tile shares
comprised in any such transfer.

(iiij The purchaser shall not be bound to see to the appli: :a1ion of the
purchase money, nor shall his title to the shares be aff': ctsd by any
irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings in reference 1:1 t ie sale.

(i) The proceeds of the sale shall be received by the C: 'mpany and
applied in payment of such part of the amount in rest sc of which
the lien exists as is presently payable.

(ii) The residue, if any, shall, subject to a like lien fc-: .sums not
presently payable as existed upon the shares before Ihe sale, be
paid to the person entitled to the shares at the date of tl e sale.

CALLS ON SHARES

The Board may, from time to time, make calls upon the rembers in
respect of any monies unpaid on their shares (whether on ac::01mt of the
nominal value of the shares or by way of premium) and n,:,t by the
conditions of allotment th!:~~.ofrnad~.E.il1able.atJixed ti~., _

Provided that no call shall exceed one-fourth of the nominal. al re of the
share or be payable at less than one month from the date he d for the
pa, merrfOf the tastprecedtng calt.

Each member shall, subject to receiving at least fourteen ( ays' notice
specifying the time or times and place of payment, pay to the Company,
at the time or times and place so specified, the amount co le j on his
shares.
A call may be revoked or postponed at the discretion of the B, a' d.

If a sum called in respect of a share is not paid before or en the day
appointed for payment thereof, the person from whom the s irr is due
shall pay interest thereon from the day appointed for paymem th ereof to
the time of actual payment at ten per cent. per annum or at : uch lower
rate, if any, as the Board may determine.
The Board shall be at liberty to waive payment of any SUt 1 'nterest
wholly or in part.

i) Any sum which by the terms of issue of a share bl icomes
payable on allotment or at any fixed date, whether all uccount
of the nominal value of the share or by way of prermurr , shatl
for the purposes of these regulations, be deemed to bl! a call
duly made and payable on the date on which by thE t~rms of
issue such sum becomes payable.

ii) In case of non-payment of such sum, all the relevant Iro zislons
of these regulations as to payment of interest and I' xr:enses,
forfeiture or otherwise shall apply as if such sum han become
payable by virtue of a call duly made and notified.

The Board-

5

65

 



31 Proceedings
transfer

towards

32 Directors' power to
reject application of
transfer

33 Board may decline the
Transfer

34 Closure of transfer
bo-oks

35 Nomination facility

36 Registration of
persons entitled to
shares by transmission

(a) may, if it thinks fit, receive from any member willing to advance
the same, all or any part of the monies uncalled and unpaid upon
any shares held by him; and

(b) upon all or any of the monies so advanced, may (until the same
would, but for such advance, become presently payable) pay
interest at such rate not exceeding, unless the Company in
general meeting shall otherwise direct, twelve per cent. per
annum, as may be agreed upon between the Board and the
member paying the sum in advance.

TRANSFER OF SHARES

(i) The instrument of transfer of any share in the Company shall be
executed by or on behalf of both the transferor and transferee.

(ii) The transferor shall be deemed to remain a holder of the share
until the name of the transferee is entered in the register
of members in respect thereof.

The Board may decline to recognize any instrument of transfer
unless-

(8) The instrument of transfer is in the form as prescribed in rules
made un<3ersuo-§eCli61'i(TroT'sectr611'50: .... Co_ ••••

(b) The instrument of transfer is accompanied by the certificate of
. -the ~8ff!8' te---WAief:l. ft-.-reIetes, .and- such other evidence a& the
Bo_ardmay reasonably require to show the right of the transferor
to make the transfer; and

(c) The instrument of transfer is in respect of only one class of
shares.

The Board may, subject to the right of appeal conferred by section 58
decline to register-

(a) the transfer of a share, not being a fully paid share, to a person
61worn melt do nOf iij5prClie; be • :-::- .. . _:==-..:.:~

..!Ql.gnY1ra'll2~rgf.§tLar~l>Qrt~ict!lh~.9~9rnpany bCi~a.li~n.
On giVing not less than seven days' previous notice in accordance with
section 91 and rules made therelll1der, the registration oftransfers' may
be suspended at such. times and for such periods as the Board may
from time to time determine:

Provided that such registration shall not be suspended for more than
thirty days at anyone time or for more than forty-five days in the
aggregate in any year.

TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

(i) On the death of a member, the survivor or survivors where the
member was a joint holder, and his nominee or nominees or legal
representatives where he was a sole holder, shall be the only
persons recognized by the Company as having any title to his
interest in the shares.

(ii) Nothing in clause (i) shall release the estate of a deceased joint
holder from any liability in respect of any share which had been
jointly held by him with other persons.

(i) Any person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of
the death or insolvency of a member may, upon such
evidence being produced as may from time to time properly
be required by the Board and subject as hereinafter provided,

6
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elect, either-
(a) to be registered himself as holder of t Ie share; or
(b) to make such transfer of the share as the je ceased or
insolvent member could have made.

The Board shall, in either case, have the same ri!1ht to decline
or suspend registration as it would have had, if t .e deceased
or insolvent member had transferred the shar. before his
death or insolvency.

37 Persons entitled may
receive dividends
without being registered
as members

A person becoming entitled to a share by reason of tr e death or
insolvency of the holder shall be entitled to the same di 0 ie ends and
other advantages to which he would be entitled if he were tt : Iegistered
holder of the share, except that he shall not, before being r !glstered as
a member in respect of the share, be entitled in respect of i tc exercise
any right conferred by membership in relation to meet 'I!;s of the
company.

Provided that the Board may, at any time, give notice requiri g any such
person to elect either to be registered himself or to transfe tile share,
and if the notice is not complied with within ninety days, the BIlard may
thereafter withhold payment of all dividends, bonuses or 0 1f~r monies

~~~~~~"" oc.'-·'·"·~~·~~._.=.,.~.=c".• '0 ...... ,0<' :;~b~:~~!~!7t~~Jb~~e..until .the..reQuiremeols,1lLtb~1£1~Jla:!le.

38 Transfer in case of
trnrrsfl!'r' l5eTrfg" elecTed (i) If t'l~ Person .so b~comjng entitled shall elect to be n ~j:uered as

fferaer anhe snare himself, ne sffi:lTf deliver or s ~rd to tne
company a notice in wribng signed by him stating th:lt he so
elects.

(ii) If the person aforesaid shall elect to transfer the sha e he shall
testify his election by executing a transfer of the share

(iii) All the limitations, restrictions and provrsions of these e: iulations
relating to theright to transfer and the registration of 'ausfers of

.-....-----~-~ ...•---. -~~-'-"-"''_' .. -............ shares shall be applicable to aoy SIICh l1O.tice.•.at_ :allSfer....as
afolesaid as if1he death or insolverrcy ofihe'-memt rr tlad rIOt·

. ·QGQ","&G_Rd·-tI:I&·4lQtiGe .{}f..tf-aRSfer were· a transfer sj'trte& ..ey
that mer:rtber.

FORFEITURE OF SHARES

39 If call or installment
not paid, notice may be
given

If a member fails to pay any call, or installment of a cail, ( n the day
appointed for payment thereof, the Board may, at any time ttl ereafter
during such time as any part of the call or installment remai IS unpaid,
serve a notice on him requiring payment of so much of 1re call or
installment as is unpaid, together with any interest which n" y have
accrued.

)

40 Form of notice The notice aforesaid shall-

(a) Name a further day (not being earlier than the expiry ( 'f iurteen
days from the date of service of the notice) on or bel )rl! which
the payment required by the notice is to be made; and

)

(b) State that, in the event of non-payment on or before t e day so
named, the shares in respect of which the call was mac ~ :hall be
liable to be forfeited.

41 If notice not complied
with, shares may be
forfeited

If the requirements of any such notice as aforesaid are not cc:mplied
with, any share in respect of which the notice has been give! r lay, at
any time thereafter, before the payment required by the notice ias been
made, be forfeited by a resolution of the Board to that effect.

_} 7
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42 Powers
towards
share

to Board
forfeiture of

43 Arrears to be paid
notwithstanding
forfeiture

44 Title of purchaser
and allottee of
forfeited shares

45 Application of
Forfeiture

46 Power to Increase
the Share Capital

47 In Case of Conversion
of Shares into Stocks

(i) A forfeited share may be sold or otherwise disposed of on
such terms and in such manner as the Board thinks fit.

(ii) At any time before a sale or disposal as aforesaid, the Board
may cancel the forfeiture on such terms as it thinks fit.

(i) A person whose shares have been forfeited shall cease to be
a member in respect of the forfeited shares, but shall,
notwithstanding the forfeiture, remain liable to pay to the
Company all monies which, at the date of forfeiture, were
presently payable by him to the Company in respect of the
shares.
The liability of such person shall cease if and when the
Company shall have received payment in full of all such
monies in respect of the shares.

(ii)

(i) A duly verified declaration in writing that the declarant is a.
director, the manager or the secretary, of the Company, and
that a share in the Company has been duly forfeited on a date
stated in the declaration, shall be conclusive evidence of the
facts therein stated as against all persons claiming to be
entitled to the share;

(11)' . Tfie Company may receive tFieconsloeraliol1,lTany, grvenTcir
the share on any sale or disposal thereof and may execute a
transfer of the share in favour of the person to whom the
stTare-is" -softtor disposed of;

(iii) The fransteree shall thereupon be registered as the holder of
the share; and

(iv) The transferee shall not be bound to see to the appiication of
the purchase money, if any, nor shall his title to the share be
affected by any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings in
reference to the forfeiture, sale or disposal of the share.

The provisions of these regulations as to forfeiture shall apply in the
_~case of non~payment of an~ sum which, by. the terms of issue_of a.

iR;;II:8, be~omei piiI¥iilble ilt iii fixed time, 'Alilelber OR iilccounl ~tAe. '
nominaL~a1ue..,Qtthe. share. CLby wa)'_m.pr.em1u.Il1","'lSif the same had
been paYli!bl~byvirtu~of a call,dyly made-andnotifi,ed

ALTERATION OF CAPITAL

The Company may, from time to time, by ordinary resolution increase
the share capital by such sum, to be divided into shares of such amount,
as may be specified in the resolution.
Subject to the provisions of section 61, the Company may, by ordinary
resolution,-
(a) consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital into shares of

larger amount than its existing shares;
(b) convert all or any of its fully paid-up shares into stock, and reconvert

that stock into fully paid-up shares of any denomination;
(c) sub-divide its existing shares or any of them into shares of smaller

amount than is fixed by the memorandum;
(d) cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution,

have not been taken or agreed to be taken by any person.

Where shares are converted into stock,-
(a) the holders of stock may transfer the same or any part thereof in the

same manner as, and subject to the same regulations under which,
the shares from which the stock arose might before the conversion
have been transferred, or as near thereto as circumstances admit:

8
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Provided that the Board may, from time to time, fix 111eminimum
amount of stock transferable, so, however, that such minimum shall
not exceed the nominal amount of the shares from wh :h the stock
arose.

(b) The holders of stock shall, according to the amount of S or k held by
them, have the same rights, privileges and advantaqen a s regards
dividends, voting at meetings of the Company, and othe - rr atters, as
if they held the shares from which the stock arose; _ut no such
privilege or advantage (except participation in the di',id,mds and
profits of the Company and in the assets on winding .P: shall be
conferred by an amount of stock which would not, i' e I(isting in
shares, have conferred that privilege or advantage.

(c) Such of the regulations of the Company as are applicabl. t) paid-up
shares shall apply to stock and the words "share" and "s ra reholder"
in those regulations shall include "stock" and "soc k-holder'
respectively _

48 Provision for reduction The Company may, by special resolution, reduce in any r .anner and
of Capital with, and subject to, any incident authorized and consent ecuired by

law,-
-....-- ..-~--~-.~ .•----~---.--..---.•-.-~.-••,-.--....-.~,•.~ ~_._._'"•.~,__ (al its share capital' __ .~. . . ... ~_~.~_•..__
- ) (b) any capital redemption reserve account; or

(c) any share premium account.

CAPIT.At.rzATIONOF'PRoms
• -J

49 Capitalization of
Reserves

(i) The Company in general meeting may,
recommendation of the Board, resolve-

IP'ln the

,
i

(a) That it is desirable to capitalize any part of the amc.rr: for the
time being standing to the credit of any of the Compan ,'~;reserve
accounts, or to the credit of the profit and loss a :c, nmt, or
otherwise available for distribution; and

-----------------,,----.---...(.bL That such SIIFU he accordingly set tree for dlstnbu. OJ: '---.in....the_
-----------.------------ 1118.Iiler speCified iii claUSe<ii) allioligst tire members-. iIh :J-wut:Jftt'- -

-,Aa~ DeeR emitledthereto, if ~-by way of di\ dHndcand
in th"samepr-oportions.

~}­

-T
(ii) The sum aforesaid shall not be paid in cash but shall t :l .spplied,

subject to the provision contained in clause (iii), either in or
towards-

)

(A) Paying up any amounts for the time being unpaid on a I}' shares
held by such members respectively;

(B) Paying up in full, unissued shares of the Company to t e allotted
and distributed, credited as fully paid-up, to and amo Ig!it such
members in the proportions aforesaid;

(C) Partly in the way specified in sub-clause (A) and partly in that
specified in sub-clause (B);

(D) A securities premium account and a capital redemptio I I' sserve
account may, for the purposes of this regulation, be app eo:'in the
paying up of unissued shares to be issued to rnembs 's of the
Company as fully paid bonus shares;

(E) The Board shall give effect to the resolution passe I )y the
Company in pursuance of this regulation.

50 When Resolution (i) Whenever such a resolution as aforesaid shall have been ps ss.ed,
passed by Board and its the Board shall-
Powers

(a) make all appropriations and applications of the undividec profits
resolved to be capitalized thereby, and all allotments anc is sues

)
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of fully paid shares if any; and
(b) generally do all acts and things required to give effect thereto.

(ii) The Board shall have power-

(a) to make such provisions, by the issue of fractional certificates or
by payment in cash or otherwise as it thinks fit, for the case of
shares becoming distributable in fractions; and

(b) to authorize any person to enter, on behalf of all the members
entitled thereto, into an agreement with the Company providing
for the allotment to them respectively, credited as fully paid-up, of
any further shares to which they may be entitled upon such
capitalization, or as the case may require, for the payment by the
Company on their behalf, by the application thereto of their
respective proportions of profits resolved to be capitalized, of the
amount or any part of the amounts remaining unpaid on their
existing shares;

(iii) Any agreement made under such authority shall be effective and
binding on such members.

BUY-BACK OF SHARES

" '5'f ''Btfy:oacKofsFiares ., n' Notwithstanding anYthing containecriii1ffese' ai'bcTes'151lfsufSJecno'tffe
provisions of s-ections68 to 70 and any other applicable provision of the
Act or any other law for the time b~.ing in force, the Company may
I*'reAseeite 8\f"iA e~liIre8er e&neF speeif~ sec-urfties,

GENERAL MEETINGS

52 Extra Ordinary
General Meeting

All general meetings other than annual general meeting shall be called
extraordinary general meeting.

53 Calling of an EGM (i) The Board may, whenever it thinks fit, call an extraordinary general
meeting

If. at aby tiiiie drreCtors capaoleJlfl@m:rrWffiLafesrjffrae:non: ... __ .
number to. form a gu01J.l1'!lE!~Dot 'Y!tI}[lJnru<t. ~!:lY,di~~C:!9~_2.r:..c:!ny
~() ~f!:11.:I~",~t~,J~ompany Olay c:a.1I ~n ~~raor~i!1ary 9_eneral
meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
such ameeting ma}i becalled by the Board.

PROCEEDINGS OF THE GENERAL MEETINGS

54 Quorum to be No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a
present when business quorum of members is present at the time when the meeting proceeds
commenced to business.

Save as otherwise provided herein, the quorum for the general meetings
shall be as provided in section 103.

55 Chairperson of General The Chairperson, if any, of the Board shall preside as Chairperson at
Meetings every general meeting of the company.

If there is no such Chairperson, or if he is not present within fifteen
minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting, or is unwilling
to act as Chairperson of the meeting, the directors present shall elect
one of their members to be Chairperson of the meeting.

If at any meeting no director is willing to act as Chairperson or if no
director is present within fifteen minutes after the time appointed for
holding the meeting, the members present shall choose one of their
members to be Chairperson of the meeting.

10
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56 Power to adjourn
General Meeting

57 Ruies for
Meeting

ADJOURNMENT OF THE MEETING

The Chairperson may, with the consent of any meeting al which a
quorum is present, and shall, if so directed by the meeting adjourn the
meeting from time to time and from place to place.

Adjourned (i) No business shall be transacted at any adjourned meetir I other than
the business left unfinished at the meeting from 'I,hich the
adjournment took place.

(ii) When a meeting is adjourned for thirty days or more, r )ti ce of the
adjourned meeting shall be given as in the case of a' 1 original
meeting.

(iii) Save as aforesaid, and as provided in section 103 of the A,:t, it shall
not be necessary to give any notice of an adjournmei t )r of the
business to be transacted at an adjourned meeting.

-)
58 How questions to be

decided at meetings

VOTING RIGHTS

Subject to any rights or restrictions for the time being attar 1E! d to any
class or classes of shares,-
-_~L~.L~Q_[!t!OW of ba.nd~L~~EZ!Y",'1LE1m2.~.LQ[~~er1tJl!J2£!rsQ!',§!191LJt9'i~

one vote; and
(b) On a poll, the voting rights of members shall be in p )J: ortion to

his share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Cor IP,my.

59 Electronic Vote A member may exercise his vote at a meeting by electroni nleans in
accordance with section '108 and shall vote only once.

60 In case of Joint Holders In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tend ~r::a vote,
whether in person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exch .i-:n of the
votes of the other joint holders.

... -'. . .--- -_. -- -. F;:orthis purpose, seniority ,shall.be determin~c;l~ th~Qrder ir ~I tliclLttle
•..... - ....•.• 'h" , -·~-~--,~ame8staRe-i,. tRe Fegi!HeFo#meR'leeFs,· --~ .__• __... h •• _.'_,, __ ._

61 Disqu;alificatioo
member to vote

62 Business may proceed
Notwithstanding

r: demand for poll

63 No member entitled
to vote etc while

) call due to Company

64 Objection raised in case
of Qualification of Voter

i

'-;"
J

of A member of unsound.mind,. or in respect of whom an.orde! aus.been
mi:lde by 1:lr1Y.covrt hayingjurisdiction in lunacy, may vote, wt ~t:'ier on a
show of hands or on a poll, by his committee or other lega, gl iardian,
and any such committee or guardian may, on a poll, vote by p! )):(.

Any business other than that upon which a poll has been Ie' nanded
may be proceeded with, pending the taking of the poll.

No member shall be entitled to vote at any general meeting mless all
calls or other sums presently payable by him in respect of she 'e ; in the
company have been paid.

(i) No objection shall be raised to the qualification of any voter e:,cept at
the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the vote obje :11:d to is
given or tendered, and every vote not disallowed at sucl meetinq
shall be valid for all purposes.

(ii) Any such objection made in due time shall be referre d to the
Chairperson of the meeting, whose decision shall be in 31 and
conclusive.

11
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65 Procedure for
appointment of Proxy

66 Form of Proxy

67 When vote by proxy
valid, though
authority revoked

PROXY

The instrument appointing a proxy and the power-of-attorney or other
authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarized copy of that
power or authority, shall be deposited at the registered office of the
Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting
or adjourned meeting at which the person named in the instrument
proposes to vote, or, in the case of a poll, not less than 24 hours before
the time appointed for the taking of the poll; and in default the instrument
of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

An instrument appointing a proxy shall be in the form as prescribed in
the rules made under section 105.

A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of proxy
shall be valid, notwithstanding the previous death or insanity of the
principal or the revocation of the prexy or of the authority under which
the proxy was executed, or the transfer of the shares in respect of which
the proxy is given.

Provided that no intimation in writing of such death, insanity, revocation
or transfer shall have been received by the Company at its office before
the commencem~nt. of the meet!!!.a...~r adjou~,!!~d.!:I'leeting.~.~i£.h~th!l
proxy IS used.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
---- -, - - - .

68 Management of Affairs Subject to the provisions of the Act, the business of the Company shall
be managed by a Board of Directors.

69 Number of Directors

70 Appointment of
Directors on the
Board of Directors

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 or any
amendment or re-enactment thereof, the number of Directors of the
Company shall not be less than 3 (three) and not more than 15 (fifteen)
including independent directors. The Directors shall not be required to
hold qualification shares and their remuneration, if any, shall be
determined b~ CMD, RVPN. The First Directors of the Company are;. __

.~ ..Mr..liajeru;IraErasacLaar:waL
Oil. Mr..ShJiniWS$Vijay
{iH)Jv1r.Rajendra Kumar A.9.al'\\f~1

(a) Subject to the provisions of the Act, the CMD, RVPN shall have the
right to nominate and appoint all the Directors of the Board of the
Company and shall have also the right to remove the Director(s)
from office at any time at its absolute discretion and appoint
another/others in his/their place (s) and also fill any vacancy which
may occur as a result of such Directors(s) ceasing to hold office for
any reason whatsoever

(b) Subject to the provisions of the Act, the CMD, RVPN shall have the
right to nominate and appoint one or more of the Directors to the
office of the Chairperson of the Board of Directors or Managing
Director or Whole time Director of the Company for such term and
on such remuneration and/or allowance as it may think fit subject to
the provisions of the Act and at any time remove him/them from
office and appoint another/others in his/their place(s).

(c) The Directors appointed or nominated by the CMD, RVPN shall hold
office until removed by him or until their resignation, retirement, and
death or otherwise.

12
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71 Additional Director

)
72 Nominee Directors

Subject to the provisions of the Companies act 2013 , the Board may,
appoint one or more persons as additional director wh!:h shall not
exceed the maximum number fixed by these articles. T "e additional
directors so appointed shall hold office upto the date 01 the next
Annual General Meeting and shall be eligible for re 8f: pointment
by the Company at that meeting.

Subject to provisions of the Act, or any amendment or I s-unactment
thereof where any financial institutions or Banks lend to the ~t: mpany or
give guarantees in connection with the grant of a loan to or 1€! supply of
machinery or other equipment for the company, such Fls/ Banks shall
be entitled to nominate a Director or Directors of the conpany, who
shall be called as Nominee Director of such institution/ bar k, if that be
agreed to as a condition of the grant of loan or giving of sue £1uarantee.
The Director so appointed would have the same powers ar d Drivileges
as other Directors of the Company.

73 Appointment of Subject to provisions of the Companies Act, or any arnenc I'llmt or re-
Independent Directors enactment thereof the Company shall have power to a pi lint such

number of Independent Directors as it may deem fit and in ac cordance
with the applicable laws, for a term specified in the order apr )i' Iting him.
An Independent Director may be appointed to hold office for I rraximum

... ~" term of !J1;l to fi~~ cOpsecutiye years QDJbe Board ,gf...1he...~ llllao¥ aDd
shall be eligible for re-appointment. No Independent Directc . :! hall hold
office for more than two consecutive terms.

74 Rel"t'lUneratlorl01
Directors (fJ TIl'! reffiUtietafioiiofffie direCtors shalT, iii so far as it c in .ists 6f a

monthly payment, be deemed to accrue frOO1 day-to-da '.

(ii) In addition to the remuneration payable to them in Pl "SIISnCeof
the Act, the directors may be paid all travelling, hote a id other
expenses properly incurred by them-

(a) In attending and returning from meetings of the I: oard of
Directors or any committee thereof or general meet n!; s of the
company; or

.......- _.- __ -.- ~ - - --.-.-.~- ..l.!ll. In connection With the .business oftha Company

75 Electronic
PartiCipation

·Ibe.~.may PCl¥··aU.'~f>8Rses.incuFfeGin gettiA!tUf) aM e,!listefing
the company.

Subject to applicable law, Directors may participate and vot ii' Board
meetings by video or telephone conferencing or any other rn sans of
communication, in the manner permitted under applicable lav and shall
be counted for the purpose of quorum; provided that the plac ! ,; t which
the Chairperson sits shall be considered the place of the Boan n' eeting.

r<- 76 r Signing of Books for Every director present at any meeting of the Board or of a 0' nmittee
Record thereof shall sign his name in a book to be kept for that purpos ~.

77 Directors may act
notwithstanding
vacancy

78 When office of
Director deemed
to be vacated

J

The continuing Directors or Director may act notwithstar ji'lg any
vacancy in the Board but, so that, if their number falls l.elow the
minimum above fixed, the Directors or Director shall not eXCE)1 for the
purpose of filling vacancies or summoning a General Meetir ~, act so
long as the number is below the minimum.

(a) Subject to the provisions of Companies Act, 201: nr any
amendment or re-enactment thereof the office of Dire ;Ic:r shall
become vacant if :

i) He incurs any of the disqualifications specified I , • ection
164; or

13
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79 Proceedings of.. ..... __.
Cir:eaors .•--.-~ -- •

80 Decision of
Questions

81 In case of shortfall
of quorum while
proceeding Board
Meeting

82 Chairperson of
the Meetings

ii) He absents himself from all the meetings of the Board of
Directors held during a period of twelve months with or
without seeking leave of absence of the Board; or

iii) He acts in contravention of the provisions of section 184
relating to entering into contracts or arrangements in
which he is directly or indirectly interested; or

Iv) He fails to disclose his interest in any contract or
arrangement in which he is directly or indirectly
interested, in contravention of the provisions of section
184; or

v) He becomes disqualified by an order of a court or the
Tribunal.

vi) He is convicted by a court of any offence, whether
involving moral turpitude or otherwise and sentenced in
respect thereof to imprisonment for not less than six
months; or

vii) He is removed in pursuance of the provisions of this Act;
or

viii) He, having been appointed a director by virtue of his
holding any office or other employment in the holding,
subsidlsf Y llr associate eompal '1,-ceases to hotd, such
office or other employment in that Company; or

(b) Subject to the provisions of the Act a Director may resign his
office at any time by notice in writing addressed to the Company
or to the Board of Directors.

PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS

i) The Board of Directors may meet for the conduct of busin_~~~,
adjoum iilAd oU:l.r:l"is. r:egulat. "Ii R:l8.tiRg&, as it tRiRks fit·· _.

ii) A. director may,.IllfLttlafJ.lanag,er or 3.eCfetaryon the requisition
of a director shall, ~t~y time, summon a m~eting of the Board.

Save as otherwise expressly provided in the Act, questions arising at
any meeting of the Board shall be decided by a majority of votes.

In case of an equality of votes, the Chairperson of the Board, if any,
shall have a second or casting vote.

The continuing directors may act notwithstanding any vacancy in the
Board; but, if and so long as their number is reduced below the quorum
fixed by the Act for a meeting of the Board, the continuing directors or
director may act for the purpose of increasing the number of directors to
that fixed for the quorum, or of summoning a general meeting of the
Company, but for no other purpose.

(i) The Board may elect a Chairperson of its meetings and
determine the period for which he is to hold office.

(ii) If no such Chairperson is elected, or if at any meeting the
Chairperson is not present within five minutes after the time
appointed for holding the meeting, the directors present may
choose one of their member to be Chairperson of the
meeting.
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83 Discretion to form a
Committee

84 Chairperson of the
Committee Meetings

85 Decision of
Questions - in case of
Committee Meetings

"86 -;A.Ctsof Boailor'-
Committee valid
notwithstanding
tte1'ectlve
appointment etc.

87 Resolution by
circulation

88 General power of
the Board

89 Certain powers to be
, exercised by

Directors only at a
meeting

(i) The Board may, subject to the provisions of the ,!.ct, delegate
any of its powers to committees consisting of sue r iernber or
members of its body as it thinks fit.

(ii) Any committee so formed shall, in the exercise 01 UIe powers
so delegated, conform to any regulations til at ma~ b~!imposed
on it by the Board.

(i) A committee may elect a Chairperson of its rneetinps.

(ii) If no such Chairperson is elected, or if at any InE eting the
Chairperson is not present within five minutes ar er the time
appointed for holding the meeting, the members i resent may
choose one of their members to be Chairperson of I Ie meeting.

(i) A committee may meet and adjourn as it thinks fit.

(ii) Questions arising at any meeting of a committee shall be dl.termined
by a majority of votes of the members present, and in c, se of an
equality of votes, the Chairperson shall have a secon« c r casting
vote.

-.-.".---~--~=.'~-~.-----~=-~,~~.....~~.-..~.....-".._._._---.--~~..
acts done in any meeting of the Board or of a cornmitteu t iereof or

by any person acting as a director, shall, notwithstanding th t i~may be
afterwards oiscovered that there WaS some defect in the ap~llh ument of
a"ny'one ormofeoTsUCff arrecTors-or of any person acli,,!j"a: .aforesaid,
or that they or any of them were disqualified, be as valid as if e~ery such
director or such person had been duly appointed and was qu.Ilii ed to be
a director.

Save as otherwise expressly provided in the Act, a resolutio i'l writing,
signed by all the members of the Board or of a committee Ihereof, for
the time being entitled to receive notice of a meeting of thl! Isoard or
committee, shall be valid and effective as if it had been p lSI .ed at a
meeting of the Bpard pr committee, dlllV convened and held .• _.__ .. _.~-------------~--------- _._._--------------

--P-OWaRS-~.:rWi BOARD ~ OJRECTORS

the S'oard shan h~ve--fullpower to' direct the activities ofthe Company.
The -daily management' and operation of -the Compan~ ~Ihall be
delegated to the CEO andlor Managing Director and )ti ier key
managerial personnel in accordance with the approved Bus: 1ess Plan
and in compliance with terms of Agreement.

The Board of Directors of the Company shall exercise th« 11>lIowing
powers on behalf of the Company, and it shall do so, only b} means of
resolutions passed at meeting of the Board of Di et:tors _

a) to make calls on shareholders in respect of money lin laid on
their shares;

b) to authorize buy-back of securities under section 68;
c) to issue securities, including debentures, whether in Ir outside

India;
d) to borrow monies;
e) to invest the funds of the company;
f) to grant loans or give guarantee or provide security in e!;pect of

loans.
g) to approve financial statement and the Board's report
h) to diversify the business of the company
i) to approve amalgamation, merger or reconstruction
j) to take over a company or acquire a controllinq or sub stantial

stake in another company
k) any other matter which may be prescribed:

15

75

 



Provided that the Board of Directors may, by a resolution passed at a
meeting, delegate to any Committee of Directors, the Managing
Director, the Manager or any other principal officer of the Company
or in the case of a branch office of the Company, a principal officer of
the branch office the powers specified in clauses (d), (e) and (f) as it
may specify c

90 Specific powers
given to Directors

Without prejudice to the general powers conferred by the last preceding
Article and the other powers conferred by these presents it is hereby
expressly declared that the Board shall have the following powers, that
is to say, power;

a) To pay the costs, charges and expenses preliminary and
incidental to the promotion, formation, establishment and
registration of the Company

b) To purchase or otherwise acquire for the Company, any property,
rights or privileges which the Company is authorized to acquire at
such price and generally on such terms and conditions, as they
think fit and in any such purchase or other acquisition to accept
such title as the Directors may believe or may be advised to be
necessarily satisfactory

. "~'''"'-'''''''''' ...c) To insure and Keep insured agalnsf loss ordamage '6Tfireor
otherwise for such period and to such extent as they may think
proper an ofC!ny part of th~ buildings, machin~l)', gC)ods,stores,

. plodoc-e ·am:t-~"iol1able p"operty ot'ttTe'" COltlPSflY either
se.paratelyor jointly; also to Jnsure all QI" any portion of the goods,
produce, machinery and other articles imported or exported by
the Company and to sell, assign, surrender or discontinue any
policies of assurance effected in pursuance of this power

.d) To open accounts with any bank or bankers or with any
company, firm or individual and to pay moneys into and draw
moneys from any such account from time to time as the Directors

•. c. , _ .. ~ •••••• _._ ••~_maythi~ fit ._._ .•_."•. .,~_...._ .._ ....." .•.....

el ....AlJbeiLdi$~JQ"J;l.aV ..fOL.aIl¥JlCSlPedy..."rigbts ,Cl"~pri\(ileges
iQql,!iJ'.ed~y._QLii.fIlt~'lem;t~e.d toJhe .companY,.ei*her wholly
o~J)~r:tl~11yif')c~~!'1()~.in..~.t!~.~e!.~Ll>.C)'!~~J~e!~~n!!'!rl:ls.,m()rtg~ges. or
other securities of the Company and any such shares may be
issued either as fuJly paid up or with such amounts credited as
fully paid up thereon as may be agreed upon, and any such
bonds, debentures, mortgages or other securities may be either
specifically charged upon all or any part of the property of the
Company and its uncalled capital or not so charged

f) To secure the fulfillment of any contracts or agreements entered
into by the Company by mortgage or charge of all or any of the
properties of the Company and its uncalled capital for the time
being or in such other manner as they may think fit

g) To appoint and at their discretion, remove or suspend, such
committee or committees of experts, technicians or advisers,
such managers, secretaries, officers, clerks, agents and servants
for permanent, temporary or special services, as they may from
time to time think fit and to determine their powers and duties and
fix their salaries or emoluments and to require security in such
instances and to such amount as they think fit

h) To contribute to any charitable object of public utility within the
limits prescribed under the provisions of the Act
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i) To support and subscribe to any institution, society r ,;Iub which
may be for the benefit of the Company or its emplc /e es or may
be connected with any town or place where the Cornpsny carries
on business to give pensions, gratuities, bonuses I lr charitable
aid to any person or persons who have served the ::;(mpany or
to the wives, children, or dependants of such person <: r persons
that may appear to the Directors just or proper whet· el any such
person, his widow, children or dependants have 01 ,..ave not a
legal claim upon the Company

j) Subject to the provisions of the Act to accept from e 1y member,
on such terms and conditions as shall be agreed, a iU 'render of
his shares or any part thereof

k) To appoint any person or persons (whether mcorpoi stud or not)
to accept and hold in trust for the Company a Iy property
belonging to the Company or in which it is intereste I :Ir for any
other purposes and to execute and do all such deed and things
as may be requisite in relation to any such trust and tl P'ovide for
the remuneration of such trustee or trustees

I) To institute, conduct, defend, compound or abando I .my legal
prQceeding_s,by Q~ against ~~mL...QL~" Q:t ~~J)r
otherwise concerning the affairs of the Company ,.n,:' also to
compound and allow time for payment or satisfac: i011of any
d~I*~ .dlje and of any claims or demands by or Ig~unst the
Camj:5~fiY

m) To refer any claims or demands by or against the C oripany to
arbitration

n) To make and give receipts, releases and other disr: harqes for
moneys payable to the Company and for the r ai 11S and
demands of the Company

4-~·~·······~·~--·--·-·-~~,....•...".,."....., ,_ '__"H _- Q} TQ getg:rmine wtJQ shallbeentitled lo...sign 00 the :.cl~'s.
,--..,-.---.-.--.-----.---. ~-.-.~ ..-.~-------.,.. beJolelf bill!'!, Mote!'!, receipts, acceptances, end tr.!emerns-;" '

···.·...~ues, !eJeasest"~aGtsand documems

p) To providefrom time to time, for the management of tt u tffairs of
the Company in such manner as they think fit and in prl cular to
appoint any person to be the attorneys or agents of the C ompany
with such powers (including power to sub-delegate) ar d upon
such terms as may be thought fit. The Board may s rb11it and
delegate any matter, function or responsibility to a Me 1"gement
Committee, Investment Committee or any othe : special
committee established by the Board as it may deem al P'opriate,
under guidelines which it may determine.

q) To invest and deal with any of the moneys of the COI.lpmy not
immediately required for the purposes thereof u '011 such
securities (not being shares in this Company) anc i 1 such
manner as they may think fit and from time to time :> .Jary or
realize such investments, provided however, that the profits, if
any, arising on the sale or change of investmen s of the
Company, unless prohibited by any other statute for 11' e time
being in force, shall be treated as capital moneys and ;" ried to
the Capital Reserve Account

r) To execute in the name and on behalf of the Compan, 1favor
of any Director or other person who may incur or be al iout to
incur any personal liability for the benefit of the Comp nj; such
mortgages of the Company's property (present and l' Itl. re) as
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they think fit and any such mortgage may contain a power of sale
and such other powers, covenants and provisions as shall be
agreed upon.

s) To give to any person employed by the Company a commission
on the profits of any particular business or transaction or a share
in the general profits of the Company and such commission or
share of profits shall be treated as part of the working expenses
of the Company

t) From time to time, to make, vary and repeal rules and regulations
for the conduct of the business and affairs of the Company, its
officers and servants

u) Subject to the provisions of the Act and these presents for or in
relation to any of the matters aforesaid or otherwise for the
purposes of the Company to enter into all such negotiations and
contracts and rescind and vary all such contracts and execute
and do all such acts, deeds and things in the name of and on
behalf of the Company as they may consider expedient for or in
relation to any of the matters aforesaid or otherwise for the
purposes of the Company

..........•.•.•......•. ·····vr·'Sefore recommenaing 'anY"OIvTcrerla~ana"suojea ~to·c1he
requirements of Section 123 of the Act, to set aside out of the
profits. of the Company. such sums as they think proper. for
depreeiation "or··to-a-Bepreciatioll Fund or 10 an Insurance ~und
or ~~.~ Reserve Fund or Sinking FYnd or any Special Fund to
meet contingencies or to repay debentures or debenture-stock or
for special dividends or for equalizing dividends or for repairing,
improving, extending and maintaining any of the properties of the
Company and for such other purposes, as the Board of Directors
may, in their absolute discretion, think conducive to the interest of
the Company and subject to Section 179 of the Act to invest the
several sums so set aside or so much thereof as required to be
invested, upon such investments (other than shares of the
cojj\pan~t) as they a:aaytbiak fit aDd ftQa:! tla:!1iI to tiiiia deal with:
.and vary sucll imle~n1§.gnd.~gse.gf.ancl.ap.p.l)1. and exp.end
aIl9fJID¥..Ri!'!JbefeQf fQr the Q.EM'lefiL9fthe CornPc!I1Y,in .sUch
mal1n~'-~!l<!f~~.~uchpurposes asthe E3e>ardof Directors, in their
absolute discretion conducive to the interest of the Company,
notwithstanding that the matters, to which the Board of Directors
apply or upon which they expend the same or any part thereof
may be matters, to or upon which the capital moneys of the
Company might rightly be applied or expended; and to divide the
Reserve Fund into such special funds as the Board of Directors
may think fit, and to employ the assets constituting all 'or any of
the above funds, including the Depreciation Fund, in the business
of the Company or in the purchase or repayment of debentures
or debenture-stock and that without being bound to keep the
same separate from the other assets and without being bound to
pay interest on the same, with power however to the Board of
Directors at their discretion to payor allow to the credit of such
funds interest at such rate as the Board of Directors may think
proper

w) To pay and charge to the capital account of the Company any
commission or interest lawfully payable there from under the
provisions of Sections 40 of the Act

x) To comply with the requirements of any local law which in their
opinion it shall in the interests of the Company be necessary or
expedient to comply with
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From time to time and at any time to establish any Local Board
for managing any of the affairs of the Company in :In:' specified
locality in India or elsewhere and to appoint any erson to be
members of such Local Board or any managers or c' ~E:nts and to
fix their remuneration

Subject to the provisions of Section 179 of the Act fn: m time to
time, and at any time to delegate to any such Local Eo.,rd, or any
member or members thereof of any managers so a, pointed any
of the powers, authorities and discretions for the ti l1e being
vested in the Board of Directors, and to authorize he members
for the time being of any such Local Board, or any (' f t rem to fill
up any vacancies therein and to act notwithstandin. vacancies:
and any such appointment or delegation may be m d'l! on such
terms and subject to such conditions as the Board )f Directors
may think fit, and the Board of Directors may at any me remove
any person so appointed, and may annul or var: .my such
delegation

aa) Generally subject to the provisions of the Act and the ie, presents
to delegate the powers, authorities and discretions vusled in the

4'-"' ,.~~'~~~'~~~''''~"'',"~,~.,="-. " ••~,. -""""" "'~""~ Directors to any per~mmitt~e, .firm, CompaQl.~ JI,J&tLialiml
body of persons.

MINUTES

91 Minutes The Company shall. cause minutes of all proceedings of ew ry General
Meeting and of all proceedings of every meeting of its Board If )irectors
or of every Committee of the Board to be kept as and in re manner
prescribed under Section 118 of the Act.

Any such minutes, if purporting to be signed by the Chairpe son of the
Meeting at which the proceedings take place or by the Chs rperson of
the next succeeding meeting shall be evidence of the procee( in!IS.

~-••••.~...-.--..=-.--..::.- . a3-'-P-r-&-&Y-FM-~-ti-eRs-,t&-*--':::,WAere miflutes ef t"'e I'l'oeeedi"gs· of ~my ee,,~rat M;;e1~:~;fih;
dr.awn wbere., . Compatl¥.or ,QLan)L.-'meetin9 ..,Q.Ltbe. Boara....QJ;..Qt.... Commi .lei •. ()f the
mj~$ dul~ ..drawn Directorshave been made and signed in accordance witn the Pi' i)visions
CirelSigneci QLthe§e cresents an,Lthe Act. then. untiL the .contrary .Is ~ 'ored, the

Meeting shall be deemed to have been duly called and hdd and all
proceedin§s there at to have been duly taken place and in p rticular all
appointments of Directors or Liquidators made at the meetir ~ shall be
deemed to be valid.

92 Minutes to be
evidence

94 Inspection of
Minute Books of
General Meetings by
Members

Any member of the Company shall be entitled to be furnis leiI within
seven days after he has made a request in that behalf to the Company
with a copy of any minute referred to in sub-clause (a) te 'eof on
payment of cost incurred by the Company in respect of the lit' utes to
be copied.

)
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95 Appointment

96 Authorising of work

-"'97 ~~The-Seal,its ",
custody and use

Declaration of':::-.--~'=...'=--~~--:.:=-~-----'~-.-.--ID..&Iil¥vi",alCle:un~d__
98

99 Int~m ()iviq~nd

100 Special Right

t

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, MANAGER, COMPANY SECRETARY
OR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Subject to the provisions of the Act,-
(i) A Chief Executive Officer, Manager, Company Secretary or Chief

Financial Officer may be appointed by the Board for such term, at
such remuneration and upon such conditions as it may thinks fit; and
any Chief Executive Officer, Manager, Company Secretary or Chief
Financial Officer so appointed may be removed by means of a
resolution of the Board;

(ii) A director may be appointed as Chief Executive Officer, Manager,
Company Secretary or Chief Financial Officer.

A provision of the Act or these regulations requiring or authorizing a
thing to be done by or to a director and Chief Executive Officer,
Manager, Company Secretary or Chief Financial Officer shall not be
satisfied by its being done by or to the same person actinq both as
director and as, or in place of, Chief Executive Officer, Manager,
Company Secretary or Chief Financial Officer.

THE SEAL

."-TFie eoard shall proviae Torffie safe custoay onne seafTfiesearonne
Company shan not be affixed to any instrument except by the authority
of a res()llJ~onofthe Board or of a committee of the Board authorized by
itirtthat-behaff;-1md'exeepHn'the·presence-otat-least~ dlreetore-and
of the. seC[~tary or such other person 9S the E3Qc;tnj may appoint for the
purpose; and those two directors and the secretary or other person
aforesaid shall sign every instrument to which the seal of the Company
is so affixed in their presence.

DIVIDENDS AND RESERVE

The Company in general meeting may declare dividends, but no
dividend Shall exceed the, ijmO!IOf recoffimendW bV rne 13QIDlf-~'=:_:=="_=,
§y})j~tjilli!:proyt~ig~i Qfs,~~!icm'-1?3:Ih~.[Oiilrd maY' from tim~ to
tifll~ ,Piit t~..!~~,.!!'~Il1~~rs~lJch interim. dividends as appear to it to be
justified by the profits of the Company. '

The Board may, before recommending any dividend, set aside out of the
profits of the Company such sums as it thinks fit as a reserve or
reserves which shall, at the discretion of the Board, be applicable for
any purpose to which the profits of the Company may be properly
applied, including provision for meeting contingencies or for equalizing 't
dividends; and pending such application, may, at the like discretion,
either be employed in the business of the Company or be invested in
such investments (other than shares of the Company) as the Board
may, from time to time, thinks fit.

The Board may also carry forward any profits which it may consider
necessary not to divide, without setting them aside as a Reserve.

(i) Subject to the rights of persons, if any, entitled to shares with special
rights as to dividends, all dividends shall be declared and paid
according to the amounts paid or credited as paid on the shares in
respect whereof the dividend is paid, but if and so long as nothing is
paid upon any of the shares in the Company, dividends may be
declared and paid according to the amounts of the shares.
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101 Deduction of
Dividend

102 Payment of
Dividend

103 Dividend in case of
joint holders

104 Notice of Dividend

)

)

,)

106 Irll?PeCliQnby
Members

107 WINDING UP

(ii) No amount paid or credited as paid on a share in ad»ar ce of calls
shall be treated for the purposes of this regulation ali paid on the
share.

(iii) All dividends shall be apportioned and paid proportlc, lately to the
amounts paid or credited as paid on the shares durin: a ny portion
or portions of the period in respect of which the divider, l i s paid; but
if any share is issued on terms providing that it sllall rank for
dividend as from a particular date such share shall rani f( r dividend
accordingly.

The Board may deduct from any dividend payable to an} rr ember all
sums of money, if any, presently payable by him to the :ompany on
account of calls or otherwise in relation to the shares of the' 01' npany.

Any dividend, interest or other monies payable in cash i respect of
shares may be paid by cheque or warrant sent through the I os t directed
to the registered address of the holder or, in the case of joir : t:alders, to
the registered address of that one of the joint holders who il fil' st named
on the register of members, or to such person and to sue," aildress as

. ~~,.l.tt~L!:lolderS?L.iQ1rll.~~"Il1~,~d.ir.ec.L," ..~,".,..~,.."... ",

Every such cheque or warrant shall be made payable to the )rller of the
person to whom it is sent.

Anyone of two or more joint holders of a share may gi, 'e effective
receipts for any dividends, bonuses or other monies payabl ill respect
of such share.

Notice of any dividend that may have been declared shall re given to
the persons entitled to share therein in the manner mentioner ir the Act.

No dividend shall bear interest against the Company.

ACCQUNl'S

(i) The Board shall from time to. time determine whether a,ld to what
extent and at what times and places and under what C( leiitions or
regulations, the accounts and books of the Company, 01 any of
them, shall be open to the inspection of members nc t being
directors.

(ii) No member (not being a director) shall have any right of mpecting
any account or book or document of the Company sx iept as
conferred by law or authorized by the Board or by the C In pany in
general meeting,

WINDING UP

Subject to the provisions of Chapter XX of the Act and n e: made
thereunder-

(i) If the Company shall be wound up, the liquidator may Vi'ith the
sanction of a special resolution of the Company and In:' other
sanction required by the Act, divide amongst the me thers, in
specie or kind, the whole or any part of the assets of the I .ompany,
whether they shall consist of property of the same kind or r )1
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108 Power to Indemnify

(ii) For the purpose aforesaid, the liquidator may set such value as he
deems fair upon any property to be divided as aforesaid and may
determine how such division shall be carried out as between the
members or different classes of members.

(iii) The liquidator may, with the like sanction, vest the whole or any part
of such assets in trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of the
contributories if he considers necessary, but so that no member
shall be compelled to accept any shares or other securities whereon
there is any liability.

INDEMNITY

Every officer of the Company shall be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against any liability incurred by him in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in his
favour or in which he is acquitted or in which relief is granted to him by
the court or the Tribunal.
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We, the several persons, whose names and addresses are subscribed below, are desirous of being formed
into a Company in pursuance of this Articles of Association:

Names, Ad'-d-re-s-se-s-,D-es-c-r-ip-ti-o-n-s--'--S-:-ig-n-a-ttl~eof Subscribe~-Sig;at~re:' -"Nam~,'--Add;:~;'-s'
and Occupations of Subscribers I Description and Occupation of

Witness

1. Sanjay Malhotra, CMD, RVPN Sd/-
On behalf of RVPN
CIN: U40109RJ2000SGC016485
Vidyut Shawan, Jyoti Nagar, Jaipur-
302005

I witness to Subscribers who have
subscribed and signed in my
presence. Further, I have verified I'

their Identity details (10) for the
purpose of their Identification and
satisfied myself of their Identity
particulars as filled in

Sd/-
Gagan Mittal

S/o Dr. P L Mittal
B-'14, Anukampa-II
M.L Road, Jaipur

Chartered Accountant

3. Vijay Mathur
S/o Shri Kailash Narain Mathur Sd/-

) 47, Shrigopal Nagar, Gopalpura
Bypass, Jaipur- 302019

""':'r-~'~~~'-"-1' "·~~~.~:\:eof RVP~~'~' --.,.~-~~~"

\ "~

. 4. Anln Kumar.Gupta
S'76"sm-nUmaRaffiJi Gupta Sdl-

..,.,J 7U162, AcavaJi. Marg, Mansarovar,
Jaipur- 302020
Govt Service
Nominee of RVPN

2 Sanjay Malhotra Sd/-
S/o Shri Krishan Lal Malhotra
R-1!1, Chambal Residential Colony,
Hawa Sadak, Jaipur- 3020,19
Government Service
Nominee of RVPN

5. Rajendra Prasad Barwar
Shri Bhajan Lal Barwar Sd/-
Plot No.2, 1st Floor, Jagdish Vihar,
Prem Nagar, Jagatpura, Jaipur-

)

)

<.~

6. Shriniwas Vijay
SIO Shri'JugaiKish6re Vijay
6-A~1, rvJ<.lhaVeer Na9qr-llI,
Keshopura, Kota- 324005,
Rajasthan
Service
Nominee of RVPN

7. Rajendra Kumar Agarwal
S/o Shri Sohan Lal Agarwal Sd/-
8, RSEB Officers Housing Society,
Opp Inox, Vaishali Nagar, Jaipur-
302021
Service
Nominee of RVPN

8. Narendra Kumar Mathur
S/o Shri Raj Narain Mathur Sd/-
571, Sarkat Nagar, Tonk Phatak,
Jaipur- 302015.
Service
Nominee of RVPN

.-~------_--,---- ._._,.

Dated the 21"day of March, 2016
Place: Jaipur
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DHARl\'IESH PARIKH & CO LLP 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
[LLPIN: AA W-6517] 

Independent Auditor's Report 
To the Members of Hadoti Power Transmission Service Limited 

Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

303/304, "Milestone" 

Nr. Drive-in-Cinema, Opp.T.V.Tower, 

Thaltej, Ahmedabad-380054 

Phone: 91-79-27474466 

Email: info@dharmeshparikh .net 
Website: www.dharmeshparikh.net 

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Hadoti Power Transmission Service 
Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 st March, 2021, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in 
Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(herein after referred to as "Standalone Financial Statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed 
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, 
("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
3 pt March, 2021, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year 
ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitie~ in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the standalone financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation and presentation of these Standalone Financial Statements that 
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, 
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the applicable Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, 
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Dharmesh Parikh & Co. (Registration Partnership Firm has been converted into 
Dharmeslt Parikh & Co LLP {LLP Iden 7) with effect from 9th Day of April, 2021 

• \J 

Annexure B-4
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CA 
DHARl\1ESH PARIKH & CO LLP 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
[LLPL~: AA \Y-6517} 

Independent Auditor's Report 

303/304, "Milestoue" 

Nr. Drive-in-Cinema, Opp.T.V.Tower, 

Thaltej, Ahmedabad-380054 

Pbou~~91-79-27474466 

Email: info@dharmeshparikh.net 
Website: www.dharmeshparikh.net 

To the Members ofHadoti Power Transmission Service Limited (Continue) 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial 
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope 
of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

. ,,,.--. 
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To the Members of Hadoti Power Transmission Service Limited (Continue) 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in "Annexure A" statement on the 
matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books; 

c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement Cash Flows and the Statement of 
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended; 

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 3151 March, 2021 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 3 1st March, 2021 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act; 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 'Annexure B"; 

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 

1. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position; 

ii. The Company has made provision as at 3 P1 March 2021, as required the applicable law or indian 
accounting standard for material forseeable loses, if any on Long term contracts including derivative 
contracts. 

III. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company. 
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To the Members of Hadoti Power Transmission Service Limited (Continue) 

3. With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements 
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company, managerial remuneration has not been paid /provided. Accordingly, reporting under section 
197(16) of the Act is not applicable. 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 30th April, 2021. 

For, DHARMESH PARIKH & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No. l 12054W/WI00725 

Chirag Shah 
Partner 
Membership No. 122510 
UDIN: 21122510AAAAHQ6880 
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The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the Company on the Standalone 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 st March, 2021, we report that: 

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of fixed assets. 

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all fixed 
assets are verified by the management in a phased periodic manner over the period of three years. In 
accordance with this programme, certain fixed assets were verified during the year and no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification 
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the examination of the 
registered sale deed I transfer deed/ conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the tittle deeds of 
immovable properties are held in the name of the Company. 

(ii) The Company does not carry any inventory at the year end. Accordingly the provisions of paragraph 3 (ii) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

(iii) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our verification, 
the company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured to firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other 
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has 
granted unsecured loan to company covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act: 

(a) The terms and conditions are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. 
(b) The receipts of principal amount has been at stipulated condition; and 
( c) There is no overdue amount. 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
granted any loans, or provided any guarantees or security under Section 185. According to the 
information and explanations given to us, the Company is engaged in the business of providing 
infrastructural facilities and accordingly the provisions of section 186 ( except subsection ( 1) of Section 186) 
of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion, and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not made any investment referred in Section 186(1) of the Act. 

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted 
any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions 
of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) 
Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable. 

(vi) Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain cost 
records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We have broadly reviewed 
the same, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and 
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine 

whether they are accurate or complete. :;f ~ i 
"' ~~ ) -
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(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed 
statutory dues including income tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material statutory dues have 
generally been deposited regularly during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As 
explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of income tax, Goods and Service Tax, 
cess and other material statutory dues. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
statutory dues as referred above were in arrears as at 31 st March, 2021 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the records of the Company and representations made by the Management, there are no 
statutory dues as mentioned in paragraph 3(vii)(a) which have not been deposited on account of any 
dispute. 

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted 
in repayment of dues to its bank or financial institutions. The Company did not have any outstanding 
debentures or dues to government during the year. 

(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) or tenn loan during the year. Accordingly the provisions of paragraph 3 (ix) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

(x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in accordance 
with the generally accepted auditing practice in India, and according to the information and explanation 
given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the company or on the company 
by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such 
case by the management. 

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, managerial remuneration has not been paid/ provided. Accordingly the provisions of Clauses 3(xi) of 
the Order are not applicable. 

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi Company. Accordingly the provisions of Clauses 3 (xii) of the 
Order are not applicable. 

(xiii) As per information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, all the transaction with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies 
Act 2013 and all the details have been disclosed in Standalone Financial Statements as required by the 
applicable Indian Accounting Standards. 

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records, the 
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement or not issued any. debenture during 
the year under review. Accordingly the provisions of paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable. 
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(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records, 
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with any director or any person connected with him. 
Accordingly the provisions of Clauses 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank oflndia Act, 
1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable. 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 30th April, 2021. 

For, DHARMESH PARIKH & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No. l 12054W/Wl 00725 

.~..,~~ 

Chirag Shah 
Partner 
Membership No. 122510 
UDIN : 21122510AAAAHQ6880 
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies 
Act 2013 (the act). 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company as of 31 st March, 2021 in 
conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the Guidance Note) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and 
deemed to be prescribed under section 14 3 (I 0) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 
in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and test ing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

.A company's internal .financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and t ancial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting prin internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 
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(I) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 
3 !51 March 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 30th April, 2021. 

For, DHARMESHPARIKH & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No. l 12054W/Wl00725 

~ j-Sl•Af. 

Chirag Shah 
Partner 
Membership No. 122510 
UDIN : 21122510AAAAHQ6880 
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HADDTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021 

P.Jtdculars 

ASSETS 

Non-current Assets 

Property. Plant and Equipment 
Capital Work•ln-Progress 
Right of Use Assets 
Intangible Assets 
Financial Assets 

(i) Loans 

(ii) Other Financial Assets 
Income Tax. Assets (net) 
Other Non-current Assets 

Total Nan-current As5ets 

Current Assets 

Financial Assets 
(0 Investments 
(ii) Trede Receivables 
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
(iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 
(v) Other Financial Assets 

Other Current Assets 
Total Current Assets 

Total Assets 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 

Shere Capital 
Other Equity 

Total Equity 

Liabilities. 

Non-current Liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(li) Other f:inancial liabilities 

Provisions 
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 

Total Non-cur,ent Uat>llities 

Current UablUtJes 

Flnancial UabUitles 
(0 Trade Payables 

a. Total outstanding dues or micro and small enterprises 
b. Total outsUnding dues other than micro and small enterprises 

{ii) Other Financial Liabilities 
Provisions 
Other Current Liabilities 
Income Tax Liabilities (net) 

Tat.al Current UabilitJas 

Summary or significant accounting policies 

Total Equity and Uobllitlu 

The accompanying notes rarms an inte!;ral part of the Standalone Financial Statements. 

A5 per our report attached of even date 

For Oharmosh Parikh £. Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 112D54W/W1007Z5 

~<t~ 
Chirag Shah 

Partner 

"{t·\ 

I Membership No. 122510 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : 30th April, 2021 

'I­

J 

' 

f);; ,inl 
-~ ...... -..:=::.:: 

adani 
Trilnsmi5s ion 

(t In Lakh•) 

Note 
Asat As at 

315t March, 2021 31st March, 2020 

4 12,788.30 13,D43.59 
4a 622.2B 17.84 
4b 1,373.88 1,418.20 
4c 3.28 

3.041.04 517.97 

6 638.02 
7 36D.53 
8 7B.12 430.16 

18,905.45 15,427.76 

9 175.27 
10 1,116.16 1,531.44 
11 243.76 528.10 
12 4.87 736.27 
13 706.65 1,444.81 
14 13.89 16,66 

2,260.60 4,257.28 

21,166.05 19,685.04 

15 1.000.00 1,000.00 
16 4.380.22 2.697.69 

5,380.22 3,697.69 

17 13,586.46 14.546.55 
18 525.67 237.57 
22 2.37 
19 1.087.39 385.39 

15,201.89 15,169.51 

20 
5.46 0.01 

34.62 190,87 
21 518.49 595.24 
22 0.38 0.11 
23 24.99 21.16 
24 10.45 

583.94 817.84 

21,166.05 19.685,04 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 

~ 
Hltflhkumar Vaghasly• Anupam Sawhney 

OirectDf" Whole Time Director 
DIN:• 08084591 

AnkltSomaini 
Chief Financial Orricer 

Place : Ahmedabid 
Date : 30th April. 2021 

DIN:· 08581062 

J11tin Sharma 
Company Secretary 
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HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2021 

Particulars 

Income 
Revenue from Operations 
Other Income 

Total Income 

Expenses 
Operating Expenses 
Employee Benefits Expenses 
Fina nee Costs 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 
Other Expenses 

Total Expenses 
Profit before tax for the year 

Tax Expense 
Current Tax 

Current Tax relating to earlier periods 

Deferred Tax 

Total Tax Expenses 

Profit after tax for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income 

(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
(b) Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 
Profit or Loss 
(c) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 
(d)Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Profit or 
Loss 

Other Comprehensive Income (After Tax) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

Earnings Per Share (EPS) {in') 
(Face Value, 10 Per Share) 

Basic e- Diluted Earnings per Share 

Note 

25 
26 

27 
28 
29 

4,4b e- 4c 
30 

31 

Total A 

Total 8 

Total (A+B) 

32 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 

4,855.47 
269.20 

5,124.67 

332.32 
29.67 

1,474.37 
416.73 
92.39 

2,345.48 
2,779.19 

439.07 

(403.16) 

790.48 

826.39 

1,952.80 

0.15 

(358.90) 

88.48 

(210.zn 

1,682.53 

19.53 

adani 
Transmission 

~ in Lakhs) 
For the year ended 
31st March, 2020 

4,808.32 
77.16 

4,885.48 

326.22 
8.09 

1,521.33 
400.69 

45.62 

2,301.95 
2,583.53 

451.39 

300.50 

751.89 

1,831.64 

(46.78) 

13.62 

{33.16) 

1,79B.4B 

18.32 

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements. 

As per our report attached of even date 

For Dharmesh Parikh 8- Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number : 112054W/W100725 

Chirag Shah 
Partner 

Membership No. 122510 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : 30th April, 2021 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 

Hiteshkumar Vaghasiya 
Whole Time Director 

DIN:- 08084591 

\.- - -· 

~~:;!l,-

Ankit Somani 
Chief Financial Officer 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : 30th April, 2021 

Anupam Sawhney 
Director 

DIN:- 08581062 

Jatin Sharma 
Company Secretary 
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HAOOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE UMITEO 

Statement ar Cash flow far th11 ye.Jr andad 31st M.irch, 2021 

A. Cash flaw from opantlng actlultlu 

Profit before tax 
Adjustments far: 

Finance Cost, 
Depreciation Expense 
Gain on Sale/Remeasurement of Fair Value of Current Investments measured at FVTPL 
Interest income from bank and other 

Operating profit b•forci working caplt.il changes 

Changes In Working Capital: 

(Increase)/ Decrease in Assets: 
Loans and other financial assets and other as.secs 
Trade Receiuable'5 

Increase I (Decrease) in Liabilities: 
Trade Payables 
Other Financial Liabilities, other llabillties and provision 

Cash generated from operations 

Tax paia (Net of Income ta.: Refund) 

Nat c;uh genen,ted from open ting ectivft:fu (A) 

B. Cash flaw from Investing :tctlvftlc~ 

Payment or Capital expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment. includ ing capital adv.ince 
Proceeds trom I (D<!posic.s in) Bank deposits (net} (lncloding Margin money deposit) 
Sale/(Purchase) of current Investment (net) 
Loans 11iven to fellow subsidiary 
Interest Received 

Ne.t caih used In ln\lestlng actlwllles (B) 

C. Cash flow from financing acllvltlu 

Proceeds from Long-term borrowings 
Repayment of Long-term borrowfn9s 

Proc:eeds from Short-term borrowings 
Repayment of Short-term borrowings 
Redemption or Optionally Convertible Redeemable Debentures 
Payment towards finance lease 

Finance Cost paid 
Net nih gc,nvrated frum fln.Jnclng ec:tlvltlcs (c) 

Net lncruu I (dccn1.as1) In co1sh and Co13h •qulv;1J1nt:s (A-t-B+C) 

C:ash and co1sh tqulvaltnts .et tf\o tioglnnlng ot the y1.1r 

Cash ond c:.sh eq\Jlvalcnt.5 at tha and of the yur (Ader note 11) 

Cash •nd cash eq1Jlvo1lcnt Includes 

• Refer Nott 11 
Balancu with banks 

• In current Dc:c:ount 

Dlsclosure DS per Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash FloWJ: 

Far the vear ended 
51st Mi1rch, 20Z1 

2,779.19 

1,474.37 
416.73 
(16,21) 

(25].00) 
4,401,08 

606,61 
415.28 

(45.65) 
6.69 

5,384.01 

(406.89) 

4,977.U 

(542.64) 
9].37 

(1S9.07) 
(2,523.07) 

119.65 
(3,011.76) 

(439.82) 

(8.86) 
(1.801.01) 

(2,249.69) 

(284.34) 

,ze.10 

24].76 

A:, at 
31st Morch, 2021 

243.76 
243,76 

adani 
Tran:;n,l~::. ion 

(f In Lakh•) 

For the ye3r ended 
]1st Milrch, 2020 

2,583.53 

1,521.33 
'100.69 

(3',2l) 
(40.16) 

4,432.16 

(614.26) 
(977.42) 

7.37 
(]2.en 

2,814.98 

(522.21) 

2,292.77 

(1,511.37) 
(401.95) 
210.23 
(517.97) 

36.59 
(2,184,47) 

20.903.20 
(16,235.78) 

1,769.17 
(2,972.17) 
(1,833.97) 

(8.84) 
(1,S50.52) 

71.09 

1751.]9 

348.71 

520.10 

Asat 
J1St March, 2020 

528.10 
,20.10 

The Ind AS 7 require entitles to provide dlsc:losure of changes in their llabilitles arising from financing activities. lncludino both changes arising from cash nows and non-cash changes 
(such -is foreign exchange gains or losses). The Company has provided the information for current period. 

Chanaes In 1/abllitlos •rising from flmrnclna Ktl~ltJH (f In Loklls) 
p-,rtJcul;,rs 1st April, 2020 Cash Flows Foreign EJCchang• Other 31st ~rch, 2021 

Man.o1g•m1nt 

Long-term Borrowings 14.985.98 (439.82) (502.53) (33.75) 14.009.88 
(Including Current Maturiti<!S or Long Term Oebt) 
Total 14,985.98 (439.82) 1,02.53) (Jl.75) 14,009.89 

Partlc:ulars 1st April, 2019 Cash Flows Foreign E,i;chang• 0th..- 31st M.trc:h, 2020 
Mano11gcment 

Long-term Borrowings 9,963.88 S,667.42 322,64 32.04 14,985.98 
(lnc:luding Current Maturities of Long Term Debt) 
Short term eorrowlngs 1,203.00 (1,203.00) 
Total 11,166,88 3,464.42 322.64 32.04 14,985.98 
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HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE UMITED 

Sbtcmcrnt of C.uh flow far tha year ended 31s:t Much, 2021 

Notes to Cuh Flow Statement: 

1. The Sta cement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the Indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 ·statement of Cash Flows·. 

2. Disclosure under Para 44A as set out in Ind AS 7 on cash flow 5tatemenu under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2017 (as amended) Is given as above. 
3. Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary. to conrorm to this year's classification. 

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the standalone Financial Statements. 

As per our report attached or even date 

For OharmHh Parikh !, Co. UP 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration Number: 112054W/Wl00725 

Pli>CC : Ahmcd.Jbad 
Data : 30th April, 2021 

For and en behalf or the Board of Dlreccars of 
HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 

Mltcshkum:ir V~gh:isl~:i Ant.tpam Sawhncy 
Whole Time Director Olrec;:cor 
DIN:- 08084591 DIN:- 08581062 

Anklt Somani Jatln Sharma 
Chier Financial Officer Company Secretary 

Place : Ahmadabad 
Data : 30th Aprll, 2021 

adani 
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HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 

Statement or changes In equity for the year ended 31st March, 2021 

A. Equity Share Capital 

Particulars No. of Shares 
Balance as at 1st April, 2019 1,00,00,000 
Changes in equity share capital during the year: 

i) Issue of sha res during the year 
Balance as at 31th March, 2020 1,00,00,000 
Changes in equity share capi tal during the year : 
i) Issue of shares during the year 
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 1,00,00,000 

B. Other Equity 

Reserves and Surplus 
Particulars 

Retained Earnings 

Balance as at 1st April, 2019 899.21 
Add/(Less) : Profit/(Loss) for the year 1,631.64 
Add/(Less) : Comprehensive Gain/ (loss) for the year 
Balance as at 31th March, 2020 2,730.85 
Add/(Less) : Profit/(Loss) for the year 1,952.80 
Add/(Less) : Comprehensive Gain/ (loss) for the year 0.15 
Add/(Less) : TaK Relating to cash flow hedge 
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 4,683.80 

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the Standalone Financi al Statements. 

As per our report attached of even date 

F For Dharmesh Parikh & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
FFirm Registration Number : 112054W/W100725 

Chlrag Shah 
Partner 
Membership No. 122510 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : 30th April, 2021 

adani 
Transm ission 

(t' in Lakhs) 

1,000.00 

1,000.00 

1,000,00 

(t' In Lakhs) 
Items of other 

Comprehensive Income 
Total 

Effective portion or 
Cashflow Hedge 

899.21 
(46.7B) 1.7B4.66 

13.62 13.62 
(33.16) 2,697.69 

1.952.80 
(358.90) (35B.75) 

B8.4B BB.48 
(303.58) 4,380.22 

For and on behalf cf the Board cf Directors 
HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 

Hlteshkumar Vaghasiya 
Whole Time Director 
DIN:· 0B084591 

Ankit Somani 
Chief Financial Officer 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : 30th April, 2021 

Anupam Sawhney 
Director 
DIN:· 08581062 

Jatin Sh.1rma 
Company Secretary 
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HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED adani 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2021 Transmission 

Corporate information 
Hadoti Power Transmission Service Limited ("the Company") is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated under the 
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 having registered office at Adani Corporate House. Shantigram. Near Vaishno Devi Circle, S. 
G. Highway, Khodiyar, Ahmedabad - 382421. The company is incorporated on 10th May, 2016 , operates five EHV overhead 
transmission lines with total circuit length of approximately 115 Ckms and five nos. Grid substation of 310 MVA capacity in the 
state of Rajasthan. 

2 Significant accounting policies 

a Basis of Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements 
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as 
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2017 read with section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 
Act") (as amended from time to time). on the accrual basis. 
The Financial statements are presented in i in Lakhs, unless otherwise indicated. 

b Current versus non-current classification 
An asset is treated as current when it is: 
• Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle: or 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading; or 
• Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after 
the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 
An liability is treated as current when it Is: 
• Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle: or 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading; or 
- Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash 
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

c Foreign Currency Transactions 
The Company's financial statements are presented in INR which is company's functional currency and items included in the 
financial statements are measured using this functional currency. 

i) Initial Recognition : 
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. 

ii) Conversion : 
At the year-end. monetary items denominated in foreign currencies, if any, are converted into rupee equivalents at exchange 
rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. 
iii) Exchange Differences: 
All exchange differences arising on settlement and conversion of foreign currency transaction are included in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

d Fair value measurement 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to 
sell the financial asset or settle the financial liability takes place either 
> In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
> In the absence of a principal market. in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic 
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in 
its highest and best use. 
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to 
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 
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HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED adani 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2021 Transmission 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair 
value hierarchy, described as follows. based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole: 
> Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
> Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or 
indirectly obseNable. 
> Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level Input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobseNable 
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis. the Company determines whether 
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 
The Company's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as 
derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value. 

e Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other incentives, if 
any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes or other amounts collected from customers in 
its capacity as an agent. 

The accounting policies for the specific revenue streams of the Company as summarized below: 
1) Revenue from Service of Transmission Line is recognised in terms of the Tariff Based Competitive Bidding (TBCB) entered 
with Central and State Distribution Companies and is measured at the value of the consideration received or receivable, net of 
discounts if any. 
2) Profit/Loss on sale of Current investments are recognised on the contract date. 
3) Interest income is recognised on a time proportionate basis taking into account the amount invested and the rate applicable. 

4) Revenue in respect of delayed payment charges and interest on delayed payments leviable as per the relevant contracts are 
recognised on actual realisation or accrued based on an assessment of certainty of realization supported by either an 
acknowledgement from customers or on receipt of favourable order from regulator I authorities. 
Contract Balances 
Contract assets 
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or seNices transferred to the customer. If the Company 
performs by transferring goods or seNices to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a 
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. 
Trade receivables 
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional i.e. only the passage of time is 
required before payment of consideration is due. 
Contract liabilities 
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received 
consideration (or an amount of consideration is·due) from the customer. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the 
Company performs under the contract.· 

f Taxes on Income 
I) Current Tax 
Current tax represents the amount of Income tax Payable in respect of the taxable income for the reporting period as 
determined in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961. 

Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis on estimated taxable income and tax credits computed in 
accordance with the provisions of the relevant tax laws and based on the expected outcome of assessments I appeals. Current 
income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. 
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted, at the reporting 
date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax 
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in · a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax for the year. The 
deferred tax asset is recognised for MAT credit available only to the extent that it is probable that the concerned company will 
pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the 
year in which the company recognizes MAT credit as an asset, it is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss 
and shown as part of deferred tax asset. The company reviews the "MAT credit entitlement· asset at each reporting date and 
writes down the a~set to the extent that it is no longer probable that it will pay normal tax during the specified period: 
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HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED adani 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2021 Transmission 

ii) Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any 
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available 
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be 
utilized. 

Net outstanding balance in Deferred Tax account is recognized as deferred tax liability/asset. The deferred tax account is used 
solely for reversing timing difference as and when crystallized. 

g Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 
Tangible fixed assets 
i) Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation / amortisation and impairment 
losses, if any. The cost comprises of the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition 
for its intended use. 
ii) Capital Work in progress comprises of cost of fixed assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the year end. 

Depreciation and amortisation methods and periods 
i) Depreciation on fixed assets is calculated on straight-line method (SLM) using the rates arrived at based on the Useful Life as 
specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 
ii) Depreciation on Assets acquired or disposed off during the year is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of 
acquisition or disposal. 
Estimated useful lives of assets are as follows: 
Type of Assets Useful lives 

Plant and Equipment 35 Years 
Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years 

Office Equipment 5 Years 

Building 35 Years 
Computer Hardware 5 Years 
Vehilce 15 Years 

Computer Software 3 Years 

h Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other 
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an 
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent 
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. 

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is 
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. 

Inventories 
i) Stores and spares are valued at cost. Cost is determined on Weighted Average basis. 
ii) Costs includes all non refundable duties and all charges incurred in bringing the goods to their present location and condition. 

Impairment of non-financial assets 
The carrying amount of assets, other than inventories, is reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets recoverable amount is estimated. 

The impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generation unit exceeds its recoverable 
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset's net selling price and value in the uses which is determined based 
on the estimated future cash flow discounted to their present values. All imp.airment losses are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount and is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED adani 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2021 Transmission 

k Financial instruments 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities. as appropriate, 
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its 
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company entity are recognised at the proceeds received. net of direct issue costs. 
(A) Financial assets 
All financial assets. except investment in subsidiaries are recognised initially at fair value. 

The measurement of financial assets depends on their classification. as described below: 

1) At amortised cost 
A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 
(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and 
(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding, 
This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement. such financial assets are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in 
finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category 
generally applies to trade and other receivables. 
2) At Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) 
A financial asset is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 
(a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, 
and 
(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
(SPPJ) on the principal amount outstanding. 

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCJ category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair 
value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI) and on derecognition , cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to statement of profit and loss. For equity instruments, the Company may make an 
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value in OCI. If the Company decides to classify an equity 
instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is 
no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. 

3) At Fair Value through Profit e- Loss (FVTPL) 
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments and default category for equity instruments. Financial assets included within 
the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria, as 
at FVTPL However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency 
(referred to as 'accounting mismatch'). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL 

Derecognition 
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration 
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss 
on disposal of that financial asset. 
The Company applies expected credit lass (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment lass on the financial 
assets and credit risk exposure. The Campany follows 'Simplified Approach' for recognition of impa irment loss allowance on all 
trade receivables or contractual receivables. 
Under the simplified approach the Company does not track changes in cred it risk, but it recognises impairment loss allowance 
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 
month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. 

ECL is the difference between all contracted cash flows that are due ta the Company in accordance with the contract and all 
the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original EIR. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) 
recognised during the period is recognised as income/ (expense) in the statement of profit and loss. 
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HAOOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED adani 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2021 Transmission 

(B) Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities are classified. at initial recognition as at amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss. The measurement 
of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

At amortised cost 

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as 
well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the 
statement of profit and loss. 

At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities 
designated upon initial recognition as such. Subsequently, any changes in fair value are recognised in the statement of profit or 
loss. 

Derecognition of Financial Liability 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference in 
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Cash 8 Cash Equivalents (for purpose of cash flow statement) 

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposit with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original 
maturity of three months or less from the date of creation). 

m Cash Flow Statement 

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the 
effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from 
operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated based on the available information. 

n Earnings Per Share 

The Basic EPS has been computed by dividing the income available to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the accounting year. 
The Diluted EPS has been computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares 
outstanding at the end of the year. 

o Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
Provision are recognised for when the company has at present, legal or contractual obligation as a result of past events, only if 
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic outgo or loss will be required and if the amount involved can be 
measured reliably, 

Contingent liabilities being a possible obligation as a result of past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence or non occurrence of one or more future events not wholly in control of the company are not recognised in the 
accounts. The nature of such liabilities and an estimate of its financial effect are disclosed in notes to the Financial Statements. 

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. 
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HADDTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED adani 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2021 Transmission 

p Hedge Accounting 
The Company designates certain hedging instruments, which includes derivatives and non-derivatives in respect of foreign 
currency risk. as cash flow hedges. 
To qualify for hedge accounting, the hedging relationship must meet all of the following requirements: 
- there is an economic relationship between the hedged items and the hedging instruments, 
- the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic relationship, 
- the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that the entity 
actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the entity actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item. 
At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged 
item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the 
inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Company documents whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in 
offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk. 

Cash flow hedges 
The Company designates derivative contracts or non derivative financial assets / liabilities as hedging instruments to mitigate 
the risk of movement in interest rates and foreign exchange rates for foreign exchange exposure on highly probable future cash 
flows attributable to a recognised asset or liability or forecast cash transactions. When a derivative is designated as a cash flow 
hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized in the cash flaw hedging 
reserve being part of other comprehensive income. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is 
recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the hedging relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge 
accounting, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or 
exercised, the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognized in cash flow hedging reserve till the period the 
hedge was effective remains in cash flow hedging reserve until the underlying transaction occurs. The cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognized in the cash flow hedging reserve is transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss upon the occurrence 
of the underlying transaction. 

q Leases 
At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if 
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date except for leases with a term 
of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the lease payments 
associated with these leases as an expense in the statement of Profit and Lass on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Lease term is a non-cancellable period together with periods covered by an option to extend the lease If the Company is 
reasonably certain to exercise that option: and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is 
reasonably certain not to exercise that option. • 
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any 
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to 
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease 
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement 
date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end of the 
lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right­
of-use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically 
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be paid over the lease term at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the 
Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. 
Subsequently, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
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r Employee benefits 
Employee benefits includes salary. wages. gratuity, compensated absences and contribution to provident fund. 
i) Defined benefit plans: 

adani 
Transmission 

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity. a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees through Group 
Gratuity Scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Company accounts for the liability for the gratuity benefits payable 
in future based on an independent actuarial valuation carried out by the Holding Company. The actuarial valuation is done as 
per the Projected Unit Credit Method considering discounting rate relevant to Government Securities at the Balance Sheet 
Date. 
Defined benefit costs in the nature of current and past service cost and net interest expense or income are recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss in the period in which they occur. Actuarial gains and losses on measurement is reflected 
immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they 
occur and is reflected immediately in retained earnings and not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of a plan amendment. 

ii) Defined contribution plan: 
Retirement Benefits in the form of Provident Fund and Family Pension Fund which are defined contribution schemes are 
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period in which the contributions to the respective funds accrue. 
iii) Short term employee benefits: 
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of salaries and wages at the undiscounted amount of the 
benefits expected to be paid wholly within thirty six months of rendering the service. 

s Recent Pronouncements for Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such 
notification which would have been applicable from April 1. 2021. 

3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
The application of the Company's accounting policies as described in Note 2. in the preparation of the Company's financial 
statements requires management to make judgements. estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
revenues. expenses. assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures. and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. The 
estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and any revisions thereto are recognized in the 
period in which they are revised or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both the current and future 
periods. Actual results may differ from these estimates which could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the 
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

3.1 Property, plant and equipment• 
The estimated useful lives. residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the 
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 

3.2 Taxation 
Deferred tax assets2 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses/ credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the losses can be utilised. Management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax 
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax 
planning strategies. 

3.3 Fair value measurement of financial instruments2 

In estimating the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, the Company uses market observable data to the extent 
available. Where such Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company establishes appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to 
the model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a 
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, 
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial 
instruments. Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and 
liabilities are disclosed. 

3.4 Defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits2 

The present value of obligations under defined benefit pla·n and other long term employment benefits is determined using 
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual development in the 
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary escalations. attrition rate and mortality rates etc. Due 
to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature. these obligations are highly sensitive to changes in these 
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

'Critical accounting Judgements 
2 Key sources of estimation uncertainties 
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4 Property, Plant and Equipment 
~ in Lakhs) 

Tangible Assets 

Description of Assets Land Plant and 
Furniture 

Office Computer 
Bulldtng and Vehicles Total 

(Free hold) Equipment 
Fixtures 

Equipments Equipment 

I, Cost or Deemed Cost 

Balances as at 1st April, 2019 1.59 394.93 12,693.43 7,39 13,097.34 
Additions during the Year 416.32 - 416.32 
Balances as at 31st March,2020 1,59 394,93 13,109.75 7.39 - 13,513.66 
Additions during the Year - - 81.08 0.54 11.82 19.81 3.29 116.54 
Balances as at 31st March, 2021 1,59 394,93 13,190,83 7,93 11.82 19,81 3.29 13,630.20 

II. Accumulated depreciation and Impairment 

Balances as at 1st April, 2019 5.22 108.15 0.33 - 113.70 
Depreciation for the year 10.72 344.95 0.70 356,37 
Balances as at 31st March,2020 . 15.94 453.10 1.03 . . . 470.07 
Depreciation for the Year 10.72 357.43 0.76 0.72 2.02 0.18 371.83 
Balances as at 31st March, 2021 . 26,66 810.53 1.79 0.72 2.02 0 .18 841 .90 

Description of Assets 
Land Plant and 

Furniture 
Office Computer 

(Free hold} 
Building 

Equipment 
and 

Equipments Equipment 
Vehicles Total 

Fixtures 

Carrying Amount : 

As at 31st March,2020 1.59 378.99 12,656.65 6.36 . 13,043.59 

As at 31st March, 2021 1.59 368.27 12,380.30 6.14 11.10 17,79 3.11 12,788,30 
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4a. Capital work-in-progress: ~ in Lakhs) 
Particulars As at As at 

31st March, 31st March, 
2021 2020 

Capital work-in-progress 
Civil Works 15.51 6.39 
Transformer 8- Reactor Supply 1.28 1.28 
Erection, Testing 8- Commissioning 96.02 
Procurement 8- Supply 61.50 0.34 
Tower Supply 327.28 
Miscellaneous 0.37 0.37 
Capital Inventory 120.32 9.46 

Total 622.28 17.84 
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4b. Right of Use Assets 
~ in Lakhs) 

Right of Use Assets 

Description of Assets 
Land Total 

I. Gross carrying amount 

As at 1st April 2020 1,462.52 1,462.52 

On transition to IND AS 116 -
Additions during the year - -
Disposals during the Year - -
Closing Gross carrying amount as on 31st March, 2021 1,462.52 1,462.52 

II. Accumulated Depreciation 8- Impairment 
As at 1st April 2020 44.32 44.32 
On transition to INDAS 116 - -
Amortisation charge during the year 44.32 44.32 
Disposal during the year - -

Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31st March, 2021 88.64 88.64 
Net carrying amount - 31st March, 2020 1,418.20 1,418.20 
Net carrying amount - 31st March, 2021 1,373.88 1,373.88 

4c. Intangible Assets ~ in Lakhs) 

Description of Assets Computer Software Total 

I. Gross Carrying Value 
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 - -
Additions during the year 3.87 3.87 
Disposals during the year -
Balances as at 31st March, 2021 3.87 3.87 

-
II. Accumulated Amortisation -
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 - -
Amortisation Charge during the year 0 .59 0.59 
Eliminated on disposal of asset during the year -
Balances as at 31st March, 2021 0.59 0.59 

Net Carrying Value as at 31st March, 2021 3.28 3.28 
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5 Loans 

(Unsecured, Considered Good) 

Loans to Related Parties (Refer Note 43) 

6 Non Current Financial Assets• Others 

Balances held as Margin Money or security against borrowings 

7 Income Tax Assets (net) 

Advance income ta,c (net) 

B Other Non-current Assets 

Capital Advances (Refer Note 43) 

9 Investments Face Value of" unless 
0thcrwisc specified 

Investment in Mutual Funds units at 
FVTPL (Unquoted) 
EDELWEISS OVERNIGHT FUND DIRECT 
PLAN GROWTH (having NAV f 1067.70) 

Kotak Overnight Fund Direct-Growth 
(having NAV~ 1097.92) 

Aggregate book value of un-quoted investments 
Aggregate market value of un-quoted investments 

10 Trade receivables 
(Unsecured, considered good) 

Unsecured. Considered Good 
Credit Impaired 

Impairment allowance (Allowance far bad e doubtful debts) 
Less : Provision for doubtful Trade Receivables 

10. 1 Trade receivables 

Age of Receivables 

Within the Credit Period 
Above the Credit Period 

1,000 

1,000 

Total 

Total 

Total _ 

No. of Units 

6,660.34 

9.487,02 

Total 

Total 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

(t' In Lakhs) 

3,041.04 
3,041.04 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

(t' In Lakhs) 

638.02 
638.02 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

(t' In Lakhs) 

360.53 
360.53 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

(t' In Lakhs) 

78.12 
78.12 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

(t' In Lakhs) 

As at 

71.11 

104.16 

175,27 

175.27 
175.27 

31st March, 2021 
(t' In Lakhs) 

1,116.16 

1,116.16 

1,116.16 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

(t' In Lakhs) 

759,06 
357.10 

1,116.16 

adani 
Transmission 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

(t' In Lakhs) 

517.97 
517.97 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

(t' In Lakhs) 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

(t' In Lakhs) 

As at 
31st March. 2020 

(t' in Lakhs) 

430,16 
430.16 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

(t' In Lakhs) 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

(t' in Lakhs) 

1,531.44 

1,531.44 

1,531 .44 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

(t' In Lakhs) 

• 769.82 
761.62 

1,531.44 

The concentration of credit risk is very limited due to the fact that the large customers are mainly government bodies/ departments, 
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11 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Balances with banks 
In current account 
Fixed Deposit 3 months or less 

12 Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Fixed Deposit - Margin Money (Lodged aga inst Debt Service Reserve Account) 

13 Current Financial Assets- Others 

Security Depos it 
Unbilled Revenue 
Interest accrued but not due 
Other Receivable 
Derivative instruments designated in hedge accounting relationship 

14 Other Current Assets 

15 

Advance to Supplier 
Prepaid Expenses 
Advance to Employees 

Share Capital 

Authorised Share Capital 
1.20,00,000 ( As at 31st March 2020 -1,20,00,000) Equity Shares of? 
10/- each 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Shares 
100,00,000 ( As at 31st March 2020 -100,00,000) Equity Shares oft 
10/· each 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

a, Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of th• reporting year 
Equity Shares 

As at 31st March, 2021 
No. Shares (\' in Lakhs) 

At the beg inning of the Year 1,00,00,000 1,000.00 

Add : Issued During the Ye ar 

Outstanding at the end of the Year 1,00,00,000 1,000.00 

b . Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares 

As at 
31st March, 2021 
~ In Lakhs) 

As at 

39.29 
204.47 
243.76 

31st March, 2021 
~ In Lakhs) 

4.87 
4.87 

As at 
31st March, 2021 
~ in Lakhs) 

As at 

10.00 
558.28 
137.96 

0.41 
706,65 

31st March, 2021 

(\' In Lakhs) 

As at 

0.65 
, 13.24 

13.B9 

31st March, 2021 
(\' In Lakhs) 

1,200.00 

1,200.00 

1,000.00 

1,000.00 

adani 
Trans m is:;ion 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

~in Lakhs) 

528.10 

528.10 

As at 
31st March, 2020 
~ in Lakhs) 

736.27 
736.27 

As at 
31st March, 2020 
~ In Lakhs) 

10.00 
562.10 

4.62 
600.00 
268.09 

1,444.81 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

(\' in Lakhs) 

As at 

4.42 
11.44 
0.80 

16.66 

31st March, 2020 
(\' In Lakhs) 

1,200.00 

1,200.00 

1,000.00 

1,000.00 

As at 31st March, 2020 
No. Shares (\' In Lakhs) 

1,00,00,000 1,000.00 

1,00,00,000 1,000.00 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of? 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share . 
In the event of liquidation of the Company the holders of the equity shares w ill be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after 
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution wi ll be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the share holders. 

r:. Investments by Adani Transmission Limited. (holding company). The entire share capital Is held by Adanl Transmission Limited e. 
Its nominees 

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020 
No. Shares ~ In Lakhs) No, Shares ~ In Lakhs) 

Adani Transmission Limited e. its nominees 1.00,00,000 1,000.00 1,00,00,000 1,000.00 

109

 



HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2021 

d. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5¾ shares In the Company 

As at 31st March, 2021 

Equity Shares of { 1 o each fully paid 
Adanl Transmission Limited 
100,00.000 (As at 31st March. 2020. 
100,00,000) equity shares of~ 10/- each 
along with its nominees 

No. Shares 

1,00,00.000 

1,00,00,000 

¾ holding in the 
class 

100% 

100% 

adani 
Transmtssion 

As at 31st March, 2020 
No. Shares ¾ holding in the class 

1,00,00.000 100% 

1,00,00,000 100¾ 

c. As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding 
beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares. 

16 Other Equity As at 
31st March, 2021 

({ In Lakhs) 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

(t' in Lakhs) 

(a) Surplus I (Deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
Opening Balance 2,730.85 

1,952.80 
0.15 

899.21 
1,831.64 Add : Profit for the period/ year 

Add: Other comprehensive income arising from remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans 

(b) Other Comprehensivo, Income 
Hedge Reserve 
Opening Balance 

Total (a) 4,683.80 2,730.85 

{Less) Reduction on account of cash flow hedge 
(Less) Tax Relating to cash flow hedge 

(33.16) 
{358.90) 

BB,48 
{46.78) 

13.62 
Closing Balance 

Note : 

Total (b) 

Total (a+b) 

(303.5B) (33.16) 

4,380.22 2,697.69 

a. Retained earnings represents the amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends considering the requirements of the Companies' 
Act. 2013. 

b,The cash flow hedging reserve represents the cumulative effective portion of gains or losses arising on changes in fair value of designated 
portion of hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges. The cumulative gain or loss arising on changes in fair value of the designated 
portion of the hedging instruments that are recognised and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve will be reclassified to 
profit or loss only when the hedged transaction affects the profit or loss. or included as a basis adjustment to the non-financial hedged item. 

17 Non-Current Financial Liabilities• Borrowings 

USO Denominated Notes 

Less : Amount disclosed under the head 
"Other Current Financial liabilities· (Refer 
Note-21) 

Total 

Note: 
Borrowings 

5.20% USO Denominated Notes 

Non-Current 
As at 

31st March, 2021 
(? in Lakhs) 

13,586,46 

13,586.46 

13,586.46 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

({ In Lakhs) 

14,546.55 

14,546.55 

14,546.55 

Currc,nt 
As at 

31St March, 2021 
(t'in Lakhs) 

423.42 

423 .42 

423.42 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

(t' In Lokhs) 

439.43 

439.43 

439.43 

Security Terms of Repayment 
USO Denominated Notes are secured/to be 5.20'1'., 19.41 Million (31st March, 2020 • 20 
secured by first ranking charge on receivables of Million) USO Denominated Notes aggregating t' 
the company. on all immovable and movable 14,190.65 (31st March, 2020· t' 14,810.36 Lakhs) 
assets, charge or assignment of rights under which has a semi-annual repayment schedule with 
Transmission Service Agreement and other project first repayment in the month of Sep-2020 and 
documents, charge or assignment of rights and/or semi-annually then after over the period of its 
designation of the Security Trustee as loss payee tenure ending March-2050. 
under each insurance contract in respect of 
Project. The Notes are also secured by way of 
pledge over 100% of shares of the company held 
by Adani Transmission Ltd. 
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1B 

19 

Other Financial Liabilities 

Finance Lease (Refer note 40) 
Retention Money 
Provision for Estimated Loss on Derivative Contracts 

Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 

Deferred ta x liability 
MAT Credit Entitlement 

Deferred Tax relates to fcllcwing· 
Particulars 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 

Total 

Total 

Difference between book base and tax base of property, plant and equipment 
Gress Deferred Tax Liabilities 
Deferred Tax Assets 
OCI - Hedge Reserve 
Unabsorbed Depreciation 
Gress Deferred Tax Assets 
Net Deferred Tax Assets/(Llabilities) 

(a) Movement In deferred tax assets (net) far the Financial Year 2020-21 
Particulars 

Opening Balance as at 1st Recognised in profit 
April, 2020 and IDS$ 

Ta>< effect of Items constituting deferred 
tax liabilities: 
Difference between book base and tax (1 ,415.94) 226.45 
base of property, plant and equipment 
Total (1,415.94) 226,45 
Tax effect of items constituting deferred 
tax assets: 
OCI - Hedge Reserve 13.62 
Unabsorbed Depreciation 285.15 (285.15) 
Total 29B.n (2B5.15) 
Net Deferred Ta>t AssC!t (1.117.17) (SB.70) 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

(t i n Lakhs) 

As at 

86.57 
29,05 

410.05 
525.67 

31st March, 2021 
(tin Lakhs) 

1,087.39 

1,0B7.39 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

(t In Lakhs) 

(1.189.49) 
(1,1B9.49) 

102.10 

102.10 
(1,0B7.39) 

Recognised in OCI 

8B.48 

BB .4B 
BB.48 

adani 
Transmission 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

(tin Lakhs) 

86.97 
150.60 

237,57 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

(' In Lakhs) 

As at 

1.117.17 
(731.78) 
385.39 

31st March, 2020 
(t In Lakhs) 

(1.415.94) 
(1,415.94) 

13.62 
285.15 
29B.n 

(1,117.17) 

(t' In Lakhs) 

Closing Balance as at 
31st March, 2021 

(1,1B9.49) 

(1,1B9,49) 

102.10 

102.10 
(1,087.39) 

Note: Amount recognised to statement of proflr and loss or, 5B.70 Lakhs (net of MAT cred it reversed amounting to, 731,7B Lakhs). 

(b) Movement In deferred tax assets (net) for the Financial Year 2019·20 (' In Lakhs) 
Particulars Opening Balance as at 1st Recognised In profit 

Recognised In OCI 
Closing Balance as at 

April, 2019 and loss 31st March, 2020 
Ta>< effect of items consti tuting deferred 
ta>< liabilities: 
Difference between book base and tax (760.28) (655.66) (1,415.94) 
base of property, plant and equ ipment 
Total (760.2B) (655.66) (1,415.94) 
Tax effect of items constituting deferred 
tax assots: 
OCI-Hedge Reserve 13.62 13.62 
Unabsorbed Depreciation 381.38 (96.23) 2B5.15 
Total 3B1.3B (96.23) 13.62 290,n 
Net Deferred Tax Asset/(Llabilities) (378.90) (751.89) 13.62 (1,117.17) 
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20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

Trade Payables 

Trade Payables 
Total outstanding dues of creditors micro and small enterprise 
Total outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises 
Accrual for Employees 

Total 

As at 
31st March. 2021 

(t In Lakhs) 

5.46 
33.79 
0.83 

40.0B 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

(tin Lakhs) 

0.01 
190.66 

0.21 
190.88 

The Disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to Micro and Small Enterprises have been made in the standalone Financial Statements based 

on the Information received and available with the company. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the 

balance sheet date.Hence additional disclosure as per MSME Act is not required. These facts have been relied upon by the auditors. 

(a) the principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year 

(b) Interest due on principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each 
accounting year 

{c) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the 
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year 

(d) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which 
has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest 
specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006; 

(e) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; 
and 

(f) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, 
until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the 
purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006 

Other Financial Liabilities 

Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings (Refer Note- 17) 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 
Payab!e on purchase of Property, Plant e, Equipment 
Finance Lease (Refer note 40) 
Deposit From Customers 
Provision for Estimated Loss on Derivative Contracts 

Pro\lisions 

Provision for Employee Benefits 

- Gratuity {Refer Note 36) 

- Leave Encashment (Refer Note 36) 

Non - Current 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

(tin Lakhs) 

1.20 

1.17 
Total 2.37 

Other Current Liabilities 

Statutory Liabilities 

Income Tax Liabilities (net) 

current Tax Liabilities (net) 

Total 

Non - Current 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

(t' In Lakhs) 

Total 

Total 

As at 
31st March. 2021 

(tin Lakhs) 
5.46 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

(t In Lakhs) 

Current 

As at 

423.42 
41.00 
47.1B 
0.41 
0.06 
6.42 

518.49 

31st March. 2021 
(t In Lakhs) 

As at 

0.00 

0.3B 

0 .3B 

31st March, 2021 
(tin Lakhs) 

24.99 
24.99 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

(tin Lakhs) 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

(t In Lakhs) 
0 .01 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

(tin Lakhs) 

439.43 
59.96 
95.4B 

0.37 

595.24 

Current 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

(t In Lakhs) 

0.11 

0.11 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

(t In Lakhs) 

21 .16 
21,16 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

(t' In Lakhs) 
10.45 
10.45 
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25 Revenue from Operations For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 

(t In Lakhs) 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020 

(tin Lakhs) 

26 

27 

28 

Revenue from Operations: 
Income from Service of Transmission Line 
Other Operating Income 

Details of Revenue from Contract with Customer 
Contract b;ilancgs· 

Total 

4,855.35 
0.12 

4,855.47 

4,806.32 

4,808.32 

(a) The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from the contracts with customers. 

Particulars As at As at 
31st Morch, 2021 31st March, 2020 

(t In Lakhs) (tin Lakhs) 
Trade receivables (refer note 10) 1,116.16 1,531.44 
Contract assets (refer note 13) 55B.28 562.10 
Contract liabilities -

The contract assets primarily relate to the Company's right to consideration for work completed but not billed at the reporting date. The contract 
assets are transferred to receivables when the rights become unconditional. This usually occurs when the Company issues an invoice to the 
Customer. The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from the customers. 

(b) Reconciliation the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price : 

Particulars As at As at 
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 

(l' In Lakhs) (r in Lakhs) 
Revenue as per contracted price 4,855.35 4,615.35 

Adiustm-:ots 
Oiscounts 7.03 
Revenue from contract with customers 4,855.35 4,808.32 

Other Income For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2D21 31st March, 2020 

(l' In Lakhs) (t In Lakhs) 
Gain on Sale/Remeasurement of Fair Value of Current Investments measured at FVTPL 16.21 33.23 
Interest Income 

- Bank 108.59 37.78 
- Other 144,40 2.37 

Sale of Scrap 0 .03 
Unclaimed liability/Excess Provisions written back 3.75 

Total 269.20 77,16 

Operating eJCpenses For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 
~ In Lakhs) (t In Lakhs) 

Maintenance of Transmission Line 332.32 326.22 
Total 332.32 326.22 

Employee Benefits Expenses For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 

(t In Lakhs) (t In Lakhs) 

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 26.84 7.38 
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 1.84 0.50 
Employee Welfare Expenses 0 .99 0.21 

Total 29.67 8.09 
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251 Finance costs 

(a) In tercst Expense 
- Borrowing 

Tracie Credits 
- Others 

(b) Other borrowing costs : 

- Bank Charges 8- Other Borrowing Costs 
- Loss on Derivatives Contracts 

30 Other Expen,es 

Stores and Spares 
Legal 8- Professional Expenses 
Rent Expenses 
Insurance Expenses 
Payment to Auditors (Refer Nate Below) 
Office Expenses 
Communication expenses 
Travelling e, Conveyance Expenses 
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer Note 41) 
Miscellaneous Expenses 

Note: Payment to Auditors • 
Statutory Audit Fees 
Tax Audit Fees 
Reimbursement 

31 Income Tax : 

Total (a) 

Total (b) 
Total (a+b) 

Total 

The major components of income tax expense for the year enctect 31st March. 2021 are: 
Income Tax Expense : 

Current Tax: 
Current Income Tax Charge (MAT) 
Current Tax relating to earl ier periods 

Deferred tax: 
Relating to origination anct reversal of temporary differences 
Income tax upenses reported In statement of profit and loss 

Total tax expense as per P&L 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 

({' in Lakhs) 

82B.05 

8.48 
836.53 

21.13 
616,71 

637.84 
1.474.37 

For the year ended 
31st March. 2021 

({' In Lakhs) 

2.45 
15,44 

7.20 
1.04 
4.09 

27.24 
4.72 

25.76 
4.45 

512.39 

0.53 
0.51 

1.04 

For the year ended 
31st March. 2021 

({' in Lakhs) 

439.07 

adani 
Tran!.mission 

For the year ended 
31st March. 2020 

({' in Lakhs) 

1.235.76 
60,48 

11.61 
1,307.85 

205,71 
7.77 

213.4B 
1,521.33 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020 

(' in Lakhs) 

0 .00 
17,14 
0.76 
5.56 
0 .B9 

7.42 
5.24 
8.60 
0.01 

45.62 

0.47 
0 .38 
0.04 
0.89 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020 

({' In Lakhs) 

451.39 

_____ _,(._4""-03-'.1'-'6~) --------
35-511 451.351 

79D.4B 300.50 
7510.48 300.50 

826.351 751.851 

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by applicable tu rate for March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020. 

Particulars . 

Accounting profit/ (loss) before tax 
Income tax using Applicable tax rate 
Tax Effect of : 
a) Adjustment relating to earlier years 
b) Impact of Deferred Tax due to change in tax rate 
c) Reversal of MAT Credit of previous year 
ct) Others 

Tax provisions: 
Current tax for the year 
Current Tax relating ta earlier periods 
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 

Income tax recognised in the statement of profit and loss at ctrectlve rate 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 31st March. 2020 

({' in Lakhs) (" in Lakhs) 

2.n9.19 2,563.53 
699.47 752.32 

(403.16) 
(201.70) 
731.7B 

(0.43) 

826.351 751.89 

439.07 451.39 
(403,16) 
790.48 300.50 

B26.351 751.89 

~

~:.::li~J I .,,\\ '?, ,, 
~ 

,~.\ / 
.,_ ........ _.../-_,; ~~~/ 
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Unrecognised deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits 
Deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits for which no deferred tax assets have been recognised are 
attributable to the following are Expiry of unrecognised deferred tax assets is as detailed below 

Particulars 

Unused tax credits 
Unused tax losses 

Nate: 

Total 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

Ct' in Lakhs) 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

(l' in Lakhs) 
731.78 

979,24 
1,711.02 

On 20 September, 2019, vide the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019, the Government of India inserted Section 1158AA in the Income 
Tax Act, 1961 which provides domestic companies a non-reversible option to pay corporate tax@22% plus applicable surcharge and cess (·New tax 
rate•). effective from 01st April, 2019 subject to certain conditions. The Company has decided to avail the benefit provided under the above 
Ordinance. 

32 Earnings per Share 

Basic and Diluted EPS 
Profit/ (Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders 
No of Equity Shares Outstanding 
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding during the 
year 
Nominal Value of Equity Share 
Basic and Diluted EPS 

('{' in lakhs) 

No. 

No. 

"' 
"' 

For the year ended For the year ended 
3Ht March, 2021 31st March, 2020 

('t' in Lakhs) ('{' in Lakhs) 

1,952.80 1,831.64 
1.00,00,000 1.00.00,000 

1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000 

10 10 
19.53 18.32 
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33 Contingent liabilities and commitments : 

(i) Contingent liabilities : 

(Ii) Commitments : 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of capital 
advances) 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

(\' in Lakhs) 

109.76 

109.76 

adani 
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As at 
31st March, 2020 

(\' in Lakhs) 

339.21 

339.21 

34 a) The Company has taken various derivatives to hedge its loans. The outstanding position of derivative instruments are as under: 

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020 

Nature Purpose 
Foreign Foreign 

tin Lakhs Currency tin Lakhs Currency 
(USO In Million) (USO in Million) 

Principal Hedging of foreign currency borrowing 14,190.65 19.41 12,106.40 16.00 
Only principal liability 
Swaps 
Forwards Hedging of foreign currency borrowing 732.31 1.00 3,802.03 5.02 

principal El- interest liability 

b) The details of foreign currency exposures those are not hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are as under: 

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020 

Particulars Foreign Foreign 
fin Lakhs Currency f In Lakhs Currency 

(USO in Million) (USO In Million) 
import Creditors and Acceptances - 103.63 0.14 

c) Foreign Currency Risk Sensitivity 
A change of 1¾ In Foreign currency would have following Impact on profit before tax 

(\' In Lakhs) 

Particulars 
For the Year 2020-21 For the Year 2019-20 

1% Increase I 1¾ Decrease 1¾ Increase I 1¾ Decrease 
Risk Sensitivity I (1.04)1 Rupee/ USO - (Increase)/ Decrease 1.04 

35 Capital Management 
The company's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity and healthy capital ratios is order to support its business and 
provide adequate return to share holders through continuing growth. The company's overall strategy remains unchanged from previous year. 

The company sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long term operation plans wh ich include capital and 
other strategic investment. 

The funding requirement are met through a miKture of equity, internal fund generation and borrowing. The company's policy is to use 
borrowing to meet anticipated funding requirements. 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended as at 31st March, 2021. 

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt (total debt less cash and bank balance)divided by total capital plus net 
debt. 

('{ in Lakhs) 
Particulars Refer Note 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 

Total Borrowings 17 e- 21 14,009.88 14,985.98 
Less: Cash and Bank Balance 11 e-12 248.64 1,264.37 
Net Debt (A) 13,761.24 13,721 .61 

Total Equity (B) 15 e- 16 5,380.22 3,697.69 
Total Equity and Net Debt (C=A+B) 19,141.46 17,419.30 
Gearing Ratio 0.72 0 .79 
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36 As per Indian Accounting standard IND AS 19 "Employee Benefits·. the disclosure as defined in the accounting standard are given below. 

(a) Defined Benefit Plan 
The Company operates a defined benefit plan (the Gratuity plan) covering eligible employees, which provides a lump sum payment to vested 
employees at retirement, death, lncapac;itation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respec;tive employee's salary and the 
tenure of employment. 

Partlculars 

i. Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of defined benefit obligation 
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations at the 
Current Service Cost 
Past Service Cost 
Interest Cost 
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain)/ loss arising from: 
- Change in demographic assumptions 
- Change in financials assumptions 
- Experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs. assumptions) 
Liability Transfer ln/(out) 
Benefits paid 
Net Ac;tuarial loss/ (gain) Rec;ognised 
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations at the end of the year 

II. Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of the Fair value of Plan assets 
Fair Value of Plan assets at the beginning of the year 
Expected return on plan assets 
Contributions 
Benefits paid 
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets 
Fair Value of Plan assets at the end of the year 

Iii. Reconciliation of the Present value of defined benefit obligation and Fair value of plan 
assets 
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations at the end of the year 
Fair Value of Plan assets at the end of the Year 
Net Asset/ (Liability) recognized in balanc;e sheet as at the end of the year 

iv. Gratuity Cost for the Year 
Current service cost 
Past Service Cost 
Interest cost 
Expected return on plan assets 
Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) 
Net Gratuity cost Transferred to Profit e- Loss 

v, Other Comprehensive Income 
Actuarial (gains)/ losses 
- Change in financial assumptions 
- Experience variance (i.e. Actual experiences assumptions) 
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other c;omprehensive income 

vi. Actuarial Assumptions 
Discount Rate (per annum) 
Annual Increase in Salary Cost 
Mortality Rates as given under Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate 

vii. Sensitivity Analysis 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

(\' in lakhs) 

0.11 
0.54 

0.05 

(0.14) 
0.64 

1.20 

1.20 

(1.20) 

0.54 

0.05 

0.59 

(0.15) 
(0.15) 

6.70% 
8.00% 
100% 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

(\' in Lakhs) 

Signific;ant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and 
mortality. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end 
of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below: 
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Particulars 

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base) 

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2021 

('{' in Lakhs) 
Decrease Increase 

Discount Rate (· / + 1%) 
(%_change compared to base due to sensitivity) 

Salary Growth Rate (- / + 1%) 
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 

Attrition Rate (· / + 50%) 
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 

Mortality Rate (· / + 10%) 
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 

viii. Asset Liability Matching Strategies 
The Scheme is managed on unfunded basis 

i-. Effect of Plan on Entity's Future Cash Flows 
a) Funding arrangements and Funding Polley 
The Scheme is managed on unfunded basis 

1.41 
17.00% 

1.04 
-13.90% 

1.33 
11.00% 

1.20 
0.00% 

b) EKpected Contribution during the neKt annual reporting period 
The Company's best estimate of Contribution during the neKt year is Nil 

c) Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation 
Weighted average duration (based on discounted cash flows) -16 years 

EKpected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis): 
1 year 
2 to 5 years 
6 to 10 years 
More than 10 years 

1.04 
-13.90% 

1.40 
16.60% 

1.09 
-9.10% 

1.20 
0.00% 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

('{' In Lakhs) 
1.20 

As at 

adani 
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As at 
31st March, 2020 

('{' in Lakhs) 
0.11 

31st March, 2020 
('{' In Lakhs) 

Decrease Increase 

('{' in lakhs) 
0.00 
0.17 

0.38 
3.43 

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated 
term of the obligations. 

The actuarial liability for leave encashment and compensated absences (including Sick Leave) as at the year ended 31st March 2021 is f 1.55 
Lakhs (As at 31st March'2020 f Nil). 

(b) Defined Contribution Plan 
Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans, capitalised for the year is as under: 

Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

(tin Lakhs) 
1.23 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

(tin Lakhs) 
0.37 
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37 The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as on 31st March 2021 
(? in Lakhs) 

Fair Value 
Fair Value 

Particulars 
through other 

through Profit or Amortised Cost Total 
Comprehensive 

Loss 
Income 

Financial Assets 
Investments in mutual funds 175.27 175.27 
Loans 3,041.04 3,041 .04 
Trade Receivables 1,116.16 1,116.16 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 243.76 243 .76 
Bank Balances other than above 4.87 4.87 
Derivative Instruments 0.41 0.41 
Other Financial Assets 1.344.26 1,344.26 
Total 175.68 5,750.09 5,925.77 
Financial liabilities 
Borrowings (including current maturities) 14,009.88 14,009.88 
Derivative Instruments (270.42) 686.8B 416.46 
Trade Payables 40.08 40.08 
Other Financial Liabilities 204.28 204.28 
Total (270.42) 686,88 14,254.23 14,670.70 

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as on 31st March 2020 
Ct" in Lakhs) 

Fair Value 
Fair Value 

Particulars 
through other 

through Profit or Amortised Cost Total 
Comprehensive 

Loss 
Income 

Financial Assets 
Loans 517.97 517.97 
Trade Receivables 1,531.44 1,531.44 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 52B.10 528.10 
Bank Balances other than above 736.27 736.27 
Derivative Instruments (33.16) 301.25 26B.10 
Other Financial Assets - 1,176.72 1.176.72 
Total (33.16) 301 ,25 4,490.50 4,758.59 
Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings (including current maturities) 14,985.9B 14,985.98 
Trade Payables 190.BB 190.88 
Other Financial Liabilities 393.3B 393.38 
Total - 15,570.24 15,570.24 

- The management assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalents, other balance with banks, trade receivables, loans. trade payables, other 
financial assets and liability approximate their carrying amount largely due to the short term matutities of these instruments. 
• The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction 
between willing parties. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values. 
• Fair value of mutual funds are based on the price quotations near the reporting date , 
• The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with various counterparties, principally banks and financial Institutions with investment grade 
credit ratings. Foreign exchange forward contracts are valued using valuation techniques, which employs the use of market observable inputs. The most 
frequently applied valuation techniques include forward pricing and swap models using present value calculations. The models incorporate various inputs 
including the credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates, yield curves of the respective currencies, currency basis spreads 
between the respective currencies, interest rate curves and forward rate curves of the underlying currency, All derivative contracts are fully collateralized, 
thereby, eliminating both counterparty and the company's own non-performance risk. 

38 Fair Value hierarchy 
(t In Lakhs) 

Particulars As at As at 
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 

Level 2 Level 2 
Assets 
Investments in Mutual Funds 175.27 
Derivative instruments designated In hedge accounting relationship 0.41 26B.09 
Total (a) 175.68 268.09 
Liabilities 
Derivative instruments designated in hedge accounting relationship 416,46 
Total (b) 416.46 
Total (c=a+b) 5!l2.14 268.09 

• Fair value of mutual funds are based on the price quotations at the reporting date 
• The fair value of Derivative instruments is derived using valuation techniques which include forward pricing and swap models using present va lue 
calculations. 
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39 Financial Risk objective and policies 
n,e Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables, The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the 
Company's operations/projects. The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that 
derive directly from its operations. 

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is mainly exposed to risks resulting from exchange rate fluctuation (currency risk), interest rate 
movements (interest rate risk) collectively referred as Market Risk. Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk and other price risks such as equity price risk. The Company's 
senior management oversees the management of these risks. It manages its exposure to these risks through derivative financial instruments by hedging 
transactions. It uses derivative instruments such as Principal only Swaps, Interest rate swaps, foreign currency future options and foreign currency 
forward contract to manage these risks. These derivative instruments reduce the impact of both favourable and unfavourable fluctuations. 
The Company's risk management activities are subject to the management, direction and control of Central Treasury Team of the Group under the 

framework of Risk Management Policy for Currency and Interest rate risk as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Group's central 
treasury team ensures appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company through appropriate policies and procedures and that financial 
risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group's policies and risk objectives. It is the Group's policy that no trading in 
derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. 

The decision of whether and when to execute derivative financial instruments along with its tenure can vary from period to period depending on market 
conditions and the relative costs of the instruments. The tenure is linked to the timing of the underlying exposure, with the connection between the two 
being regularly monitored. The Company is exposed to losses in the event of non-performance by the counterparties to the derivative contracts. All 
derivative contracts are executed with counterparties that. in our judgment, are creditworthy. The outstanding derivatives are reviewed periodically to 
ensure that there is no inappropriate concentration of outstanding to any particular counterparty. 

Further, all currency and interest rate risks as identified above is measured on a daily basis by monitoring the mark to market (MTM) of open and hedged 
position. The methodology used for computing fair value against different derivative products is as follows: 
The MTM is derived basis underlying market curves on closing basis of relevant instrument quoted on Bloomberg/Reuters. For quarter ends, the MTM for 
each derivative instrument outstanding is obtained from respective banks, 

Interest rate risk 
The company is exposed to changes in market interest rates due to financing, investing and cash management activities. The Company's exposure to the 
risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to The Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates and period of 
borrowings. However, during the year and as at period end the Company does not have any borrowings with floating interest rates. Hence. the company is 
not exposed to any interest rate risk. 
Credit risk 
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a loss to the company. The Company has adopted 
the policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial losses from default, and generally does not obtain 
any collateral or ott~er security on trade receivables. 

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements represents the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk. 
Cash are held with creditworthy financial institutions. 
Liquidity risk 
The Company monitors its risk of shortage of funds using cash flow forecasting models. These models consider the maturity of its financial investments. 
committed funding and projected cash flows from operations. The Company's objective is to provide financial resources to meet its business objectives In 
a timely, cost effective and reliable manner and to manage its capital structure. A balance between continuity of funding and flexibility is maintained 
through the use of various types of borrowings. 

The table below analysis derivative and non-derivative financial liabilities of the Company into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period 
from the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. 

(tin Lakhs) 
As at 31st March, 2021 Less than 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total 
Borrowings'# 1.163.66 4,430.32 20,264.06 25,858.04 
Trade Payables 40,08 40.08 
Other Financial Liabilities .. 95.07 441.90 83.n 620,74 

As at 31st March, 2020 Less than 1 year 1·5 years Over 5 years Total 
Borrowings"# 1,267.48 4,580.34 21,633.59 27,481.41 
Trade Payables 190.88 190.88 
Other Financial Liabilities•• 155.81 153.13 84.44 393.38 
• Includes Non-current borrowings, current borrowings, current maturities of non-current borrow,ngs, committed interest payments on borrowings. 

'' Includes both Non-current and current financial liabilities. Excludes current maturities of non-current borrowings. 
#The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial liabilities including interest that will be paid on those 
liabilities upto the maturity of the instruments, ignoring the call and refinancing options available with the Group. 
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40 Lei>ses 
Disclosure under Ind AS 116 leoses: 

('( in Lakhs) 
Particulars Amount 
Balance, as at 1st April, 2020 87.34 
Lease liabilities on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 
Finance Costs incurred during the year 8.49 
Net Payments of Lease Liabilities (B.B5) 
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 (Refer note 1B and 21) 86.9B 

Disclosure of Lease Contracts: 
The Company have been taken Leasehold Land on lease. The lease rent terms are for the period of 36 years. The lease agreement is of fixed rate and not 
cancellable. There is no contingent rent and no restrictions imposed by the lease arrangements, 

41 Corporate Social Responsibility 
As per section 135 of the Companies Act. 2013. a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) committee has been formed by the Company, The funds are 
utilized on the activities which are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act. 2013. The utilisation is done by way of contribution towards various 
activities. 

(a) Gross amount as per the limits of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 : 'C 25.76 Lakhs, (Previous year: 'C 8.52 Lakhs) 

(b) Amount spent and paid during the year ended 31st March, 2021 : 'C 25.76 Lakhs (Previous year : 'C 8.60 Lakhs) 

Particulars Amount Amount yet to 
Contributed contribute 

1. Construction/acquisition of any assets 
2. On purpose other than (1) above 25.76 
Total 25.76 

42 Events occurring after the Balance sheet Date 

('( in Lakhs) 

Total 

25.76 
25.76 

The Company evaluates events and transactions that occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to the approval of financial statements to 
determine the necessity for recognition and/or reporting of any of these events and transactions in the financial statements. As of 30th April, 2021, there 
are no subsequent events to be recognized or reported that are not already disclosed. 
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43 Related party disclosures: 

As per Jnd AS 24. Oiscfosure er transaction with related parties are given below: 

> Holding Entity 

> Fellow Subsidiary 

> Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

Adani Transmission limited 

Adani Transmission (RaJasthan) limited 

Maru Transmission Service Company limited. 
Chhattisgarh-WR Transmission limited, 
Raipur•RaJnandgaon-Warora Transmission limited. 

Mr. Hiteshkumar Vaghasiya, Whole Time Director 
Mr. Rajeev Kumar Jain, Director 
Mr. Anupam Sawhney, Director 
Mr. Anklt Somani. Chief Financial Orticer 
Mr. Jatin Sharma , Company Secretary 

> Entities under Common Control with whom there are· Adanl Foundation 
transactions during the year Adan! lnrrastructure Management Service limited 

Adani Infra (India) limited 
Raipur Energen Limited 
Adani Power Maharashtra Limited 

Note: 

adani 
Tr~n.smi:!:::;ion. 

The names of the related parties and nature or the relationships where control exists are disclosed For others, the names and the nature or relationships is 
disclosed only when the transactions are entered into by the Company with the related parties during the u :istence or the related party relationship. 

(A) Transactions with Related Parties 
(\' In Lakhs) 

Particulars With Holding Company With Fellow Subsidiary With Other Parties 

For the Ye.ir ended 
31st March, 31st March, 31st M•rch, 31st March, 31st March, 31st M•rch, 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Interest Expense 159.62 
Loan Taken 1.769.17 
Loan Repaid back 2,9n.11 

Equipment Hire Charges 0.05 

Professional e. Consultancy Fees 1.43 

Sale of Inventory 5.42 
Redemption or Optionally Convertible Redeemable 1,833.97 
Debentures 
Purchase of Goods 2TT.36 

Loan Given 2,673.07 2.673.07 517.97 
Loan Given Received Back 2,673.07 150.00 
Interest Income 36.76 107.65 2.37 
Operating and Maintenance e,cpenses 281.53 • 276.01 
Corporate Social Responsfbllity Expenses 25.76 8.60 

All above transactions are in the normal course of business and are made on terms equivalent ta those that prevail arm's length transactions. 

(B) Baliilnces with Related Parties (\' In Lakh,) 

Particulars With Holding Company With Fellow Subsidiary With Other P•rtl•• 

As at 
31st March, 31st March, l1st Marc:h, 31st March, 31st March, 31st March, 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Unsecured Loans (Receivable) 3,041.04 517.97 
Interest Accrued and due receivable 34.00 101.71 2.14 
Interest Accrued but not due 21.93 

Capex Advance 78.12 405.40 
Accounts Receivables 600.00 
Accounts Payable 1.69 55,13 61.01 
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44 Other Disclosures 

(i) The Company's operations rall under single segment namely ·Transmission Income· hence no separate disclosure of segment reporting Is required to be made as 
required under IND AS 108 'Operating Segments·. 

(ii) Considering that the Group Is In the business of Generation. Transmission and Distribution of Power which is considered to be essential service, the management 
confirms that the impact of COVID on the business and financial position of the Group is not significant. 

(iii) Previous year figures are regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current years classification/ disclosure. 

(iv) The Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021 have been approved by the Board of Directors at their meetings held on 30th April. 2021. 

As per our attached report of even date 

For Ohannesh Parikh & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 112054WJ\o\1100725 

Chirag Shah 
Partner 
Membership No. 122510 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : 30th April. 2021 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 

Hiteshkumar Vaghaslya 
Whole Time Director 
DIN:- 08084591 

Ankit Somani 
Chier Financial Officer 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : 30th April, 2021 

Anup,1m Sa,;,,hney 
Director 
DIN:- 0B581062 

JatJn Sharma 
Company Secretary 
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Independent Auditor's Report 
To the Members of Hadoti Power Transmission Service Limited 

Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

303/304, "Milestone'' 

Nr. D1fre-in-Cin1cma. Opp.T.V.Tower. 

Thaltej. Aluuedabad-380054 

Phone: 91-79-27474466 

Email: info@dharmeshparikh.net 
Website: www.dharmeshparikh.net 

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Hadoti Power Transmission Service 
Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 st March, 2022, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in 
Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (herein after referred to as "Standalone Financial Statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed 
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, 
("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as 
at 31 st March, 2022, the Profit and total comprehensive Income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year 
ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the standalone financial statements. 

Other Information 
The Company's board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Director's Rep01i but does not include the financial 
statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other infonnation, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation and presentation of these Standalone Financial Statements that 
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, 
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the applicable Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, 
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. 

Dharmesh Parikh & Co. (Registration No. GUJ/AH/102552), a Partnership Firm has been converted into 
Dharmesh Parikh & Co LLP (LLP Identification No. AAW-6517) with effect from 9th Day of April, 2021 
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To the Members ofHadoti Power Transmission Service Limited (Continue) 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section l 43(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related 
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Dharmesh Parikh & Co. (Registration No. GUJ/AH/102552), a Partnership Firm has been converted into 
Dharmesh Parikh & Co LLP (LLP Identification No. AAW-6517) with effect from 9th Day of April, 2021 

125

 



DHAR1"1ESH PARIKH & CO LLP 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
[LLPL',: AAW-6517] 

Independent Auditor's Report 

303/304. "'.\lilestone"" 

Nr. DriYe-in-Cinema. Opp.TV.Tower. 

Thaltej. Aluuedabad-380054 

Phone: 91-79-27474466 

Email: info@dharmeshparikh.net 
Website: www.dharmeshparikh.net 

To the Members ofHadoti Power Transmission Service Limited (Continue) 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial 
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the 
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central 
Government oflndia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" 
a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books; 

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement 
of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended; 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act; 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 'Annexure 
B"; 

Dharmesh Parikh & Co. (Registration No. GUJ/AH/102552), a Partnership Firm has been converted into 
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To the Members ofHadoti Power Transmission Service Limited (Continue) 

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 ( as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

A. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial 
position; 

B. The Company had made provision as on March 31, 2022, as required the applicable law or 
Indian accounting standard for material foreseeable losses, if any on long term contracts 
including derivative contracts; 

C. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company. 

D. (i) The management of the company has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and 
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or 
kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 

(ii) The management of the company has represented that, that, to the best of it's knowledge 
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received 
by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding 
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

(iii) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances; nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement. 

E. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. 

F. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has amended the Rule 3 of Companies (Accounts) 
rules, 2014 by way of notification dated 31st March, 2022. Accordingly, requirement to have 
accounting software with a feature of recording audit trail is extended till 1st April, 2023. 
Therefore, nothing is required to be reported under this para for the year under review. 
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To the Members ofHadoti Power Transmission Service Limited (Continue) 

3. With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, managerial remuneration/ Director Sitting Fee has not been paid. Accordingly, 
reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable. 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date : 25/04/2022 

For, DHARMESH PARIKH & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No: 112054W/W100725 

Chirag Shah 
Partner 
Membership No. 122510 
UDIN - 22122510AISL VU4445 
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The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the Company on the Standalone 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 st March, 2022, we report that: 

i. a).(A) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, the company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(B) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification the company has maintained proper record showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

b). According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and 
Equipment's by which all Property, Plant and Equipment are verified by the management in a phased manner 

over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were 
verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this 
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its 
assets. Based on our verification, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

c ). According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, the title deeds of all the immovable properties. (Other than properties where the company is the 
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements 
are held in the name of the company as at the Balance Sheet date. 

d). According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, the company does not revalue its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) 
or intangible assets or both during the year. Accordingly, the provision of paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order is 
not applicable. 

e ). According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami 
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 ( 45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

ii. a). According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its inventory. In our opinion, 
the coverage and procedure of verification by management is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on 
verification between the physical stock and the book records were not material and have been appropriately 
dealt with in the books of accounts. 

b ). According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, the company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in 
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the 
provision of paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

iii. According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our verification 
the company has not made any investment in or provided any guarantee or security to companies or granted 
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to firms, Limited Liability Partnership or 
any other party. Except for, the company has provided unsecured loan to its Holding company. 
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a) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, the company has the company has provided unsecured loan to holding company. 

Guarantees Security Loans Advances m 
(Rs. In nature of loans 
Crores) 

Aggregate amount granted 
/ provided during the year 
- Subsidiaries - - - -
- Holding - - 300.00 -
- Associates - - - -
Balance outstanding as at 
balance sheet date in 
respect of above cases 
- Subsidiaries - - - -
- Holding - - 346.70 -
- Associates - - - -

b ). According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, the terms and conditions of the grant loans are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. 

c ). According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, in respect of unsecured loans to companies, the schedule of repayment of principal and 
payment of interest has been stipulated and receipts are regular. However, ICD interest has been 
capitalized to the principal amount as per ICD agreements entered between the parties. 

d). According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, there are no amount of loan which are overdue for more than ninety days. 

e ). According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, any loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year, has not 
been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same 
parties. Accordingly, the provision of paragraph 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable. 

f). According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, the company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on 
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. Accordingly, the provision of paragraph 
3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 

iv. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us and representations made by the 
Management, the Company has not granted any loans, given any guarantees or provided any securities to the 
parties covered under section 185 of the Act. Accordingly, compliance under section 185 of the Act is not 
applicable to the company. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is 
engaged in the business of providing establishing, commissioning, setting up, operating and maintaining 
electric power transmissions systems and accordingly the provisions of Section 186 (except subsection (1) of 
Section 186) of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company has not made investments referred in Section 186(1) of the Act. 
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v. According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the 
public within the meaning of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of section 73 to 
76 of the Act, any other relevant provisions of the Act and the relevant rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, 
the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

vi. Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain cost 
records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We have broadly reviewed the 
same, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and 
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine 
whether they are accurate or complete. 

vii. a). According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory 
dues including Income-Tax, Goods and Service Tax and other statutory dues have generally been regularly 
deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
Income-Tax, Goods and Service Tax and other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period 
of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

b ). According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues as referred in sub 
clause(a) as at 31 March 2022, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of 
any dispute. 

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the company has not surrendered or disclosed transactions as income during the year in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 ( 43 of 1961 ). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(viii) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

ix. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of 
interest thereon to any lender. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we 
report that the company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority or any other lender. 

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report 
that the company has not raised term loans during the period. 

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an 
overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no funds were raised on short­
term basis by the company during the year under consideration. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix)(d) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

e ). According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial 
statements of the company, we report that the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on 
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. 
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f). According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its 
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

x. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement or not issued any fully or 
partly convertible debenture during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3(x)(b) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

xi. a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in accordance 
with the generally accepted auditing practice in India, and according to the information and explanation given 
to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the company or on the company by its 
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 

b). No report on any matter under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in 
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government. 

c). As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the company 
during the year. 

xii. In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of Clauses 3 (xii) (a) to 
(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

xiii. As per information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, all the transaction with related parties is in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act 
2013, wherever applicable, and all the details have been disclosed in Standalone Financial Statements as 
required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards. 

xiv. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records, we are of the opinion that the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and 
nature of its business. 

b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the period under audit. 

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions, within the meaning of Section 192 of 
the Act, with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

xi. a). In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required 
to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, provision of 
Paragraph 3(xvi) (a to c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

Dharmesh Parikh & Co. (Registration No. GUJ/AH/102552), a Partnership Firm has been converted into 
Dharmesh Parikh & Co LLP (LLP Identification No. AAW-6517) with effect from 9th Day of April, 2021 

132

 



DHARl\IESH PARIKH & CO LLP 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
[LLPI.'.\": AAW-6517] 

Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor's Report 
RE: Hadoti Power Transmission Service Limited 
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 of our Report of even date.) 

303/304. "Ivlilestone .. 

~r. DriYe-in-Cinema. Opp.T.V.Tower. 

Thaltej. Alunedabad-380054 

Phone: 91-79-27474466 

Email: info@dharmeshparikh.net 
Website: www.dharmeshparikh.net 

d). In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the group does not have any 
CIC as part of the group. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3(xvi) ( d) of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company. 

xii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not incurred cash losses in current financial year and also not in the immediately 
preceding financial year. 

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no resignation of the statutory auditors 
during the year in the company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and 
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and 
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, 
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company 
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one 
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due. 

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
and there is no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the 
Companies Act or special amount in compliance with the provision of Sub-Section (6) of Section 135 of the 
Said Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date : 25/04/2022 

For, DHARMESH PARIKH & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No: 112054W/W100725 

P1.1At1fi'.. J.. ........ -- -a (I ~Yt ' 

Chirag Shah 
Partner 
Membership No. 122510 
UDIN - 22122510AISL VU4445 
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies 
Act 2013 (the act). 

Opinion 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Hadoti Power Transmission Service 
Limited ("the Company") as of 31 st March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements of the company for the year ended on that date. 

In our opinion the company has, in all material aspects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 
31 st March, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Management's Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the Guidance Note) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and 
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 

(I) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date : 25/04/2022 

For, DHARMESH PARIKH & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No: 112054W/W100725 

Chirag Shah 
Partner 
Membership No. 122510 
UDIN - 22122510AISL VU4445 
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HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022 

Particulars 

ASSETS 

Non-current Assets 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Capital work-In-Progress 
Right of use Assets 
Intangible Assets 
Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 

(ii) Loans 

(iii; Other Financial Assets 
Income Tax Assets (net) 
Other Non-current Assets 

Total Non-current Assets 

Current Assets 

Inventories 

Financial Assets 
(i) Investments 
(ii) Trade Receivables 
(iii; Cash and Cash Equivalents 
(iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 
(v) Other Financial Assets 

Other Current Assets 

Total Current Assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 
Share Capital 
Other Equity 

Total Equity 

Liabilities 

Non-current Liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(ia; Lease Liabilities 
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 

Provisions 

Oeferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 

Total Non-current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(ia; Lease Liabilities 
(ii) Trade Payables 

Total Assets 

a. Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 
b. Total outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises 

(iii; Other Financial Liabilities 
Provisions 

Other Current Liabilities 
Income Tax Liabilities (net) 

Total Current Liabilities 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

Total Equity and Liabilities 

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements. 

As per our report attached of even date 

For Dharmesh Parikh e Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 112054W/W100725 

Chirag Shah 
Partner 
Membership No. 122510 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : 25th April, 2022 

Note 

4 
4A 
48 
4C 

5 

6 

7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 

16 
17 

18 
19 
20 
26 
21 

22 
23 

24 

25 
26 
27 
28 

As at 
31st March, 2022 

13,020.05 
691.06 

1,329.56 
6.42 

1,700.00 

3,387.74 

824.24 

20,959.07 

22.77 

1,107.57 
760.37 
251.28 

5.18 
826.00 

15.79 

2,988.96 

23,948.03 

1,000.00 
6,744.91 
7,744.91 

13,661.06 
86.11 

169.21 
5.51 

1,321.14 

15,243.03 

439.25 
0.45 

0.33 
201.54 
110.96 

0.92 
29.18 

177.46 
960.09 

23,948.03 

Tronsmission 

Cf in Lakhs) 
As at 

31st March, 2021 

12,788.30 
622.28 

1,373.88 
3.28 

3,041.04 

638.02 
360.53 

78.12 
18,905.45 

175.27 
1,116.16 
243.76 

4.87 
706.65 

13.89 

2,260.60 

21,166.05 

1,000.00 
4,380.22 
5,380.22 

13,586.46 
86.57 

439.10 
2.37 

1,087.39 

15,201.89 

423.42 
0.41 

5.46 
34.62 
94.66 

0.38 
24.99 

583.94 

21,166.05 

For and on behalf of the Soard of Directors 
HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 

Hiteshkumar Vaghasiya 
Whole Time Director 
DIN:- 08084591 

• 

"'~'" Chief Financial Officer 

Place : Ahmedabad 
r, Date : 25th April, 2022 

l~~ 

Anupam Sawhney 
Director 
DIN:- 08581062 

Otc1GU sLL 
Dhwani Solanki 
Company Secretary 
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HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2022 

Transmission 

({ in Lakhs) 

Particulars 

Income 
Revenue from Operations 
Other Income 

Total Income 

Expenses 
Operating Expenses 
Employee Benefits Expenses 
Finance Costs 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 
Other Expenses 

Total Expenses 
Profit before tax for the year 

Tax Expense 

Current Tax 

Current Tax relating to earlier periods 

Deferred Tax 

Total Tax Expenses 

Profit after tax for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income 

(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
(b) Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 
Profit or Loss 
(c) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 
(d)Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Profit or 
Loss 

Other Comprehensive Income (After Tax) for the year 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

Earnings Per Share (EPS) (in t) 
(Face Value t 10 Per Share) 

Basic e, Diluted Earnings per Share 

Note 

29 
30 

31 
32 
33 

4, 48 e, 4C 
34 

35 

Total A 

Total B 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022 

4,863.06 
747.37 

5,610.43 

341.76 
47.57 

1.479.44 
452.65 
110.86 

2,432.28 
3,178.15 

600.68 

27.06 

221.70 

849.44 

2,328.71 

0.13 

47.90 

(12.05) 

35.98 

Total (A+B) 2,364.69 ========== 

36 23.29 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 

4,855.47 
269.20 

5,124.67 

332.32 
29.67 

1,474.37 
416.73 
92.39 

2,345.48 
2,779.19 

439.07 

(403.16) 

790.48 

826.39 

1,952.80 

0.15 

(358.90) 

88.48 

(270.27) 

1,682.53 

19.53 

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements. 

As per our report attached of even date 

For Dharmesh Parikh & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 112054W/W100725 

Chirag Shah 
Partner 

Membership No. 122510 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : 25th April, 2022 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 

~ 777-;7, 
Hiteshkumar Vaghasiya 
Whole Time Director 

DIN:- 08084591 

• 

Dh~urthy 
Chief Financial Officer 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : 25th April, 2022 

(;j-~ 

Anupam Sawhney 
Director 

DIN:- 08581062 

Dhwani Solanki 
Company Secretary 
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HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 

Statement of Cash flow for the year ended 31st March, 2022 

Particulars 

A. Cash flow from operating activities 

Profit before tax 
Adjustments for: 

Finance Costs 
Depreciation Expense 
Gain on Sale/Remeasurement of Fair Value of Current Investments measured at FVTPL 
Unclaimed Liability/Excess Provisions written back 

Interest income from bank and other 
Operating profit before working capital changes 

Changes in Working Capital: 
(Increase) I Decrease in Assets : 

Loans and other financ·1al assets and other assets 
Inventories 
Trade Receivables 

Increase/ (Decrease) in Liabilities : 
Trade Payables 
Other Financial Liabilities. other liabilities and provision 

Cash generated from operations 

Tax paid (Net of Income tax Refund) 

Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 

B. Cash flow from investing activities 

Payment of Capital expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment, including capital advance 
Proceeds from/ (Deposits in) Bank deposits (net) (Including Margin money deposit) 
Sale/(Purchase) of current investment (net) 
Loans given to related party 
Investment in perpetual equity instrument 
Interest Income (includes delayed payment charges off 320.88 Lakhs) 

Net cash used in investing activities (B) 

C. Cash flow from financing activities 

Proceeds from Long-term borrowings 
Repayment of Long-term borrowings 

Payment towards finance lease 
Finance Cost paid 

Net cash generated from financing activities (c) 

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 12) 

Cash and cash equivalent includes 

• Refer Note 12 
Balances with banks 

- In current account 

Disclosure as per Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022 

3,178.15 

1,479.44 
452.65 
(30.13) 
(6.34) 

(710.91) 
4,362.86 

(5.62) 
(22.77) 

355.79 

168.12 
7.99 

4,866.37 

(89.74) 

4,n6.63 

(477.23) 
(46.04) 
(902.17) 

(300.00) 
(1,700.00) 

549.90 
(2,875.54) 

(448.56) 

(8.85) 
(1.436.16) 
(1,893.57) 

7.52 

243.76 

251.28 

Asat 
31st March, 2022 

251.28 
251.28 

adani 
Tcansmission 

~ in Lakhs) 
For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 

2,779.19 

1.474.37 
416.73 
(16.21) 

(253.00) 
4,401.08 

606.61 

415.28 

(45.65) 
6.69 

5,384.01 

(406.89) 

4,9n.12 

(542.64) 
93.37 

(159.07) 
(2,523.07) 

119.65 
(3,011.76) 

(439.82) 

(8.86) 
(1,801.01) 

(2,249.69) 

(284.34) 

528.10 

243.76 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

243.76 
243.76 

The Ind AS 7 require entities to provide disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes 
(such as foreign exchange gains or losses). The Company has provided the information for current and previous year. 

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities ~ in Lakhs) 
Particulars 1st April, 2021 Cash Flows Foreign Exchange Other 31st March, 2022 

Management 

Long-term Borrowings 14,009.88 (448.56) 522.06 16.93 14,100.31 
(Including Current Maturities of Long Term Debt) 
Total 14,009.88 (448.56) 522.06 16.93 14,100.31 

Particulars 1st April, 2020 Cash Flows Foreign Exchange Other 31st March, 2021 
Management 

Long-term Borrowings 14,985.98 (439.82) (502.53) (33.75) 14,009.88 
(Including Current Maturities of Long Term Debt) 
Total 14,985.98 (439.82) (502.53) (33.75) 14,009.88 
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HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 

Statement of Cash flow for the year ended 31st March, 2022 

Notes to Cash Flow Statement: 

1. The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the Indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows". 

2. Disclosure under Para 44A as set out in Ind AS 7 on cash flow statements under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2017 (as amended) is given as above. 

Transmission 

3. Interest accrued on Inter Corporate Deposit ("ICD") given to related parties amounting to~ 46.70 Lakhs (Previous year - ~ Nil lakhs), have been converted to Inter Corporate Deposit as on the 
reporting date as per the terms of Contract. 
4. Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary, to conform to this year's classification. 

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the standalone Financial Statements. 

As per our report attached of even date 

For Dharmesh Parikh 8 Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 112054W/W100725 

Chirag Shah 
Partner 
Membership No. 122510 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : 25th April, 2022 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 

Whole Time Director 
DIN:- 08084591 

"' 

Dh~rthy 
Chief Financial Officer 

Place : Ahmedabad 

t..A~~''"' "" 

------

Anupam Sawhney 
Director 
DIN:- 08581062 

(}wv-· SlJ--
Dhwani Solanki 
Company Secretary 
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HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March, 2022 

A. Equity Share Capital 

Particulars No. of Shares 
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 10,000,000 
Changes in equity share capital during the year : 
i) Issue of shares during the year 
Balance as at 31th March, 2021 10,000,000 
Changes in equity share capital during the year : 
i) Issue of shares during the year 
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 10,000,000 

B. Other Equity 

Reserves and Surplus 
Particulars 

Retained Earnings 

Balance as at 1st April, 2020 2,730.BS 
Add/(Less) : Profit/(Loss) for the year 1,952.80 
Add/(Less) : Comprehensive Gain/ (loss) for the year 0.15 
Add/(Less) : Tax Relating to cash flow hedge -
Balance as at 31th March, 2021 4,683.BO 
Add/(Less) : Profit/(Loss) for the year 2,328.71 
Add/(Less) : Comprehensive Gain/ (loss) for the year 0.13 
Add/(Less) : Tax Relating to cash flow hedge -
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 7,012.64 

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements. 

As per our report attached of even date 

F For Dharmesh Parikh & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
F Firm Registration Number: 112054W/W100725 

Chirag Shah 
Partner 
Membership No. 122510 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : 25th April, 2022 

Tronsmission 

(tin Lakhs) 
1,000.00 

1,000.00 

1,000.00 

(tin Lakhs) 
Items of other 

Comprehensive Income Total 
Effective portion of 

Cashflow Hedge 
(33.16) 2,697.69 

1,952.80 
(358.90) (358.75) 

88.48 88.48 
(303,58) 4,380.22 

2,328.71 
47.90 48.03 
(12.05) (12.05) 

(267.73) 6,744.91 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 

Hiteshkumar Vaghasiya 
Whole Time Director 
DIN:- 08084591 

~ 
Anupam Sawhney 
Director 
DIN:- 08581062 

~ {)we-· SiJA 
Dhvanit Murthy Dhwani Solanki 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : 25th April, 2022 
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HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2022 Transmission 

1 Corporate information 
Hadoti Power Transmission Service Limited ("the Company") is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated under the 
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 having registered office at Adani Corporate House, Shantigram, Near Vaishno Devi Circle, S. G. 
Highway, Khodiyar, Ahmedabad - 382421. The company is incorporated on 10th May, 2016 , operates five EHV overhead 
transmission lines with total circuit length of approximately 115 Ckms and five nos. Grid substation of 310 MVA capacity in the 
state of Rajasthan. 

2 Significant accounting policies 

a Basis of Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements 
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2017 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act') and presentation 
requirements of Division II of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule Ill). 
The Financial statements are presented in~ in Lakhs, unless otherwise indicated. 

b Current versus non-current classification 
An asset is treated as current when it is: 
- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; or 
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading; or 
- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 
An liability is treated as current when it is: 
- Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; or 
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading; or 
- Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash 
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

c Foreign Currency Transactions 
The Company's financial statements are presented in INR which is company's functional currency and items included in the 
financial statements are measured using this functional currency. 

i) Initial Recognition : 
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. 

ii) Conversion : 
At the year-end, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies, if any, are converted into rupee equivalents at exchange rate 
prevailing on the balance sheet date. 
iii) Exchange Differences : 
All exchange differences arising on settlement and conversion of foreign currency transaction are included in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

d Fair value measurement 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to 
sell the financial asset or settle the financial liability takes place either 
> In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
> In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic 
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in 
its highest and best use. 
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to 
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair 
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole: 
> Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
> Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or 
indirectly observable. 
> Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable 
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For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether 
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 
The Company's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as 
derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value. 

e Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other incentives, if 
any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes or other amounts collected from customers in 
its capacity as an agent. 

The accounting policies for the specific revenue streams of the Company as summarized below: 
1) Revenue from Service of Transmission Line is recognised in terms of the Tariff Based Competitive Bidding (TBCB) entered with 
Central and State Distribution Companies and is measured at the value of the consideration received or receivable, net of 
discounts if any. 
2) Profit/Loss on sale of Current investments are recognised on the contract date. 
3) Interest income is recognised on a time proportionate basis taking into account the amount invested and the rate applicable. 

4) Revenue in respect of delayed payment charges and interest on delayed payments leviable as per the relevant contracts are 
recognised on actual realisation or accrued based on an assessment of certainty of realization supported by either an 
acknowledgement from customers or on receipt of favourable order from regulator/ authorities. 
Contract Balances 
Contract assets 
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company 
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a 
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. 
Trade receivables 
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional i.e. only the passage of time is 
required before payment of consideration is due. 
Contract liabilities 
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received 
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the 
Company performs under the contract." 

f Taxes on Income 
i) Current Tax 
Current tax represents the amount of Income tax Payable in respect of the taxable income for the reporting period as 
determined in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961. 

Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis on estimated taxable income and tax credits computed in 
accordance with the provisions of the relevant tax laws and based on the expected outcome of assessments/ appeals. Current 
income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. 
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted, at the reporting 
date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax 
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

ii) Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any 
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. 

Net outstanding balance in Deferred Tax account is recognized as deferred tax liability/asset. The deferred tax account is used 
solely for reversing timing difference as and when crystallized. 

g Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 
Tangible fixed assets 
i) Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation / amortisation and impairment 
losses, if any. The cost comprises of the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition 
for its intended use. 
ii) Capital Work in progress comprises of cost of fixed assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the year end. 
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Depreciation and amortisation methods and periods 
i) Depreciation on fixed assets is calculated on straight-line method (SLM) using the rates arrived at based on the Useful Life as 
specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 
ii) Depreciation on Assets acquired or disposed off during the year is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of 
acquisition or disposal. 
Estimated useful lives of assets are as follows : 
Type of Assets Useful lives 
Plant and Equipment 35 Years 
Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years 
Office Equipment 5 Years 
Building 35 Years 
Computer Equipment 3 Years 
Vehicle 15 Years 

Intangible Assets 
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. An 
intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. 

Type of Assets Useful lives 

Computer Software 3 Years 
SAP License 1 Year 

h Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other 
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an 
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent 
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. 

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is 
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. 

Inventories 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on weighted average 
basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs 
necessary to make the sale. Cost of inventory includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present location and condition. Unserviceable/damaged stores and spares are identified and written down based on 
technical evaluation. 

Impairment of non-financial assets 
The carrying amount of assets, other than inventories, is reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets recoverable amount is estimated. 

The impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generation unit exceeds its recoverable 
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset's net selling price and value in the uses which is determined based 
on the estimated future cash flow discounted to their present values. All impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount and is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

k Financial instruments 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, 
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its 
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 
(A} Financial assets 
All financial assets, except investment in subsidiaries are recognised initially at fair value. 

The measurement of financial assets depends on their classification, as described below: 

1) At amortised cost 
A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 
(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows;·and 
(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of princip 
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 
This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subse 
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking i 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisati 
finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. 
generally applies to trade and other receivables. 
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2) At Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI} 
A financial asset is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 
(a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and 

(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair 
value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI) and on derecognition , cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to statement of profit and loss. For equity instruments, the Company may make an 
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value in OCI. If the Company decides to classify an equity 
instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is 
no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. 

3) At Fair Value through Profit 8- Loss (FVTPL) 
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments and default category for equity instruments. Financial assets included within 
the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria, as 
at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency 
(referred to as 'accounting mismatch'). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL. 

Oerecognition 
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration 
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss 
on disposal of that financial asset. 
The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial 
assets and credit risk exposure. The Company follows 'Simplified Approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on all 
trade receivables or contractual receivables. 
Under the simplified approach the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but it recognises impairment loss allowance 
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 
month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. 

ECL is the difference between all contracted cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the 
cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original EIR. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) 
recognised during the period is recognised as income/ (expense) in the statement of profit and loss. 

(B} Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition as at amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss. The measurement 
of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

At amortised cost 

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as 
well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the 
statement of profit and loss. 

At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL} 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities 
designated upon initial recognition as such. Subsequently, any changes in fair value are recognised in the statement of profit or 
loss. 

Derecognition of Financial Liability 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference in 
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Cash 8- Cash Equivalents (for purpose of cash flow statement} 

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposit with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original 
maturity of three months or less from the date of creation). 

m Cash Flow Statement 

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the 
effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from 
operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated based on the available information. 

n Earnings Per Share 

The Basic EPS has been computed by dividing the income available to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the accounting year. 
The Diluted EPS has been computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares 
outstanding at the end of the year. 
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o Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
Provision are recognised for when the company has at present, legal or contractual obligation as a result of past events, only if it 
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic outgo or loss will be required and if the amount involved can be 
measured reliably. 

Contingent liabilities being a possible obligation as a result of past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence or non occurrence of one or more future events not wholly in control of the company are not recognised in the 
accounts. The nature of such liabilities and an estimate of its financial effect are disclosed in notes to the Financial Statements. 

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. 

p Hedge Accounting 
The Company designates certain hedging instruments, which includes derivatives and non-derivatives in respect of foreign 
currency risk, as cash flow hedges. 
To qualify for hedge accounting, the hedging relationship must meet all of the following requirements: 
- there is an economic relationship between the hedged items and the hedging instruments, 
- the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic relationship, 
- the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that the entity 
actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the entity actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item. 
At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged 
item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the 
inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Company documents whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in 
offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk. 

Cash flow hedges 
The Company designates derivative contracts or non derivative financial assets / liabilities as hedging instruments to mitigate 
the risk of movement in interest rates and foreign exchange rates for foreign exchange exposure on highly probable future cash 
flows attributable to a recognised asset or liability or forecast cash transactions. When a derivative is designated as a cash flow 
hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized in the cash flow hedging 
reserve being part of other comprehensive income. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is 
recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the hedging relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge 
accounting, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or 
exercised, the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognized in cash flow hedging reserve till the period the 
hedge was effective remains in cash flow hedging reserve until the underlying transaction occurs. The cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognized in the cash flow hedging reserve is transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss upon the occurrence of 
the underlying transaction. 

q Leases 
At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if 
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date except for leases with a term 
of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the lease payments 
associated with these leases as an expense in the statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Lease term is a non-cancellable period together with periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is 
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably 
certain not to exercise that option. 
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease 
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle 
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives 
received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the 
end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end of the lease term 
or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset 
will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be paid over the lease term at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the 
Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. 
Subsequently, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
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r Employee benefits 
Employee benefits includes salary, wages, gratuity, compensated absences and contribution to provident fund. 
i) Defined benefit plans: 

Transmission 

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees through Group 
Gratuity Scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Company accounts for the liability for the gratuity benefits payable 
in future based on an independent actuarial valuation carried out by the Holding Company. The actuarial valuation is done as per 
the Projected Unit Credit Method considering discounting rate relevant to Government Securities at the Balance Sheet Date. 
Defined benefit costs in the nature of current and past service cost and net interest expense or income are recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss in the period in which they occur. Actuarial gains and losses on measurement is reflected 
immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they 
occur and is reflected immediately in retained earnings and not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of a plan amendment. 

ii) Defined contribution plan: 
Retirement Benefits in the form of Provident Fund and Family Pension Fund which are defined contribution schemes are 
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period in which the contributions to the respective funds accrue. 
iii) Short term employee benefits: 
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of salaries and wages at the undiscounted amount of the 
benefits expected to be paid wholly within thirty six months of rendering the service. 

s Standards Issued but not effective 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1st, 2022, as below: 
Ind AS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment 
The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be 
recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of 
property, plant, and equipment. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 
2022. The Company has evaluated the amendment and expect the amendment to have no impact in its financial statements. 

Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
The amendments specify that that the 'cost of fulfilling' a contract comprises the 'costs that relate directly to the contract'. 
Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct 
labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a 
clarification and the Company does not expect the amendment to have any impact in its financial statements. 

t Social Security Code 
The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code) amended and consolidated the laws relating to social security with the goal to extend 
social security to all employees and workers either in the organised or unorganised or any other sectors. 
In light of the amended code, employers are required to assess the impact of change in definition of wages on their 
organizations. A change in the definition of wage might have a large impact due to enhanced provision for gratuity/leave, net 
pay of employees, possible enhanced provision for Provident Fund and other employee benefits dependent on the wages. 

The government decided to defer the decision to notify the date of implementation of the code, so the companies are advised to 
include a disclosure about the impact on transition to the new code in their financial statements. However, once the code 
becomes effective the entities will be required to evaluate if the changes are a plan amendment or change in actuarial 
assumption. 
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3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
The application of the Company's accounting policies as described in Note 2, in the preparation of the Company's financial 
statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. The 
estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and any revisions thereto are recognized in the 
period in which they are revised or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both the current and future 
periods. Actual results may differ from these estimates which could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the 
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

3.1 Property, plant and equipment1 

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the 
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 

3.2 Taxation 
Deferred tax assets2 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses/ credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the losses can be utilised. Management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax 
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax 
planning strategies. 

3.3 Fair value measurement of financial instruments2 

In estimating the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, the Company uses market observable data to the extent 
available. Where such Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company establishes appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to 
the model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree 
of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk 
and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. 
Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities are 
disclosed. 

3.4 Defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits2 

The present value of obligations under defined benefit plan and other long term employment benefits is determined using 
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual development in the 
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary escalations, attrition rate and mortality rates etc. Due 
to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, these obligations are highly sensitive to changes in these 
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

1Critical accounting judgements 
2 Key sources of estimation uncertainties 
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: Property, Plant and Equipment 
R in Lakhs) 

Tangible Assets 

Description of Assets Land Plant and 
Furniture 

Office Computer Total 

(Free hold) 
Building 

Equipment 
and 

Equipments Equipment 
Vehicles 

Fixtures 

. Cost or Deemed Cost 

3alances as at 1st April, 2020 1.59 394.93 13,109.75 7.39 - . 13,513.66 

\dditions during the Year - 81.08 0.54 11.82 19.81 3.29 116.54 
3alances as at 31st March, 2021 1.59 394.93 13,190.83 7.93 11.82 19.81 3.29 13,630.20 
\dditions during the year - 20.17 584.02 2.72 18.27 0.09 625.27 
:3alances as at 31st March, 2022 1.59 415.10 13,774.85 10.65 30.09 19.90 3.29 14,255.47 

I. Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

:3alances as at 1st April, 2020 . 15.94 453.10 1.03 . . . 470.07 
)epreciation for the year - 10.72 357.43 0.76 0.72 2.02 0.18 371.83 
:3alances as at 31st March, 2021 . 26.66 810.53 1.79 0.72 2.02 0.18 841.90 
)epreciation for the year 11.07 373.89 0.82 2.49 5.04 0.21 393.52 
Balances as at 31st March, 2022 . 37.73 1,184.42 2.61 3.21 7.06 0.39 1,235.42 

Description of Assets 
Land Plant and 

Furniture 
Office Computer 

(Free hold) 
Building 

Equipment 
and 

Equipments Equipment 
Vehicles Total 

Fixtures 
Carrying Amount : 

As at 31st March,2021 1.59 368.27 12,380.30 6.14 11.10 17.79 3.11 12,788.30 
As at 31st December, 2021 1.59 377.37 12,590.43 8.04 26.88 12.84 2.90 13,020.05 
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~A. Capital work-in-progress: 
~ in Lakhs) 

>articulars As at As at 
31st March, 31st March, 

2022 2021 

)pening Balance 622.28 17.84 
:xpenditure incurred during the year 694.05 720.98 
_ess : Capitalised during the year (625.27) (116.54) 
::losing Balance 691.06 622.28 

:a) Capital-work-in progress ageing schedule: 
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total 

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years 
~sat 31st March, 2022 

- Projects in progress 571. 72 119.34 - 691.06 
- Projects temporarily suspended -

Total 571.72 119.34 . . 691.06 
As at 31st March, 2021 

- Projects in progress 613.90 8.38 - 622.28 
- Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -

Total 613.90 8.38 - - 622.28 
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4B. Right of Use Assets 
~ in Lakhs) 

Description of Assets 
Right of Use Assets 

Land Total 

I. Gross carrying amount 

As at 1st April 2020 1,462.52 1,462.52 
Additions during the year . -
Closing Gross carrying amount as on 31st March, 2021 1,462.52 1,462.52 
Additions during the year - -
Closing Gross carrying amount as on 31st March, 2022 1,462.52 1,462.52 

II. Accumulated Depreciation e. Impairment 
As at 1st April 2020 44.32 44.32 
Amortisation charge during the year 44.32 44.32 

Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31st March, 2021 88.64 88.64 

Amortisation charge during the year 44.32 44.32 

Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31st March, 2022 132.96 132.96 
Net carrying amount - 31st March, 2021 1,373.88 1,373.88 
Net carrying amount - 31st March, 2022 1,329.56 1,329.56 

4C. Intangible Assets ~ in Lakhs) 

Description of Assets Computer Software Total 

I. Gross Carrying Value 
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 . . 
Additions during the year 3.87 3.87 
Balances as at 31st March, 2021 3.87 3.87 
Additions during the year 17.95 17.95 
Balances as at 31st March, 2022 21.82 21.82 

II. Accumulated Amortisation -
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 - -
Amortisation Charge during the year 0.59 0.59 
Balances as at 31st March, 2021 0.59 0.59 
Amortisation Charge during the year 14.81 14.81 
Balances as at 31st March, 2022 15.40 15.39 

Net carrying amount - 31st March, 2021 3.28 3.28 
Net carrying amount - 31st March, 2022 6.42 6.43 
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5 Non Current Investment 

Investments - in the nature of Equity carried at Cost - Unquoted (Refer Note 48) 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

Loans 
(Unsecured, Considered Good) 

Loans to Related Parties (Refer Note 48) 

Non Current Financial Assets - Others 

Balances held as Margin Money or security against borrowings 
Derivative Assets 

Income Tax Assets (net) 

Advance income tax (net of tax provisions) 

Other Non-current Assets 

Capital Advances 

Investments 

Investment in Mutual Funds units at FVTPL (Unquoted) 

Axis Overnight Fund Direct Growth 
[ Nav f 1123.84 (Previous Year f Nil)] 

HDFC Overnight Fund- Direct-Growth 
[ Nav t 3157.45 (Previous Year f Nil)] 

Aditya Birla Overnight Fund Growth 
[ Nav ~ 1149.69 (Previous Year f Nil)] 

Edelweiss Overnight Fund Direct Plan Growth 
[ Nav f 1102.07 (Previous Year t 1067.70)] 

Kotak Overnight Fund Direct-Growth 
[ NAV ~ 1133.80 (Previous Year~ 1097.92)] 

Aggregate book value of un-quotcd investments 
Aggregate market value of un-quoted investments 

11 Trade receivables 
(Unsecured, considered good) 

Unsecured, Considered Good 
Credit Impaired 

Impairment allowance (Allowance for bad e, doubtful debts) 
Less: Provision for doubtful Trade Receivables 

Investment in 
Mutual Funds (value 
at fair value through 
profit and loss) 

1,000 

1,000 

1,000 

1,000 

1,000 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

No of Units 

12,029 
(Previous Year - Nil) 

6,451 
(Previous Year - Nil) 

13,502 
(Previous Year - Nil) 

6,660 
(Previous Year -

6,660) 
47,634 

(Previous Year -
9,487) 
Total 

Total 

The concentration of credit risk is very limited due to the fact that the large customers are mainly government bodies/ departments. 

Trade Receivables ageing Schedule 
Particulars 
As at 
31st March, 2022 
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -
considered good 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables 
- which have significant increase 
in credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables 
- credit impaired 
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables 
considered good 
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables • 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk 
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired 
Total 

Not Due Less than 6 
months 

760.37 

760.37 

Outstandin for followin eriods from due date of receipt 
6 months• 1 year 1·2 years 2-3 years 

As at 
31st March, 2022 

({ in Lakhs) 

1,700.00 
1,700.00 

As at 
31st March, 2022 

({ in Lakhs) 

3.387.74 
3,387.74 

As at 
31st March, 2022 

({ in Lakhs) 

As at 

683.76 
140.48 
824.24 

31st March, 2022 
({ in Lakhs) 

As at 
31st March, 2022 

({ in Lakhs) 

As at 
31st March, 2022 

({ in Lakhs) 

As at 

135.18 

203.68 

155.24 

73.40 

540.07 

1,107.57 

1,107.57 
1,107.57 

31st March, 2022 
({ in Lakhs) 

760.37 

760.37 

760.37 

More than 3 years 

Trunsrn1s::.ion 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

({ in Lakhs) 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

({ in Lakhs) 

3,041.04 
3,041.04 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

({ in Lakhs) 

638.02 

638.02 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

({ in Lakhs) 

360.53 
360,53 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

({ in Lakhs) 

78.12 
78,12 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

({ in Lakhs) 

As at 

71.11 

104.16 

175.27 

175.27 
175.27 

31st March, 2021 
({ in Lakhs) 

1,116.16 

1,116.16 

1,116.16 

({ in Lakhs) 
Total 

760.37 

760.37 
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Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of receipt 
As at 31st March, 2021 Not Due Less than 6 6 months • 1 year 

months 
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - 759,06 357.10 

considered good 
{ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables 
- which have significant increase 
in credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables 
- credit impaired 
(iii} Disputed Trade Receivables 
considered good 
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant increase in 
credit risk 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired 
Total 759.06 357.10 

12 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Balances with banks 
In current account 
Fixed Deposit 3 months or less 

13 Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Fixed Deposit - Margin Money (Lodged against Debt Service Reserve Account) 

14 Current Financial Assets- Others 

Security Deposit 
Unbilled Revenue 
Interest accrued but not due 
Derivative instruments designated in hedge accounting relationship 

15 Other Current Assets 

Advance to Supplier 
Prepaid Expenses 
Advance to Employees 

16 Share Capital 

Authorised Share Capital 
1,20,00,000 ( As at 31st March 2021 • 1,20,00,000) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Shares 
100,00,000 ( As at 31st March 2021 -100,00,000) Equity Shares of~ 10/· each 

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year 
Equity Shares 

1·2 years 2-3 years 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 
More than 3 years 

1,116.16 

1,116.16 

As at As at 
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 

R in Lakhs) R in Lakhs) 

41,68 39.29 
209,60 204.47 
251,28 243.76 

As at As at 
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 

R in Lakhs) R in Lakhs) 

5.18 4,87 
5.18 4.87 

As at As at 
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 

R in Lakhs) R in Lakhs) 

10.00 10.00 
562,01 558.28 
252.26 137.96 

1,73 0.41 
826,00 706.65 

As at Asat 
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 

R in Lakhs) R in Lakhs) 

1.78 0.65 
13.77 13.24 
0.24 

15.79 13,89 

Asat As at 
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 

R in Lakhs) R in Lakhs) 

1,200.00 1,200.00 

1,200.00 1,200.00 

1,000.00 1,000.00 

1,000.00 1,000.00 

As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021 
___ N_o_. S_h_a_r_e_s ___ ~R_in_L_a_k_h_s)~ _____ N_o_. S_h_a_r_es___ R in Lakhs) 

At the beginning of the Year 10,000,000 1,000.00 10,000,000 1,000.00 

Add: Issued During the Year 

Outstanding at the end of the Year 10,000,000 1,000.00 10,000,000 1,000.00 

b. Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of 't' 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company the 
holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity 
shares held by the share holders. 

c. Investments by Adani Transmission Limited. (holding company), The entire share capital is held by Adani Transmission Limited e its nominees 
As at 31st March, 2022 

No. Shares R in Lakhs) 

Adani Transmission Limited 8 its nominees 10,000,000 1,000.00 

As at 31st March, 2021 
No. Shares R in Lakhs) 

10,000,000 1,000.00 
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d. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company 

Equity Shares of~ 10 each fully paid 
Adani Transmission Limited 
100,00,000 (As at 31st March, 2021 -100,00,000) 
equity shares of~ 10/~ each along with its nominees 

As at 31st March, 2022 
No. Shares 

10,000,000 

10,000,000 

% holding in the 
class 

100% 

100% 

As at 31st March, 2021 
No, Shares % holding in the class 

10,000,000 100% 

10,000,000 

e. As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding 
represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares. 

e. Details of Shareholding of Promoters 
Particulars 

As at 31st March, 2022 
Adani Transmission Limited e. its nominees 

As at 31st March, 2021 
Adani Transmission Limited e. its nominees 

17 Other Equity 

(a) Surplus I (Deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
Opening Balance 
Add : Profit for the year 
Add: Other comprehensive income arising from remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans 

(b) Other Comprehensive Income 
Hedge Reserve 
Opening Balance 
(Less) Reduction on account of cash flow hedge 
(Less) Tax Relating to cash flow hedge 
Closing Balance 

Note: 

No. of 
shares 

10,000,000 
10,000,000 

10,000,000 
10,000,000 

% of total shares 

100% 
100% 

100% 
100% 

Total (a) 

Total (b) 

Total (a+b) 

% Change during the 
year 

As at 
31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) 

4,683,80 
2,328.71 

0.13 

7,012.64 

(303.58) 
47.90 
(12.05) 

(267.73) 

6,744.91 

Remark if change is 
more than 25% 

As at 
31st March, 2021 
~ in Lakhs) 

2.730.85 
1.952,80 

0.15 

4,683.80 

(33,16) 
(358,90) 

88.48 
(303.58) 

4,380.22 

a. Retained earnings represents the amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends considering the requirements of the Companies' Act. 2013. 
b.The cash flow hedging reserve represents the cumulative effective portion of gains or losses arising on changes in fair value of designated portion of hedging instruments entered into for cash 
flow hedges. The cumulative gain or loss arising on changes in fair value of the designated portion of the hedging instruments that are recognised and accumulated under the heading of cash flow 
hedging reserve will be reclassified to profit or loss only when the hedged transaction affects the profit or loss. or included as a basis adjustment to the non-financial hedged item. 

18 Non-Current Financial Liabilities• Borrowings 
Non•Current Current 

As at As at As at As at 
31st March, 2022 31st March. 2021 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 
~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) 

USO Denominated Notes 13,661.06 13,586.46 439.25 423.42 

13,661.06 13,586.46 439,25 423,42 

Less : Amount disclosed under the head "Short Term Borrowings" 439,25 423.42 
Total 13,661.06 13,586,46 

Note: 
The Security details for the balances as at 31st March 2022 

Borrowinas Security Terms of Repayment 
5.20% USO Denominated Notes USO Denominated Notes are secured/to be secured by first ranking charge on receivables 5.20%, 18.82 Million (31st March, 2021 - 19.41 

of the company, on all immovable and movable assets, charge or assignment of rights Million) USO Denominated Notes aggregating ~ 
under Transmission Service Agreement and other project documents, charge or 14,264.15 Lakhs (31st March, 2021- t 14,190.65 
assignment of rights and/or designation of the Security Trustee as toss payee under each Lakhs) which has a semi-annual repayment 
insurance contract in respect of Project. The Notes are also secured by way of pledge over schedule with first repayment in the month of Sep 
100% of shares of the company held by Adani Transmission Ltd. 2020 and semi-annually then after over the 

period of its tenure ending March-2050. 

19 Lease Liabilities As at As at 
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 
~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) 

Finance Lease 86,11 86.57 
Total 86.11 86.57 

20 Other Financial Liabilities As at Asat 
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 

~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) 

Retention Money 169.21 29.05 
Provision for Estimated Loss on Derivative Contracts 410.05 

Total 169.21 439,10 
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21 Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 

Deferred tax liability 
Total 

Deferred Tax relates to following: 
Particulars 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 
Difference between book base and tax base of property, plant and equipment 
M2M gain on Mutual Funds 
Gross Deferred Tax Liabilities 
Deferred Tax Assets 
Provision for Employee benefits 
OCI - Hedge Reserve 
Lease Liabilities 
Gross Deferred Tax Assets 
Net Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) 

(a) Movement in deferred tax assets (net) for the Financial Year 2021·22 
Particulars Opening Balance 

as at 1st April, Recognised in profit and loss Recognised in OCI 
2021 

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax 
liabilities: 
M2M gain on Mutual Funds (1.62) 
Difference between book base and tax base of (1,189.49) (223.42) 
property, plant and equipment 
Total (1,189.49) (225.04) 
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets: 

Employee Benefits 1.62 
OCI - Hedge Reserve 102.10 (12.05) 
Lease Liabilities 1.72 
Total 102.09 3.34 (12.05) 
Net Deferred Tax Asset (1,087.39) (221.70) (12.05) 

(b) Movement in deferred tax assets (net) for the Financial Year 2020-21 
Particulars Opening Balance 

as at 1st April, Recognised in profit and loss Recognised in OCI 
2020 

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax 
liabilities: 
Difference between book base and tax base of (1,415.94) 226.45 
property, plant and equipment 
Total (1,415.94) 226.45 
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets: 

OCl-Hedge Reserve 13.62 88.48 
Unabsorbed Depreciation 285.15 (285.15) 
Total 298,77 (285.15) 88.48 
Net Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) (1,117.17) (58.70) 88.48 
Note: Amount recognised to statement of profit and loss off 58,70 Lakhs (net of MAT credit reversed amounting to'° 731.78 Lakhs). 

22 Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings 

Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings (Refer Note-18) 
Total 

23 Current Lease Liabilities 

Finance Lease 
Total 

24 Trade Payables 

Trade Payables 
- Total outstanding dues of creditors micro and small enterprise 
- Total outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises 
Accrual for Employees 

Total 

As at 
31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) 

1,321.14 
1,321.14 

As at 
31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) 

(1,412.91) 
(1.62) 

(1,414.53) 

1.62 
90.05 

1.72 
93.39 

(1,321.14) 

~ in Lakhs) 

Closing Balance as at 
31st March, 2022 

(1.62) 
{1,412.91) 

(1,414.53) 

1.62 
90.05 

1,72 
93,39 

(1,321.14) 

~ in Lakhs) 

Closing Balance as at 
31st March, 2021 

(1,189.49) 

(1,189.49) 

102,10 

102.10 
(1,087.39) 

As at 
31st March, 2022 

~ in Lakhs) 
439.25 
439.25 

As at 
31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) 

0.45 
0.45 

As at 
31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) 

0.33 
200.23 

1.31 
201.87 

Trnr.!;m1ss.1on 

As at 
31st March, 2021 
~ in Lakhs) 

1,087.39 
1,087.39 

As at 
31st March, 2021 
~ in Lakhs) 

(1,189.49) 

(1,189.49) 

102.10 

102.10 
(1,087.39) 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

~in Lakhs) 
423.42 
423.42 

As at 
31st March, 2021 
~ in Lakhs) 

0.41 
0.41 

Asat 
31st March, 2021 
~ in Lakhs) 

5.46 
33.79 
0.83 

40.08 

The Disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to Micro and Small Enterprises have been made in the standalone Financial Statements based on the information received and available with the 
company. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance sheet date.Hence additional disclosure as per MSME Act is not required. These facts have been 
retied upon by the auditors. 

24.1 Trade Payables ageina schedule 

Particulars 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total 

No Due <1 year 1•2years 2-3 years >3 years 
As at 31st March, 2022 

(a) MSME 0.33 0.33 
(b) Others 85.21 116.33 201.54 
(c) Disputed dues - MSME 

(d) Disputed dues - Others 
Total 85.54 116.33 201,87 

Particulars 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

No Due <1 year 1-2years 2-3 years >3 years 
Total 

As at 31st March, 2021 

(a)MSME 5.46 
(b) Others 21.88 12.02 0.71 
(c) Disputed dues - MSME 

(d) Disputed dues - Others 
Total 27.35 12.02 0.71 
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24. 2 Trade Payables 

(a) the principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year 
(b) Interest due on principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year 
(c) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 
2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year 
(d) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during 
the year) but without adding the Interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006; 
(e) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and 
(f) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

25 Other Financial Liabilities 

26 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 
Payable on purchase of Property, Plant 8- Equipment 
Deposit From Customers 
Provision for Estimated Loss on Derivative Contracts 

Provisions 

Provision for Employee Benefits (Refer Note 40) 

- Gratuity 

- Leave Encashment 

Total 

27 Other Current Liabilities 

Statutory Liabilities 

28 Income Tax Liabilities (net) 

Current Tax Liabilities (net) 

(All Figures below f 500.00 is denoted as f 0.00) 

Non • Current 

As at 
31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) 

1.50 

4.01 
5.51 

Total 

Non • Current 

As at 
31st March, 2021 
~ in Lakhs) 

Total 

Total 

1.20 
1.17 

2.37 

As at 
31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) 

0.33 

As at 
31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) 

41.21 
63.67 
0.06 
6.02 

110.96 

Current 

As at 
31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) 

0.00 

0.92 

0.112 

As at 
31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) 

29.18 
29.18 

As at 
31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) 

177.46 
177.46 

Trans.m:::;sion 

Asat 
31st March, 2021 
~ in Lakhs) 

5.46 

As at 
31st March, 2021 
~ in Lakhs) 

41.00 
47.18 
0.06 
6.42 

94.66 

Current 

As at 
31st March, 2021 
~ in Lakhs) 

0.00 

0.38 

0.38 

Asat 
31st March, 2021 
~ in Lakhs) 

24.99 
24.99 

As at 
31st March, 2021 
~ in Lakhs) 
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29 Revenue from Operations 

Revenue from Operations: 
Income from Service of Transmission Line 
Other Operating Income 

Details of Revenue from Contract with Customer 
Contract balances: 

Total 

(a) The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from the contracts with customers. 

Particulars 

Trade receivables (refer note 11) 
Contract assets (refer note 14) 
Contract liabilities 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022 

~ in Lakhs) 

4,863.06 

4,863.06 

As at 
31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) 

760.37 
562.01 

Trvn~rnis::;ion 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 

~ in Lakhs) 

4,855.35 
0.12 

4,855.47 

As at 
31st March, 2021 
~ in Lakhs) 

1,116.16 
558.28 

The contract assets primarily relate to the Company's right to consideration for work completed but not billed at the reporting date. The contract assets are transferred to receivables when the 
rights become unconditional. This usually occurs when the Company issues an invoice to the Customer. The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from the 
customers. 

(b) Reconciliation the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price: 

Particulars As at As at 
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 
~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) 

Revenue as per contracted price 4,863.06 4,855.35 

Adjustments 
Discounts 
Revenue from contract with customers 4,863.06 4,855.35 

30 Other Income For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 
~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) 

Gain on Sale/Remeasurement of Fair Value of Current Investments measured at FVTPL 30.13 16.21 
Interest Income 

• Bank 54.70 108.59 

• Others" 656.20 144.40 
Unclaimed Liability/Excess Provisions written back 6.34 

Total 747.37 269.20 
• includes Delayed payment charges of~ 320.88 Lakhs (P.Y. t Nil). 

31 Operating expenses For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 
~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) 

Maintenance of Transmission Line 341.76 332.32 
Total 341.76 332.32 

32 Employee Benefits Expenses For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 
~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) 

Salarles, Wages and Bonus 43.31 26.84 
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 2.54 1.84 

Employee Welfare Expenses 1.52 0.99 
Total 47.57 29.67 

33 Finance costs For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 
~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) 

(a) Interest Expense 
- Borrowing 810.39 828.05 

- Trade Credits 0.00 
- Lease Liabilities 8.44 8.48 

Total (a) 818.83 836.53 
(b) Other borrowing costs : 

- Bank Charges e, Other Borrowing Costs 25.55 21.13 

- Loss on Derivatives Contracts 635.06 616.71 
Total (b) 660.61 637.84 

Total (a+b) 1,479.44 1,474.37 

34 Other Expenses For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 
~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) 

Stores and Spares 1.15 2.45 

Legal e, Professional Expenses 21.47 15.44 

Insurance Expenses 8.87 7.20 

Payment to Auditors (Refer Note Below) 1.01 1.04 

Office Expenses 4.32 4.09 

Communication expenses 23.09 27.24 

Travelling e Conveyance Expenses 2.67 4.72 
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer Note 45) 44.74 25.76 

Electricity Expenses 0.55 
Rates e, Taxes 0.01 
Miscellaneous Expenses 2.98 4.45 

Total 110.86 92.39 

(All Figures below r 500.00 is denoted as~ 0.00) 
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Note: Payment to Auditors -
Statutory Audit Fees 

Tax Audit Fees 
Miscellaneous Expenses 

35 Income Tax: 
The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31st March, 2022 are: 
Income Tax Expense : 

Current Tax: 
Current Income Tax Charge 
Current Tax relating to earlier periods 

Deferred tax: 
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 

Income tax expenses reported in statement of profit and loss 

Total tax expense as per P&L 

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by applicable tax rate for March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021. 

Particulars 

Accounting profit/ (loss) before tax 
Income tax using Applicable tax rate 
Tax Effect of : 
a) AdJustment relating to earlier years 
b) Impact of Deferred Tax due to change in tax rate 
c) Reversal of MAT Credit of previous year 
d) Provisions disallowed 
e) Non deductible expenses 
f) Depreciation allowable on assets (difference between Income tax act and Companies act) 
f) Lease liabilities 

Tax provisions: 
Current tax for the year 
Current Tax relating to earlier periods 
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 

Income tax recognised in the statement of profit and loss at effective rate 

Unrecognised deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits 

0.65 

0.36 
1.01 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022 

(" in Lakhs) 

600.68 
27.06 

627.74 

221.70 
221.70 

849.44 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022 

(" in Lakhs) 

3.178.15 
799.88 

27.06 

(0.65) 
13.83 

9.32 
849.44 

600.68 
27.06 

221.70 

849.44 

0.53 
0.51 

1.04 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 

(" in Lakhs) 

439.07 
(403.16) 

35.91 

790.48 
790.48 

826.39 

For the year ended 
31st March. 2021 

(" in Lakhs) 

2.779.19 
699.47 

(403.16) 
(201.70) 
731.78 

826.39 

439.07 
(403.16) 
790.48 

826.39 

Deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits for which no deferred tax assets have been recognised are attributable to the following are Expiry of unrecognised 
deferred tax assets is as detailed below 

Particulars 

Unused tax credits 
Unused tax losses 

Note; 

Total 

As at 
31st March, 2022 

(" in Lakhs) 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

(" in Lakhs) 

The Government of India inserted Section 115BAA in the Income Tax Act. 1961 which provides domestic companies a non-reversible option to pay corporate tax at reduced rates effective 01 April, 
2019 subject to certain conditions. The Company has adopted to pay the tax at concessional rate by adopting to the said scheme. 

36 Earnings per Share 

Basic and Diluted EPS 
Profit/ (Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders 
No of Equity Shares Outstanding 
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding during the year 

Nominal Value of Equity Share 
Basic and Diluted EPS 

(" in Lakhs) 
No. 

No. 

t 
t 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 

(" in Lakhs) (" in Lakhs) 

2.328.71 1.952.80 
10.000.000 10,000,000 

10,000,000 10.000.000 

10 10 

23.29 19.53 
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37 Contingent liabilities and commitments : 

(i) Contingent liabilities : 

(ii) Commitments : 
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of capital 
advances) 

As at 
31st March, 2022 

({ in Lakhs) 

56.98 

56.98 

Transmission 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

({ in Lakhs) 

109.76 

109.76 

38 The Company has taken various derivatives to hedge its loans. The outstanding position of derivative instruments are as under: 

As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021 

Nature Purpose Foreign Foreign 
'{ in Lakhs Currency '{ in Lakhs Currency 

(USO in Million) (USO in Million) 
Principal Hedging of foreign currency borrowing 14,264.15 18.82 14,190.65 19.41 
Only principal liability 
Swaps 
Forwards Hedging of foreign currency borrowing 735.92 0.97 732.31 1.00 

principal & interest liability 

39 Capital Management 
The company's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity and healthy capital ratios is order to support its business and 
provide adequate return to share holders through continuing growth. The company's overall strategy remains unchanged from previous year. 

The company sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long term operation plans which include capital and other 
strategic investment. 

The funding requirement are met through a mixture of equity, internal fund generation and borrowing. The company's policy is to use borrowing 
to meet anticipated funding requirements. 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended as at 31st March. 2022 

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt (total debt less cash and bank balance)divided by total capital plus net 
debt. 

({ in Lakhs) 
Particulars Refer Note 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 

Total Borrowings 18 & 22 14,100.30 14,009.88 
Less: Cash and Bank Balance 12 & 13 256.46 248.64 
Net Debt (A) 13,843.86 13,761.24 

Total Equity (8) 16 &17 7,744.91 5,380.22 
Total Equity and Net Debt (C=A+B) 21,588.77 19,141.46 
Gearing Ratio 0.64 0.72 

40 As per Indian Accounting standard IND AS 19 "Employee Benefits", the disclosure as defined in the accounting standard are given below. 

(a) Defined Benefit Plan 
The Company operates a defined benefit plan (the Gratuity plan) covering eligible employees, which provides a lump sum payment to vested 
employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the 
tenure of employment. 

Particulars 

i. Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of defined benefit obligation 
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations at the beginning of the year 
Current Service Cost 
Past Service Cost 
Interest Cost 
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from: 
- Change in demographic assumptions 
- Change in financials assumptions 
- Experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs. assumptions) 
Liability Transfer ln/(out) 
Benefits paid 
Net Actuarial loss/ (gain) Recognised 
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations at the end of the year 

As at 
31st March, 2022 

({ in Lakhs) 

1.20 
0.62 

0.08 

(0.34) 
0.41 

(0.21) 
(0.26) 

1.50 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

({ in Lakhs) 

0.11 
0.54 

0.05 

(0.14) 
0.64 

1.20 
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ii. Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of the Fair value of Plan assets 
Fair Value of Plan assets at the beginning of the year 
Expected return on plan assets 
Contributions 
Benefits paid 
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets 
Fair Value of Plan assets at the end of the year 

iii. Reconciliation of the Present value of defined benefit obligation and Fair value of plan 
assets 
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations at the end of the year 
Fair Value of Plan assets at the end of the Year 
Net Asset/ (Liability) recognized in balance sheet as at the end of the year 

iv. Gratuity Cost for the Year 
Current service cost 
Past Service Cost 
Interest cost 
Expected return on plan assets 
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) 
Net Gratuity cost Transferred to Profit 8- Loss 

v. Other Comprehensive Income 
Actuarial (gains)/ losses 
- Change in demographic assumptions 
- Change in financial assumptions 
- Experience variance (i.e. Actual experiences assumptions) 
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income 

vi. Actuarial Assumptions 
Discount Rate (per annum) 
Annual Increase in Salary Cost 
Mortality Rates as given under Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate 

vii. Sensitivity Analysis 

1.50 

(1. 50) 

0.62 

0.08 

0.70 

(0.34) 
0.41 

(0.21) 
(0.14} 

6.90% 
10.00% 

100% 

Transmission 

1.20 

(1.20) 

0.54 

0.05 

0.59 

(0.15) 
(0.15} 

6.70% 
8.00% 
100% 

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate. expected salary increase and 
mortality. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end 
of the reporting period. while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below: 

Particulars 

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base) 

Particulars 

Discount Rate (- / + 1%) 
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 

Salary Growth Rate (- / + 1%) 
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 

Attrition Rate (- / + 50%) 
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 

Mortality Rate (- / + 10%) 
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 

As at 
31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs} 

Decrease Increase 

1.68 1.35 
11.70% -10.00% 

1.36 1.67 
-9.80% 11.20% 

1.84 1.28 
22.60% -14.80% 

1.50 1.50 
0.00% 0.00% 

As at 
31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs} 

1.50 

As at 

As at 
31st March, 2021 
~ in Lakhs} 

1.20 

31st March, 2021 
~ in Lakhs} 

Decrease Increase 

1.41 1.04 

17.00% -13.90% 

1.04 1.40 

-13.90% 16.60% 

1.33 1.09 

11.00% -9.10% 

1.20 1.20 

0.00% 0.00% 
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41 The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as on 31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) 

Fair Value 
Fair Value 

Particulars through other 
through Profit or Amortised Cost Total 

Comprehensive 
Loss 

Income 
Financial Assets 
Investments in mutual funds 1,107.57 1,107.57 
Investments in the nature of Equity support 7,700.00 1,700.00 
Loans - 3,387.74 3,387.74 
Trade Receivables - 760.37 760.37 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 251.28 251.28 
Bank Balances other than above 5.18 5.18 
Derivative Instruments 142.22 142.22 
Other Financial Assets 1,508.02 7,508.02 
Total . 1,249.79 7,612.59 8,862.38 
Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings (including current maturities) . 14,100.37 14,100.31 
Lease Liability - 86.57 86.57 
Derivative Instruments 35.84 (29.82) 6.02 
Trade Payables 201.87 201.87 
Other Financial Liabilities 274.16 274.16 
Total 35.84 (29.82) 14,662.91 14,668.93 

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as on 31st March 2021 
~ in Lakhs) 

Fair Value 
Fair Value 

Particulars through other 
through Profit or Amortised Cost Total 

Comprehensive 
Income 

Loss 

Financial Assets 
Investments in mutual funds 175.27 175.27 
Loans 3,041.04 3,041.04 
Trade Receivables - 1,116.16 1,116.16 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 243.76 243.76 
Bank Balances other than above 4.87 4.87 
Derivative Instruments - 0.41 - 0.41 
Other Financial Assets - 1.344.26 1.344.26 
Total 175.68 5,750.09 5,925.77 
Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings (including current maturities) - 14,009.88 14,009.88 
Lease Liability - 86.97 86.97 
Derivative Instruments (270.42) 686.88 416.46 
Trade Payables 40.08 40.08 
Other Financial Liabilities 117.30 117.30 
Total (270.42) 686.88 14,254.23 14,670.69 

- The management assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalents, other balance with banks, trade receivables, loans, trade payables, other 
financial assets and liability approximate their carrying amount largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments. 
- The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between 
willing parties. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values. 
- Fair value of mutual funds are based on the price quotations near the reporting date. 
- The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with various counterparties. principally banks and financial institutions with investment grade 
credit ratings. Foreign exchange forward contracts are valued using valuation techniques, which employs the use of market observable inputs. The most 
frequently applied valuation techniques include forward pricing and swap models using present value calculations. The models incorporate various inputs 
including the credit quality of counterparties. foreign exchange spot and forward rates, yield curves of the respective currencies, currency basis spreads 
between the respective currencies, interest rate curves and forward rate curves of the underlying currency. All derivative contracts are fully collateralized, 
thereby, eliminating both counterparty and the company's own non-performance risk. 

42 Fair Value hierarchy 

Particulars 

Assets 
Investments in Mutual Funds 
Derivative instruments designated in hedge accounting relationship 
Total (a) 
Liabilities 
Derivative instruments designated in hedge accounting relationship 
Total (b) 
Total (c=a+b) 

- Fair value of mutual funds are based on the price quotations at the reporting date 

As at 
31st March, 2022 

Level2 

1,107.57 
142.22 

1,249.79 

6.02 
6.02 

1,255.81 

As at 
31st March, 2021 ,

1
~ 

I 
Level2 

\1(,. 

175.2)~ 
0.41 

416.46 
416.46 
592.14 

- The fair value of Derivative instruments is derived using valuation techniques which include forward pricing and swap models using present value 
calculations. 
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43 Financial Risk objective and policies 
The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables, The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the 
Company's operations/projects, The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that 
derive directly from its operations. 
In the ordinary course of business, the Company is mainly exposed to risks resulting from exchange rate fluctuation (currency risk), interest rate movements 
(interest rate risk) collectively referred as Market Risk, Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk and other price risks such as equity price risk. The Company's senior 
management oversees the management of these risks. It manages its exposure to these risks through derivative financial instruments by hedging 
transactions. It uses derivative instruments such as Principal only Swaps, Interest rate swaps, foreign currency future options and foreign currency forward 
contract to manage these risks. These derivative instruments reduce the impact of both favourable and unfavourable fluctuations. 
The Company's risk management activities are subject to the management, direction and control of Central Treasury Team of the Group under the 
framework of Risk Management Policy for Currency and Interest rate risk as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Group's central 
treasury team ensures appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company through appropriate policies and procedures and that financial 
risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group's policies and risk objectives. It is the Group's policy that no trading in derivatives 
for speculative purposes may be undertaken. 

The decision of whether and when to execute derivative financial instruments along with its tenure can vary from period to period depending on market 
conditions and the relative costs of the instruments. The tenure is linked to the timing of the underlying exposure, with the connection between the two 
being regularly monitored. The Company is exposed to losses in the event of non-performance by the counterparties to the derivative contracts. All 
derivative contracts are executed with counterparties that. in our judgment. are creditworthy. The outstanding derivatives are reviewed periodically to 
ensure that there is no inappropriate concentration of outstanding to any particular counterparty. 

Further. all currency and interest rate risks as identified above is measured on a daily basis by monitoring the mark to market (MTM) of open and hedged 
position. The methodology used for computing fair value against different derivative products is as follows: 
The MTM is derived basis underlying market curves on closing basis of relevant instrument quoted on Bloomberg/Reuters. For quarter ends. the MTM for 
each derivative instrument outstanding is obtained from respective banks. 

Interest rate risk 
The company is exposed to changes in market interest rates due to financing, investing and cash management activities. The Company's exposure to the 
risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to The Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates and period of borrowings. 
However. during the year and as at period end the Company does not have any borrowings with floating interest rates. Hence, the company is not exposed 
to any interest rate risk. 
Credit risk 
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a loss to the company. The Company has adopted the 
policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial losses from default. and generally does not obtain any 
collateral or other security on trade receivables. 

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements represents the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk. 
Cash are held with creditworthy financial institutions. 
Liquidity risk 
The Company monitors its risk of shortage of funds using cash flow forecasting models. These models consider the maturity of its financial investments. 
committed funding and projected cash flows from operations. The Company's objective is to provide financial resources to meet its business objectives in a 
timely, cost effective and reliable manner and to manage its capital structure. A balance between continuity of funding and flexibility is maintained through 
the use of various types of borrowings. 

The table below analysis derivative and non-derivative financial liabilities of the Company into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period 
from the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. 

As at 31st March, 2022 Less than 1 year 
Borrowings*# 1,183.10 
Trade Payables 201.87 
Lease Liabilities 0.45 
Derivative Instruments 6.02 
Other Financial Liabilities .. 104.94 

As at 31st March, 2021 Less than 1 year 
Borrowings *# 1,163.66 
Trade Payables 40.08 
Lease Liabilities 0.41 
Derivative Instruments 6.42 
Other Financial Liabilities•• 88.25 

1-5 years 
4,499.86 

3.10 

169.21 

1-5 years 
4.430.32 

2.80 
410.05 

29.05 

Over 5 years 
19,917.49 

83.01 

Over 5 years 
20,264.06 

83.77 

~ in Lakhs) 
Total 

25,600.45 
201.87 
86.56 

6.02 
274.15 

Total 
25,858.04 

40.08 
86.98 

416.47 
117.30 

• Includes Non-current borrowings, current borrowings, current maturities of non-current borrowings, committed interest payments on borrowings. 

•• Includes both Non-current and current financial liabilities. Excludes current maturities of non-current borrowings. 
#The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial liabilities including interest that will be paid on those 
liabilities upto the maturity of the instruments, ignoring the call and refinancing options available with the Group. 
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44 Leases 
Disclosure under Ind AS 116 Leases: 

(fin Lakhs) 
Particulars Amount 
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 87,34 
Lease Liabilities on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 
Finance Costs incurred during the year 8.49 
Net Payments of Lease Liabilities (8,85) 
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 (Refer note 19 and 23) 86,98 
Lease Liabilities on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 
Finance Costs incurred during the year 8.44 
Net Payments of Lease Liabilities (8,86) 
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 (Refer note 19 and 23) 86.56 

Disclosure of Lease Contracts: 
The Company have been taken Leasehold Land on lease. The lease rent terms are for the period of 33 years. The lease agreement is of fixed rate and not 
cancellable. There is no contingent rent and no restrictions imposed by the lease arrangements. 

45 Corporate Social Responsibility 

Particulars 

(i) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 
(ii) Amount of expenditure incurred 
(iii) Shortfall at the end of the year 
(iv) Total of previous years shortfall 

Total amount contributed during the year 

(v) Reason for shortfall : NA 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022 

44.43 
44.74 

44.74 

~ in Lakhs) 
For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 

25.76 
25,76 

25,76 

(vi) Nature of CSR activities : Primary Education, Community Health, Sustainable Livelihood Development , Rural Infrastructure Development and 
Agriculture related activities. 
(vii) Out of (ii) above f 9.30 Lakhs (Previous year: f 25.76 Lakhs) contributed to Adani Foundation Trust which is an entity under common control in relation 
to CSR expenditure. 
(viii) where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation. the movements in the provision during the year 
shall be shown separately: No such provision required to be made during the year with respect to CSR. 

46 Events occurring after the Balance sheet Date 
The Company evaluates events and transactions that occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to the approval of financial statements to 
determine the necessity for recognition and/or reporting of any of these events and transactions in the financial statements. As of 25th April. 2022. there 
are no subsequent events to be recognized or reported that are not already disclosed. 
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Financial Ratios Particulars Numerator / Denominator As at As at % change Remark • Any change in 
taken 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 in Ratio the ratio by more than 

25% as compared to the 
preceding year. 

Current Ratio (CA/CL) Ratio 3.11 3,87 ·19.58% 
Numerator Current Assets 2,988.96 2,260.60 
Denominator Current Liabilities 960.09 583.94 

Debt· EQuitv Ratio Ratio 1.82 2.60 ·30.08% Increase in Total Equity 
Numerator a. Total Borrowings 14,100.30 14,009.88 

(Including Current 
Maturities of Long term 
borrowing) 

Denominator a. Total Equity 7,744.91 5,380.22 
Debt Service Coverage Ratio Ratio 2,68 2.46 8.84% 

Numerator a. Profit before exceptional 5,076.24 4,640,68 
items. taxes, 
Depreciation and 
Amortisation Expenses and 
Interest Expenses 

Denominator a. Interest on Loan 1,894.00 1,884.57 
b. Current Maturities of 
Long term loan 
(Installments) 

Return on Equity Ratio Ratio 0.35 0.43 •17,52% 
Numerator a. Profit /(Loss) for the year 2,328.71 1,952.80 

after tax before OCI 
Denominator a. Average Total Equity 6.562.57 4,538.96 

Inventory Turnover Ratio • Ratio NA NA 
Numerator q. Revenue from Traded 

Goods 
Denominator a. Average Traded 

Inventories excluding stores 
inventories 

Trade Receivables turnover ratio Ratio 3.25 2.58 25.93% Decrease in Trade 
Numerator a. Total Revenue from 4,863.06 4,855.47 Receivables 

Contract with Customers 
Denominator a. Average Trade 1,498.41 1,883.99 

receivables (including 
Unbilled revenue) 

Trade payables turnover ratio Ratio 3.74 3.68 1.73% 
Numerator a. Total Costs of Goods sold 452.62 424.71 

and Other expense 
Denominator a. Average Trade payables 120.98 115.48 

Net capital turnover ratio Ratio 2.13 1.62 31.09% Decrease in average 
Numerator a. Total Revenue from 4,863.06 4,855.47 working capital 

Contract with Customers 
Denominator a. Average Working Capital 2,284.09 2,989.47 

Net profit ratio (PAT/Revenue) Ratio 0.48 0.40 19.06% 
Numerator a. Profit after Taxes 2,328.71 1,952.80 
Denominator a. Total Revenue from 4,863.06 4,855.47 

Contract with Customers 
Return on Capital employed Ratio 0.20 0.21 •3,24% 

Numerator a. Profit before tax and 4,623.59 4,223.95 
Interest expense 

Denominator a. Capital Employed 23,166.36 20,477.49 
(Tangible Networth, 
Deferred Tax and Total 
Debt) 

Return on investment Ratio NA NA 0.00% 
Numerator Income From Investment 
Denominator Cost of Investment 

• The Company has been engaged in the business of providing services, considering the nature of business Inventory turnover ratio 1s not required to disclose. 
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48 Related party disclosures : 

As per Ind AS 24. Disclosure of transaction with related parties are given below: 

> Holding Entity 

> Fellow Subsidiary 

> Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

>Entities under Common Control with whom there are 
transactions during the year 

Note: 

Adani Transmission Limited 

Adani Transmission (Rajasthan) Limited 
Maru Transmission Service Company Limited. 
Maharashtra Eastern Grid Power Transmission Company Limited. 
Chhattisgarh-WR Transmission Limited. 
Raipur-Rajnandgaon-Warora Transmission Limited. 
North Karanpura Transco Limited. 

Mr. Hiteshkumar Vaghasiya, Whole Time Director 
Mr. Rajeev Kumar Jain , Director 
Mr. Anupam Sawhney, Director 
Mr. Ankit Somani , Chief Financial Officer (Upto 30th November, 2021) 
Mr. Jatin Sharma, Company Secretary (Upto 14th June, 2021) 
Mr. Dhvanit Murthy, Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f 27th January, 2022) 
Mr. Dhwani Solanki, Company Secretary (w.e.f 2nd September, 2021) 

Adani Infrastructure Management Service Limited 
Adani Infra (India) Limited 
Adani Foundation 
Raipur Energen Limited 

TrJnsmission 

The names of the related parties and nature of the relationships where control exists are disclosed For others, the names and the nature of relationships is 
disclosed only when the transactions are entered into by the Company with the related parties during the existence of the related party relationship. 

(A) Transactions with Related Parties 
({ in Lakhs) 

Particulars With Holding Company With Fellow Subsidiary With Others 

For the Year ended 
31st March, 31st March, 31st March, 31st March, 31st March, 31st March, 

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Equipment Hire Charges 0.05 

Sale of Inventory 5.42 
Purchase of Goods 5.00 180.95 277.36 

Loan Given 300.00 2,523.07 
Perpetual equity instrument issued 1,700.00 
Interest Income 14.11 36.76 284.05 107.65 
Operating and Maintenance expenses 287.16 281.53 
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 9.30 25.76 

All above transactions are in the normal course of business and are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail arm's length transactions. 

(8) Balances with Related Parties ({ in Lakhs) 

Particulars With Holding Company With Fellow Subsidiary With Others 

As at 
31st March, 31st March, 31st March, 31st March, 31st March, 31st March, 

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Unsecured Loans (Receivable) 346.70 3,041.04 3,041.04 
Perpetual equity instrument 1,700.00 
Interest Accrued and due receivable 34.00 249.82 101.71 
Capex Advance 78.12 
Accounts Payable 6.50 302.59 55.13 

Note: Interest accrued on Inter Corporate Deposit ("ICD") given to related parties amounting to~ 46.70 Lakhs (Previous year - ~ NII lakhs), have been converted to 
Inter Corporate Deposit as on the reporting date as per the terms of Contract. 

164

 



HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2022 

Transmission 

49 Other Disclosures 

(i) The Company's operations fall under single segment namely "Transmission Income" hence no separate disclosure of segment reporting is required to be made as 
required under IND AS 108 'Operating Segments·. 

(ii) Previous year figures are regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current years classification/ disclosure. 

(iii) The Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022 have been approved by the Board of Directors at their meetings held on 25th April, 2022. 

As per our attached report of even date 

For Dharmesh Parikh & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 112054W/W100725 

Chirag Shah 
Partner 
Membership No. 122510 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : 25th April, 2022 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 

~ 
Hiteshkumar Vaghasiya 
Whole Time Director 
DIN:- 08084591 

. 
Dh~U.y 
Chief Financial Officer 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : 25th April, 2022 

Anupam Sawhney 
Director 
DIN:- 08581062 

1)~- SCJL 
Dhwani Solanki 
Company Secretary 
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CA DHARl\lESH PARIKH & CO LLP 
CHARTERED ACCOl~TA:STS 
[LLPI?\: .-\.AW-6517) 

Independent Auditor's Report 
To the Members of Hadoti Power Transmission Service Limited 

Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

3 03 i3 04. --~ Iilestone .. 

Nr. Dri...-e-in-Cinema. Opp.L\".Tower. 

Thaltej. Ahmedabad-380054 

Phone: 91-79-2747~"'66 

Email : info@dharmeshparikh.net 
Website: www.dharmeshpar ikh.net 

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Hadoti Power Transmission Service 
Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in 
Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (herein after referred to as "Standalone Financial Statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed 
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, 
("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as 
at 31st March, 2023, the Profit and total comprehensive Income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year 
ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the standalone financial statements. 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to Note 46.1 of the accompanying financial results, regarding the ongoing investigations of 
Securities and Exchange Board of India and the committee constituted by Hon 'ble Supreme Court in respect of 
the matters more fully described in aforesaid note. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Other Information 
The Company's board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Director's Report but does not include the standalone 
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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To the Members of Hadoti Power Transmission Service Limited (Continue) 

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation and presentation of these Standalone Financial Statements that 
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, 
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the applicable Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, 
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent~ and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 
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To the Members of Hadoti Power Transmission Service Limited (Continue) 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significal).t doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's rep01t to the related 
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial 
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the 
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the standalone financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central 
Government of India in tenns of sub-section ( 11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" 
a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.· 

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books; 

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement 
of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended; 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2023 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from 
being appointed as a director in tenns of Section 164(2) of the Act; 
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To the Members of Hadoti Power Transmission Service Limited (Continue) 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 'Annexure 
B"; 

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

A. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial 
position; 

B. The Company had made provision as on March 31, 2023, as required the applicable law or 
Indian accounting standard for material foreseeable losses, if any on long term contracts 
including derivative contracts; 

C. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company. 

D. (i) The management of the company has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and 
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or 
loaned or invested ( either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or 
kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities ("Intermediaries''), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 

(ii) The management of the company has represented that, that, to the best of it's knowledge 
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received 
by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding 
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

(iii) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances; nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement. 

E. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. 

F. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has amended the Rule 3 of Companies (Accounts) 
rules, 2014 by way of notification dated 3 l st March, 2023. Accordingly, requirement to have 
accounting software with a feature of recording audit trail is extended till 1st April, 2023. 
Therefore, nothing is required to be reported under this para for the year under review. 
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To the Members of Hadoti Power Transmission Service Limited (Continue) 

3. With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, managerial remuneration/ Director Sitting Fee has not been paid. Accordingly, 
reporting under section 197( 16) of the Act is not applicable. 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 02.05.2023 

For, DHARMESH PARIKH & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Re . • Ll2054W/Wl00725 

~t~_/ 
D.A. PARIKH 
Partner 
Membership No. 045501 

UDIN - ;,;.2_ 116 1,, ~ ,s- 0 l B &d 1P-V ) &f:, <; 
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The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the Company on the Standalone 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023, we report that: 

1. a).(A) According to the infonnation and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, the company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(B) According to the infonnation and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification the company has maintained proper record showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

b). According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and 
Equipment's by which all Property, Plant and Equipment are verified by the management in a phased manner 

over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were 
verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this 
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its 
assets. Based on our verification, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

c). According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, the title deeds of all the immovable properties. (Other than properties where the company is the 
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee) disclosed in the standalone financial 

statements are held in the name of the company as at the Balance Sheet date. 

d). According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, the company does not revalue its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) 
or intangible assets or both during the year. Accordingly, the provision of paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order is 
not applicable. 

e). According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami 
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

11. a). According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its inventory. In our opinion, 
the coverage and procedure of verification by management is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on 
verification between the physical stock and the book records were not material and have been appropriately 
dealt with in the books of accounts. 

b). According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, the company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in 
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets . Accordingly, the 
provision of paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

iii. According to the infonnation and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our verification 
the company has not made any investment in or provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or 
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to firms, Limited Liability Partnership or any other 
party. However, the company has provided unsecured loan to its Holding company & Fellow subsidiary 
companies. 

Dl,armesl, Parikl, & Co. (Registration No. GUJIAH/102552), a Partnership Firm /,as been converted into 
Dharmesh Parikh & Co LLP (LLP Identification No. AA W-6517) with effect from 9th Day of April, 2021 

171

 



iv. 

DHARL,IESH PARIKH & CO LLP 
CHARTERED ACCOrXT . ..\J.'°"TS 
{LLPTh': _-\.AW-6517] 

Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor's Report 
RE: Hadoti Power Transmission Service Limited 
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 of our Report of even date.) 

303! 304. ··Milestone·' 

Nr. D1fre-i.n-Cinenrn. Opp.T.V.Iov,'er. 

Ihaltej. Alunedabad-.,S0054 

Phoue: 91-79-27474"66 

Ema il : info@dharmeshparikh. net 
Website: WW\i ✓ . d harmesh par i kh.net 

a) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, the company has provided unsecured loan to holding company & fellow subsidiary 
companies. 

Guarantees Security Loans Advances in 
(Rs. In nature of loans 
Lakhs) 

Aggregate amount granted 
/ provided during the year 
- Fellow Subsidiaries - - - -
- Holding - - 2075.16 -
- Associates - - - -
Balance outstanding as at 
balance sheet date in 
respect of above cases 
- Fellow Subsidiaries - - 3378.68 -
- Holding - - 4254.52 -
- Associates - - - -

b ). According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, the terms and conditions of the grant loans are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. 

c). According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, in respect of unsecured loans to companies, the schedule of repayment of principal and 
payment of interest has been stipulated. As per the terms of loan agreement principal of loan has been 
payable at the end of tenure at bullet payment and unpaid interest of loan has been added to the principal 
amount as per loan agreements, where applicable. In case of one fellow subsidiary payment of interest 
and receipt is regular. 

d). According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, there are no amount of loan which are overdue for more than ninety days. 

e ). According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, any loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year, has not 
been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same 
parties. Accordingly, the provision of paragraph 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable. 

f). According to the information and explanation given to us and the records produced to us for our 
verification, the company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on 
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. Accordingly, the provision of paragraph 
3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us and representations made by the 
Management, the Company has not granted any loans, given any guarantees or provided any securities to the 
parties covered under section 185 of the Act. Accordingly, compliance under section 185 of the Act is not 
applicable to the company. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is 
engaged in the business of providing establishing, commissioning, setting up, operating and maintaining 
electric power transmissions systems and accordingly the provisions of Section 186 (except subsection (1) of 
Section 186) of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company has not made investments referred in Section 186(1) of the Act. 
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v. According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the 
public within the meaning of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of section 73 to 
76 of the Act, any other relevant provisions of the Act and the relevant rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, 
the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

vi. The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government of India, under Section 148( 1) 
of the Act, and prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the Company. We 
have however, not, made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are 
accurate or complete. 

vii. a). According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory 
dues including Provident Fund, Goods and Service Tax (OST) &Income Tax, Cess and other material 
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate 
authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Employees' State 
Insurance, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value added Tax. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
statutory dues mentioned above were in arrears as at 31 st March 2023 for a period of more than six months 
from the date they became payable. 

b). According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues as referred in sub 
clause(a) as at 31 March 2023, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of 
any dispute. 

viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed 
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 ( 43 of 1961). Accordingly, 
the provisions of clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

1x. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of 
interest thereon to any lender. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we 
report that the company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority or any other lender. 

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report 
that the company has not raised term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix)( c) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an 
overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no funds were raised on short­
term basis by the company during the year under consideration. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix)(d) 

of the Order is not applicable to the Company. f 
5 

V 
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e ). According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial 
statements of the company, we report that the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on 
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. 

f). According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its 
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

x. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement or not issued any fully or 
partially or optionally convertible debenture during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of 
paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

x1. a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in accordance 
with the generally accepted auditing practice in India, and according to the information and explanation given 
to us, we report that no fraud by the Company or fraud/ material fraud on the Company by the officers and 
employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 

b). No report on any matter under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in 
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government. 

c). As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the company 
during the year. 

x11. In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of Clauses 3 (xii) (a) to 
( c) of the Order is not applicable. 

xiii. As per information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, all the transaction with related parties is in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act 
2013 , wherever applicable, and all the details have been disclosed in Standalone Financial Statements as 
required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards. 

xiv. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records, we are of the opinion that the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and 
nature of its business. 

b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the year under audit. 

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions, within the meaning of Section 192 of 
the Act, with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

Dharmesh Parikh & Co. (Registration No. GUJ/AH/102552), a Partnership Firm has been converted into 
Dharmesh Parikh & Co LLP (LLP Identification No. AAW~6517) with effectfrom 9th Day of April, 2021 
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xvi. a). In our opinion and according to the infonnation and explanations given to us, the Company is not required 
to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) 
(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

b ). According to the infonnation and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, the company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xvi) (b)ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company. 

c). In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not a Core 
Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, 
the provisions of paragraph 3(xvi) (c) & (d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

xvii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not incurred cash losses in current financial year and also not in the immediately 
preceding financial year. 

xviii. According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no resignation of the statutory auditors 
during the year in the company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

xix. According to the infonnation and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and 
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and 
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, 
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company 
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one 
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due. 

xx. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
and there is no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the 
Companies Act or special amount in compliance with the provision of Sub-Section (6) of Section 135 of the 
Said Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date : 02.05.2023 

For, DHARMESH PARIKH & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No: 112054W/W100725 

~ 
D.-----A. PARIKH 
Partner 
Membership No. 045501 

uoiN -,;2,,~cl,, s-s, o , Afr\-;J r P--- v ,~ 6 s' 
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies 
Act 2013 (the act). 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Hadoti Power Transmission Service 
Limited ("the Companf') as of 31st March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements of the company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 
the internal . control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit oflnternal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company1s internal financial controls over financial reporting 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the Guidance Note) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and 
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 

. t 
\ , 
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( 1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion the company has, in all material aspects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 
31st March, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date : 02.05.2023 

For, DHARMESH PARIKH & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Re&,_N.o.:-Ll2.Q54 W /W 100725 

~~ • 

if.A.PARIKH 
Partner 
Membership No. 045501 
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HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 
(CIN: U40106GJ2016PLC119637) 
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023 

Particulars 

ASSETS 

Non-current Assets 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Capital Work-In-Progress 
Right of Use Assets 
Intangible Assets 
Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 

(ii) Loans 

(iii) Other Financial Assets 
Income Tax Assets (net) 

Total Non-current Assets 

Current Assets 

Inventories 

Financial Assets 
(i) Investments 
(ii) Trade Receivables 
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
(iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 
(v) Other Financial Assets 

Other Current Assets 

Total Current Assets 

Total Assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 
Share Capital 
Other Equity 

Total Equity 

Liabilities 

Non-current Liabilities 
Financial Liatlilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(ia) Lease Liabilities 
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 

Provisions 
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 

Total Non-current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Financial Liabilit ies 

(i) Borrowings 
(ia) Lease Liabilities 
(ii) Trade Payables 

a. Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 
b. Total outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises 

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 
Provisions 
Other Current Liabilities 
Income Tax Liabilities (net) 

Total Current Liabilities 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

Total Equity and Liabilities 

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report attached of even date 

For Dharmesh Parikh 8- Co. LLP 

C ~:~~ts 
Fi /_mber: 112054W/W100725 

fri)('t 
A. Parikh 

Partner 
Membership No. 45501 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : 2nd May, 2023 

• - ' 
\ -~ 

:.:'._. 7 c1 ::i,_r,.1'<> 

Notes 

5 
5A 
5B 
SC 

6 

7 

8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 

16 
17 

18 
19 
20 
26 
21 

22 
23 

24 

25 
26 
27 
28 

1 • 4 

As at 
31st March, 2023 

12,831.60 
827.82 

1,285.24 
3.21 

7,633.19 

1,023.51 
1.30 

23,605.87 

39.35 

789.08 
615.11 

245.78 
5.42 

594.40 
15.92 

2,305.06 

25,910.93 

1,000.00 
8,171.83 
9,171.83 

14,347.71 
85.61 

232.17 
5.78 

1.250.42 

15,921.69 

476.87 
0.50 

23.25 
183.11 

104.41 
0.57 

28.70 

817.41 

25,910.93 

adani 
Tronsmission 

Cf in Lakhs) 
As at 

31st March, 2022 

13,020.05 
691.06 

1,329.56 
6.42 

1,700.00 

3,387.74 

826.69 

20,961.52 

22.77 

1,107.57 
760.37 
251.28 

5.18 
823.55 

15.79 

2,986.51 

23,948.03 

1,000.00 
6,744.91 
7,744.91 

13,661.06 
86.11 

169.21 
5.51 

1,321.14 

15,243.03 

439.25 
0.45 

0.33 
201.54 
110.96 

0.92 
29.18 

177.46 
960,09 

23,948.03 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 

~~ 
,>,,.,. \ / 

1,r-' ./ 
Nitin Patel 
Director 
DIN:-10045885 

D~~•~ 
Chief Financial Officer 

Place : Ahmedabad 

~ •2adMay,202' 

0 c)..~ 
Atul Sadaria 
Director 
DIN:- 09753847 

Dhwani Solanki 
Company Secretary 
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HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 
(CIN:U40106GJ2016PLC11963n 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023 

Particulars 

Income 
Revenue from Operations 
Other Income 

Total Income 

Expenses 
Operating Expenses 
Employee Benefits Expenses 
Finance Costs 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 
Other Expenses 

Total Expenses 
Profit before tax for the year 

Tax Expense 

Current Tax 

Current Tax relating to earlier periods 

Deferred Tax 

Total Tax Expenses 

Profit after tax for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income 

(a) I terns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
(b) Tax relating to items.that will not be reclassified to Profit 
or Loss 
\V/ H,c:"111.:J l.llCl. VVIII UC' IC'VIC.::J;Jollll::'U l.V tJIVIIL VI IU.:J;J 

(d)Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Profit or 
Loss 

Other Comprehensive Income (After Tax) for the year 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

Earnings Per Share (EPS) (in f) 
(Face Value f 10 Per Share) 

Basic & Diluted Earnings per Share 

Notes 

29 
30 

31 
32 
33 

5 & 58 & 5C 
34 

35 

Total A 

Total B 

Total (A+B) 

36 

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report attached of even date 

For Dharmesh Parikh 8 Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm 1stracJn Number: 112054W/W100725 

\)~~/ 
~.Parikh 

Partner 

Membership No. 45501 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : 2nd May, 2023 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2023 

4,855.45 
533,14 

5,388.59 

348.10 
45.47 

1,448.35 
453.52 
158.63 

2,454.07 
2,934.52 

574.84 

9.20 

179.51 

763.55 

2,170.97 

(1. 0 0) 
0.25 

(993.29) 

249.99 

(744.05) 

1,426.92 

21.71 

adani 
Transmission 

(fin Lakhs) 
For the year ended 
31st March, 2022 

4,863.06 
747.37 

5,610.43 

341.76 
47.57 

1,479.44 
452.65 
110.86 

2,432.28 
3,178.15 

600.68 

27.06 

221 .70 

849.44 

2,328.71 

0.13 

47.90 

(12.05) 

35.98 

2,364.69 

23.29 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 

// s,/} 
Nitin Patel 
Director 

DIN:- 10045885 
' 

Dhva~ ,thy 
Chief Financial Officer 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : 2nd May, 2023 

Atul Sadaria 
Director 

DIN:- 09753841 

Ovc,'-/ • LSiuLL 
Dhwani Solanki 
Company Secretary 

~ 
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HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 
(CIN: U40106GJ2016PLC119637) 
Statement of Cash flow for the year ended 31st March, 2023 

Particulars 

A. Cash flow from operating activities 

Profit before tax 
Adjustments for: 

Finance Costs 
Depreciation Expense 
Gain on Sale/Remeasurement of Fair Value of Current 
Investments measured at FVTPL 
Unclaimed Liability/Excess Provisions written back 
Interest income from bank and other 

Operating profit before working capital changes 

Changes in Working Capital : 
(Increase)/ Decrease in Assets : 

Loans and other financial assets and other assets 
Inventories 
Trade Receivables 

lncrea_se / (Decrease) in Liabilities : 
Trade Payables 
Other Financial Liabilities, other liabilities and 

Cash generated from operations 

Tax paid (Net of Income tax Refund) 

Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 

B. Cash flow from investing activities 

Payment of Capital expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment, including capital advance 
Proceeds from/ (Deposits in) Bank deposits (net) (Including Margin money deposit) 
Sale/(Purchase) of current investment (net) 
Non-Current Loan Given 
Non-Current Loan Received back 
Proceeds from nvestment in perpetual equity instrument (Refer note 4 Below) 
Interest Income (includes Interest on delayed payment charges of~ 50.54 Lakhs 
(PY~ 320.88 Lakhs)) 

Net cash used in investing activities (B) 

C. Cash flow from financing activities 

Repayment of Long-term borrowings 

Payment towards finance lease 
Finance Cost paid 

Net cash generated from financing activities (c) 

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 12) 

Cash and cash equivalent includes 

- Refer Note 12 
Balances with banks 

- In current account 

Disclosure as per Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: 

adani 
Transmission 

Cl' in Lakhs) 
For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

2,934.52 3,178.15 

1.448.35 1.479.44 
453.52 452.65 
(33.47) (30.13) 

(6.34) 
(499.67) (710.91) 

4,303.25 4,362.87 

4.67 (5,62) 
(16.57) (22.77) 

145.26 355.79 

4.49 168.12 
(1.59) 7.99 

4,439.51 4,866.38 

(762.80) (89.74) 

3,676.71 4,n6.64 

(293 .93) (477.23) 
(48.95) (46.04) 
351.73 (902.17) 

(2,075.16) (300.00) 
84.00 

(1,700.00) 
173.28 549.90 

(1,809.03) (2,875.54) 

(467.87) (44B.56) 

(8.85) (8.B5) 
(1,396.46) (1,436.16) 
(1,873.18) (1,893.57) 

(5.50) 7.52 
251.28 243.76 

245,78 251.28 

As at As at 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

245.78 251.28 
245.78 251.28 

The Ind AS 7 require entities to provide disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and 
non-cash changes (such as foreign exchange gains or losses). The Company has provided the information for current and previous year. 

Changes in liabilities arisinca from financing activities Cl' in Lakhs) 
Particulars 1st April, 2022 Cash Flows Foreign Exchange Other 31st March, 2023 

Management 

Long-term Borrowings 14,100.31 (467.87) 1,183.32 8.83 14,824.59 
(Including Current Maturities of Long Term Debt) 
Total 14,100.31 (467.87) 1,183.32 8.83 14,824.59 

Particulars 1st April, 2021 Cash Flows Foreign Exchange Other 31st March, 2022 
Management 

Long-term Borrowings 14,009.88 (448.56) 522.06 16.93 14,100.31 
(Including Current Maturities of Long Term Debt) 
Total 14,009.88 (448.S6) S22.06 16.93 14,100.31 
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HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 
(CIN: U40106GJ2016PLC119637) 
Statement of Cash flow for the year ended 31st March, 2023 

Notes to Cash Flow Statement: 

adani 
Transmission 

1. The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the Indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows". 

2. Disclosure under Para 44A as set out in Ind AS 7 on cash flow statements under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) is given as above. 

3. Interest accrued on In t er Corporate Deposit ("ICD") given to related parties amounting to~ 587.96 Lakhs (Previous year - t 46.70 lakhs), have been converted to Inter 
Corpora te Deposit as on the report ing date as per the terms of Contract. 
4. Non Current Investment in nature of Equity oft 1,700.00 Lakhs have been converted into Inter Corporate Deposits during the year. 

The accompa nyin g notes forms an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report attached of even date 

For Dharmesh Parikh e Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg istr 7er: 112054W/W100725 

~tife 

Partner 
Membership No. 45501 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : 2nd May, 2023 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 

Nitin Patel 
Director 
DIN:-10045885 

~ 
Dhvanit Murthy 
Chie f Financial Officer 

Place ; Ahmedabad 
Date : 2nd May. 2023 

Atul Sadaria 
Director 
DIN:- 09753841 

Q~~~~kiSlL 
Company Secretary 
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HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 
(CIN: U40106GJ2016PLC119637) 
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March, 2023 

A. Share Capital 
For the year ended 31st March, 2023 

Changes in Equity Share Restated balance at the 
Balance as at 1st April, 2022 Capital due to prior period beginning of 1st April, 

errors 2022 
1,000.00 1,000.00 

For the year ended 31st March, 2022 

Changes in Equity Share Restated balance at the 
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 Capital due to prior period beginning of 1st April, 

errors 2021 
1,000.00 1,000.00 

B. Other Equity 
For the year ended 31st March, 2023 

Reserves & Surplus 
Particulars 

Retained Earnings 

Balance as at 1st April, 2022 7,012.65 
Changes in accounting pol icy or prior period errors 
Restated balance at the beginning of 1st Apr il , 2022 7,012.65 
To tal Comprehensive Income for the current yea r 2,170.21 
Dividends 
Transfer to retained earnings 
Any other changes 
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 9,1B2.B6 

For the year ended 31st March, 2022 

Reserves & Surplus 
Particulars 

Retained Earnings 

Balance as at 1st April, 2021 4,6B3.BO 
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors 
Restated balance at the beg inning of 1st Apri l, 2021 4,683.80 
Total Comprehensive Income for the current year 2,328.85 
Dividends 
Transfer to retained earnings 
Any other changes 
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 7,012.65 

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report attached of even date 

For Dharmesh Parikh & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Number: 112054W/ W100725 

D. A. Parikh ------:,,a rtn er 
Membership No. 45501 

~ in Lakhs) 
Changes in equity share Balance as at 

capital during the current 31st March, 
year 2023 

1,000.00 

~ in Lakhs) 
Changes in equity share Balance as at 

capital during the current 31st March, 
year 2022 

1,000.00 

~ in Lakhs) 
Items of other 

Comprehensive Income 
Total 

Effective portion of 
Cashflow Hedge 

(267.73) 6,744.91 

(267.73) 6,744.91 
(743.30) 1,426.92 

(1,011.03) B,171.B3 

~ in Lakhs) 
Items of other 

Comprehensive Income 
Total 

Effective portion of 
Cashflow Hedge 

(303.5B) 4,3B0.22 

(303.58) 4,380.22 
35.84 2,364.69 

{267.74) 6,744.91 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION 
SERVICE LIMITED 

Nitin Patel 
Dire ctor 
DIN:-10045885 

Dhvanit Murthy 
Chief Financial Officer 

Place : Ahmedabad 

Atul Sadaria 
Director 
DIN:• 09753841 

Company Secretary 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : 2nd May, 2023 

p y,2023 
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HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 
(CIN: U40106GJ2016PLC119637) 
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March, 2023 

Corporate information 

adani 
Transmission 

Hadoti Power Transmission Service Limited ("the Company") is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of Companies 
Act. 2013 having registered office at Adani Corporate House, Shantigram, Near Vaishno Devi Circle, S. G. Highway, Khodiyar, Ahmedabad - 382421. The 
company is incorporated on 10th May, 2016. 
At present the Company operates 220 kV and 132 kV Grid Substation and associated transmission lines and associated scheme/works under RAJ/PPP-8 
transmission network with total length of 115 Ckm with transformation capacity of 310 MVA in state of Rajasthan. 

2 Significant accounting policies 

a Statement of Compliance 
The Financial Statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS 
compliant Schedule Ill), as applicable to the standalone financial statement. 

b Basis of preparation and presentation 
The financial statements of the company have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost convention except for certain financial 
instruments that are measured at fair values or amortized cost at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies stated 
hereunder. 

The Function currency of the Company is Indian Rupee(INR). The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs 
(Transactions below f 500.00 denoted as ? 0 .00 Lakhs). unless otherwise indicated. 

c Current versus Non Current Classification 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is: 
- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle ; or 
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading; or 
- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 
A liability is current when: 
- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle : or 
- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or 
- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively. 
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has 
identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

d Foreign Currency 
In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency are recognised at the rate of 
exchange prevailing on the date of the transactions. 

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise except for: 

Exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use, which are included in the cost of 
those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings. 

e Revenue Recognition 
Revenue from contracts with customers 
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when contro l of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the 
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 
Power transmission services 
Revenue from contracts with customers comprises of revenue from power transmission services rendered India to Long Term Transmission Customers 
(L TTCs) pursuant to the respective Transmission Services Agreements (TSAs) executed by the Company with L TTCs for periods of 35 years. The Company is 
required to ensure that the transmission assets meet the minimum availability criteria under the respective TSAs. The Company's performance obligation 
under the TSAs is to provide power transmission services. 

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as the customers receive and consume the benefits provided by the Company's performance as the 
Company performs. Accordingly, the revenue from power transmission services is recognised over time based on the transmission asset availabilities and 
the tariff charges approved under the respective regulatory tariff orders and includes unbilled revenues accrued up to the end of the accounting period. 
The payment is generally due within 30-60 days upon receipt of monthly invoice by the L TTCscustomer. 

Income from transmission system incentive is accounted for based on certification of availability by respective regulatory nominated body. Where 
certifi-,cation by the regulatory nominated body is not available, incentive is accounted for on provisional basis as per estimate of availability by the 
Company and differences, if any is accounted upon receipt of certification. 

Sale of Goods: 
Other Income 
Interest income from a financial asset is recogn ised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income 
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis. by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable. 
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount 
on initial recognition. 

Interest on Overdue Receivables / Delayed Payment Charges: 
Power Transmission Business: Revenue in respect of delayed payment charges and interest on delayed payments leviable as per the relevant contracts are 
recognised on actual realisation or accrued based on an assessment of certainty of rea lization supported by either an acknowledgement from customers or 
on receipt of favorable order from regulator/ authorities. 
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Tax on Income comprises current tax and deferred tax. These are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to a 
business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. 

(i) Current Tax 
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. Current income tax 
is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-Tax Act. 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax 
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted, at the reporting date 

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside statement of profit and loss (either in other 
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are 
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

(ii) Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the 
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all Deductible temporary 
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent 
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, 
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at 
the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the relevant entity intends to 
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 

g Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 
i. Recognition and measurement 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at orig inal cost grossed up with the amount of tax/ duty benefits availed, less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Properties in the course of construction are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment losses. All costs. 
including borrowing costs incurred up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use, is capitalised along with respective asset. 

land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services. or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Freehold land is not depreciated. 
Fixtures and equipments are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
Depreciation is recognised based on the cost of assets (other than land) less their residual values over their useful lives. 
i) Depreciation in respect of assets related to electricity transmission business covered under Part B of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013, has been 
provided on the straight line method (considering a salvage value of 5%) at the rates and using the methodology as notified by the respective regulators. 

Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation are complete and the asset is ready for its intended use. 

ii) Estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:-

Type of Assets Useful lives 
Building 3 To 35 years 
Plant and Equipment 5 To 35 years 
Furniture and Fixtures 5 To 10 years 
Office Equipment 5 To 10 years 
Computer Equipment 3 To 5 years 
Vehicles B To 15 Years 

Temporary structure is depreciated 100% on the date of capitalisation. 
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use 
of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the 
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss. 

h Intangible Assets 
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment 
losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no 
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. 
Oerecognition of Intangible assets 
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from 
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset. and are 
recognised in statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised. 
Useful life 
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the 
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least 
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in 
the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method. as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The 
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying 
value of another asset. 

Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows: 
Type of asets Useful lives 
Computer Software 3 years 
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At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any 
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to 
determine the extent of the impairment losses (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company 
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be 
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash- generating 
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash­
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss. 

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its 
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no 
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit 
or loss. 

Borrowing Costs 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial 
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for 
their intended use or sale. Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is 
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. 
All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred. 

k Inventories 
Inventories are stated at the lower of weighted average cost or net realisable value. Costs include all non-refundable duties and all charges incurred in 
bringing the goods to their present location and condition. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated 
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. 
Unserviceable/damaged stores and spares are identified and written down based on technical evaluation. 
Costs incurred that relate to future contract activities are recognised as "Project Work-in-Progress·. 
Project work-in-progress comprise specific contract costs and other directly attributable overheads including borrowing costs which can be allocated on 
specific contract cost is, valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Net Realizable Value in respect of stores and spares is the estimated current procurement price in the ordinary course of the business. 
Employee benefits 

Defined benefit plans : 
The Company accounts for the liability for the gratuity benefits payable in future based on an independent actuarial valuation carried out using Projected 
Unit Credit Method considering discounting rate relevant to Government Securities at the Balance Sheet Date. 
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined 
benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability). are recognised immediately 
in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not 
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. Past service costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the earlier of: 

- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and 
- The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs 
- Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the 
net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss: 
- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non routine settlements: and 

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the 
entity recognises any related restructuring costs 
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial 
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount 
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is 
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 
The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management 
considers the interest rates of government bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change 
only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates. 

Defined benefit costs in the nature of current and past service cost and net interest expense or income are recognized in the statement of profit and loss 
in the period in which they occur. Actuarial gains and losses on remeasurement is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit 
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur and is reflected immediately in retained earnings and not reclassified to profit 
or loss. Past service cost is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period of a plan amendment. 

Defined contribution plan: 
Retirement Benefits in the form of Provident Fund and Family Pension Fund which are defined contribution schemes are charged to the statement of 
profit and loss for the period in which the contributions to the respective funds accrue. 
Compensated Absences: 
Provision for Compensated Absences and its classifications between current and non-current liabilities are based on independent actuarial valuation. The 
actuarial valuation is done as per the projected unit credit method as at the reporting date. 
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A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is 
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service. 
Liabilities recognised in respect of current employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange 
for the related service. 
Liabilities recognised in respect of other non-current employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected 
to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. 
Short-term and other long-term employee benefits 
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is 
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service. Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term 
employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service, Liabilities recognised 
in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the 
Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. 

m Leases 
At inception of a contract. the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains. a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the 
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 
The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date except for leases with a term of twelve months or less 
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense in the 
statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-Ii ne basis over the lease term. 
Lease term is a non-cancellable period together with periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that 
option : and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. 
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or 
before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore 
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the 
straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the 
Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right­
of-use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, 
if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be paid over the lease term at the commencement date, discounted 
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company 
uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. Subsequently, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. 

n Fair value measurement 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an 
asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is 
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the financial asset or settle the financial liability takes place either: 

> In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

In the absence of a principal market. in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its 
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use, Fair value measurement and / or 
disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are 
not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36. 

The Company- uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, 
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described 
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

(i) Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities: 
(ii) Level 2 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable: 
(iii) Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable. 
At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed 
as per the Company's accounting policies. 
External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets such as business undertaking for transfer under the scheme and unquoted financial assets 
and financial liabilities, Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the Management and in specific cases after discussion with and 
approval by the respective company 's Audit Committee. Selection criteria includes market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional 
standards are maintained. The Management decides, after discussions with the Group's external valuers. which valuation techniques and inputs to use for 
each case, 
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks 
of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

o Financial instruments 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments, 

Financial assets (except for trade receivable) and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to 
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are 
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition, Transaction costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition of f inancial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities, Equity instruments 
issued by a Company entity are recognised at the proceeds received. net of direct issue costs. 
(A) Financial assets 
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. 
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the 
financial assets. 
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Investments in equity instruments other than investment in subsidiaries are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial 
recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for 
trading. 

Other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive 
income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss are immediately recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

B) Financial assets at amortised cost 
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method if these financial assets are held within a business 
whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

C) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective is 
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

On initial recognition, the Company makes an irrevocable election on an instrument-by-instrument basis to present the subsequent changes in fair value in 
other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments, other than equity investment which are held for trading. 

2) Effective interest method 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial assets and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. 
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and transaction costs and other premiums or 
discounts) through the expected life of the financial assets, or where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

Interest is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at Fair Value through Profit and 
Loss (FVTPL). Interest income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss and is included in the "Other income" line item. 

3) Derecognition of financial assets 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset 
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. 

The Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without 
material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the 
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received / 
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or 
loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of that financial asset. 

4) Impairment of financial assets 
The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, trade receivables and 
other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset. 
Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference 
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to 
receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of 
the financial instrument through the expected life of that financial instrument. 

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that 
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instruments has not increased significantly since 
initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-
month expected credit losses are portion of the life time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs 
within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that will results if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting 
date and this, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months. 

If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the previous period, but determines at the end 
of a reporting period that the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the 
previous period, the Company again measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses. 

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company uses the change in the 
risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that 
assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring 
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable recognition and considers reasonable and supportable 
information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. 

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are expedient as permitted under 
Ind AS 109 , this expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and 
adjusted for forward looking information. 

5) Foreign exchange gains and losses 
The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of 
each reporting period. 
For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 
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Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the 
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 
2) Equity instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments 
issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 
3) Financial liabilities 
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL. 
4) Financial liabilities at FVTPL 
A financial liability may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if: 
(a) such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; 
(b) The financial liability whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's documented risk management; 
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss 
recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability. 

5) Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting 
periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest 
method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item. 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant 
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that 
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or 
(where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 
Trade and other payables are recognised at the transaction cost, which is its fair value, and subsequently measured at amortised cost. 
6) Foreign exchange gains and losses 
For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of 
each reporting period. 
The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of 
the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses 
and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
7) Derecognition of Financial Liability 
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange 
with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the 
recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability is accounted for as an 
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the 
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

B) Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities 

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for 
financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities, For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if 
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior 
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company's operations. Such 
changes are evident to external parties, A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is 
significant to its operations, If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is 
the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised 
gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest. 

9) Offsetting of financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to 
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, 

p Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting 

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement: 
In order to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks, the Company enters into forward, Principle only Swaps (POS) and other 
derivative financial instruments. The Company does not hold derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. 

Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently 
re-measured at fair value. 
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

- Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit and loss, except for the effective 
portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to the statement of profit and loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss 
or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability. 

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as: 
Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment. 
Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or 
liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment. 

- The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 
months; it is classified as a current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months. 

- At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply 
hedge accounting. 

- The documentation includes the Company's risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/ economic relationship, the 
hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging 
instrument's fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item's fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are 
expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they 
actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated. 
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> Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below: 

i) Fair value hedges 

adani 
Transmi:::;sion 

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately, 
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. 
When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item. the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment 
attributable to the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in statement of profit and loss. 
Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Company revokes the hedge relationship, the hedging instrument or hedged item expires or is sold, 
terminated, or exercised or no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting. 

ii) Cash flow hedges 
• The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is 

recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss. 

• Amounts recognised in OCI are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income 
or financial expense is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. When the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the 
amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability. 
If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation 
as a hedge is revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI 
remains separately in equity until the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met. 

q Cash e Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or 
less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Statement of Cash Flow comprise cash and 
cheques in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with banks where the original maturity is three months or less. 
Other Bank deposits 
Margin money comprise of bank deposits restricted as to withdrawal or usage and are used to collateralize certain debt related obligations required under 
the Trust and Retention Account agreement entered with the various lenders and restricted under other arrangements. Margin money bank deposits are 
classified as current and non-current based on management expectation of the expiration date of the underlying restrictions. 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals 
or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The 
cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. 

s Segment Reporting 
The Company's operations fall under single segment namely 'Transmission Income" hence no separate disclosure of segment reporting is required to be 
made as required under IND AS 108 'Operating Segments' 

t Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
(i) Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, 
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted 
using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to 
the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 
When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a 
separate asset. but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net 
of any reimbursement. 

(ii) Contingent liability 
A possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the enterprise are disclosed as contingent liability and not provided for. Such liability is not 
disclosed if the possibility of outflow of resources is remote. 

(iii) Contingent assets 
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one 
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. 
Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed only when an inflow of economic benefits is probable, 

u Earnings Per Share (EPS) 
Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit/(loss) attributable to the equity holders of the company by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 
Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number 
of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been 
issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average 
market value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a 
later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. 

3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
The application of the Company's accounting policies as described in Note 2, in the preparation of the Company's financial statements in conformity with 
the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. The estimates and 
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and any revisions thereto are recognized in the period in which they are 
revised or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both the current and future periods. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates which could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 
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{A) Property, plant and equipment' 
i) Depreciation rates, depreciation method and residual value of property, plant and equipment' 

adani 
Tran~mis~ion 

Depreciation in respect of assets related to electricity Transmission business is provided on a straight line basis at the rates provided in Appendix II of 
Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms and conditions of Tariff) Regulations, 2014. In case of other Assets depreciation on fixed assets is 
calculated on straight-line method (SLM) using the rates arrived at based on the useful life as specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 
ii) Impairment of property plant and equipment• 
At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment to determine whether there is any 
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to 
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). 

(B ) Taxation: 
ii) Deferred tax assets• 
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses / credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 
losses can be utilised. Management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely 
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. 
Regulators tariff norms provide the recovery of Income Tax from the beneficiaries by way of grossing up the return on equity based on effective tax rate 
for the financial year shall be based on the actual tax paid during the year on the transmission income. Accordingly, deferred tax liability provided during 
the year is fully recoverable from beneficiaries and known as "deferred assets recoverable / adjustable" in accordance with guidance given by Expert 
Advisory Committee of The Institute of Chartered Accountant of India (ICAI) in its opinion on a similar matter. The same will be recovered when the related 
deferred tax liability forms a part of current tax. 

{C) Fair value measurement of financial instruments• 
In estimating the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, the Company uses market observable data to the extent available. Where such Level 1 
inputs are not available, the Company establishes appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The inputs to these models are taken from 
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include 
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of 
financial instruments, Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities are 
disclosed. 

{D ) Defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits• 

The present value of obligations under defined benefit plan and other long term employment benefits is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial 
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual development in the future. These include the determination of the discount 
rate, future salary escalations, attrition rate and mortality rates etc. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, these 
obligations are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. Information about the various 
estimates and assumptions made in determining the present value of defined benefit obligations are disclosed. 

(E) Recognition and measurement of provision and contingencies• 
The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability (including litigations) requires the application of judgement to existing facts and 
circumstances, which can be subject to change, The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take account of 
changing facts and circumstances. 

(F) Identification of a lease' 
Management assesses applicability of Ind AS 116- 'Leases', for PPAs. In assessing the applicability. the management exercises judgement in relation to the 
underlying rights and risks related to operations of the plant. control over design of the plant etc .. in concluding that the PPA do not meet the criteria for 
recognition as a lease. 

'Critical accounting Judgments 
2 Key sources of estimation uncertainties 

4 Recent Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below: 

Ind AS 1-Presentation of Financial Statements 
The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than the ir significant accounting policies. Accounting policy 
information, together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general-purpose 
financial statements. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements. 

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes 
The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments 
narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to transactions 
that. on initial recogn i tion, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The Company is evaluating the impact, if any, in its financial 
statements. 

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 
The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting pol icies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in accounting 
estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are "monetary amounts in financial 
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty". Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial 
statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact 
in its financial statements, 

4a. Social Security Code 
The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code) amended and consolidated the laws relating to social security with the goal to extend social security to all 
employees and workers either in the organised or unorganised or any other sectors. 
In light of the amended code, employers are required to assess the impact of change in definition of wages on their organizations. A change in the 
definition of wage might have a large impact due to enhanced provision for gratuity/leave, net pay of employees, possible enhanced provision for Provident 
Fund and other employee benefits dependent on the wages. 
The government decided to defer the decision to notify the date of implementation of the code, so the companies are advised to include a disclosure about 
the impact on transition to the new code in their financial statements, However. once the code becomes effective the entities will be required to evaluate 
if the changes are a plan amendment or change in actuarial assumption 

190

 



~ADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 
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~otes to financial statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2023 

i. Property. Plant and Equipment 

Description of Assets Land 
(Free hold) 

. Cost or Deemed Cost 

lalances as at 1st April. 2021 1.59 
\dditions during the Year 
la lances as at 31st March. 2022 1.59 
\dditions during the year 
lalances as at 31st March, 2023 1.59 

I. Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

3alances as at 1st April. 2021 -
)epreciation for the year 
3alances as at 31st March. 2022 
)epreciation for the year 
3alances as at 31st March. 2023 -

Description of Assets 
Land 

(Free hold) 

Carrying Amount: 

As at 31st March. 2022 1.59 
As at 31st March, 2023 1.59 

Building 

394.93 
20.17 

415.10 
29,71 

444.81 

26.66 
11.07 
37.73 
13.24 

50.96 

Building 

377.37 
393.85 

Tangible Assets 

Plant and 
Furniture 

and 
Equipment 

Fixtures 

13.190.83 7.93 
584.02 2.72 

13,774.85 10.65 
91.46 1.01 

13.866.31 11.66 

810.53 1.79 
373.89 0.82 

1,184.42 2.61 
377.60 1.11 

1,562.02 3.72 

Plant and 
Furniture 

Equipment 
and 

Fixtures 

12,590.43 8.04 
12,304.29 7.94 

Office 
Equipments 

11.82 
18.27 

30.09 
0.53 

30.62 

0.72 
2.49 
3.21 
4.78 
7.99 

Office 
Equipments 

26.88 
22.63 

ada ni 
Transmission 

Computer 
Vehicles 

Equipment 

19,81 3.29 
0.09 

19.90 3.29 
71.38 20.91 
91.28 24.20 

2.02 0.18 
5.04 0.21 
7.06 0.39 
6.46 0.26 

13.52 0.65 

Computer 
Equipment 

Vehicles 

12.84 2.90 
77.76 23.55 

V.-OowE~ -i~0~;-- I ~<$) 
(ti· 

.....:. 

;:/ · 
~--:::;;.,,,,,--

~ in Lakhs) 

Total 

13,630.20 
625.27 

14,255.47 
215.01 

14.470.48 

841.90 
393.52 

1,235.42 
403.46 

1,638.88 

Total 

13,020.05 
12,831.60 
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SA. Capital work-in-progress: 

Particulars 

Opening Balance 
Expenditure incurred during the year 
Less : Capitalised during the year 
Closing Balance 

(a) Capital-work-in progress ageing schedule: 

Particulars 
<1 year 

As at 31st March, 2023 
- Projects in progress 113, 83 
- Projects temporarily suspended 

Total 113.83 
As at 31st March, 2022 

- Projects in progress 571,72 
- Projects temporarily suspended 

Total 571 .72 

adani 
Transmission 

Ct in Lakhs) 
As at 31st As at 31st 

March, 2023 March, 2022 

691.06 622.28 
351.77 694.05 

(215.01) (625.27) 
827.82 691 .06 

Ct in Lakhs) 
Amount in CWIP for a period of 

Total 
1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years 

595,55 118.44 - 827.82 

595.55 118.44 - 827.82 

119,34 - 691.06 
- -

119.34 691.06 
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58. Right of Use Assets 

Description of Assets 

I. Gross carrying amount 

As at 1st April 2021 

Additions during the year 

Closing Gross carrying amount as on 31st March, 2022 

Additions during the year 
Closing Gross carrying amount as on 31st March, 2023 

II. Accumulated Depreciation 8- Impairment 
As at 1st April 2021 
Amortisation charge during the year 

Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31st March, 2022 

Amortisation charge during the year 

Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31st March, 2023 

Net carrying amount - 31st March, 2022 
Net carrying amount - 31st March, 2023 

SC. Intangible Assets 

adani 
Transmission 

~ in Lakhs) 
Right of Use Assets 

Land Total 

1,462.52 1,462.52 
- -

1,462.52 1,462.52 

- -
1,462.52 1,462.52 

88.64 88.64 
44,32 44.32 

132.96 132.96 

44,32 44.32 

177.28 177.28 
1,329.56 1,329.56 
1,285.24 1,285.24 

~ in Lakhs} 

Description of Assets Computer Software Total 

I. Gross Carrying Value 
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 
Additions during the year 
Balances as at 31st March, 2022 
Additions during the year 
Balances as at 31st March, 2023 

II. Accumulated Amortisation 
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 
Amortisation Charge during the year 
Balances as at 31st March, 2022 
Amortisation Charge during the year 
Balances as at 31st March, 2023 

Net carrying amount - 31st March, 2022 
Net carrying amount - 31st March, 2023 

~ 

r ', / ~o 
0) 

c-.· - ~,-;;­,_,.r:·,¾ 
-~ 

3.87 3.87 
17.95 17.95 
21.82 21.82 

2.53 2.53 
24.35 24.35 

-
0,59 0.59 
14.81 14.81 

15.40 15.40 
5.74 5.74 

21.14 21.14 

6.42 6.42 
3.21 3.21 
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2023 

As at As at 
6 Non Current Investment 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) 
Investments - in the nature of Equity carried at Cost - Unquoted (Refe r Note 48) 

1,700.00 
Total 1,700.00 

As at As at 
Loans 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 
(Unsecured, Considered Good) ~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) 

Loans to Related Parties (Refer Note 48) 7,633 ,19 3,387.74 
Total 7,633 .19 3,387.74 

B Non Current Financial Assets - Others As at As at 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 
~ In Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) 

Balances held as Margin Money or security against borrowings 732.71 683.76 
Derivative Assets 288.31 140.48 
Interest Accrue and Due 2.49 2.45 

Total 1,023.51 826 .69 

g Income Ta>< Assets (net) As at As at 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) ~ In Lakhs) 

Advance income tax (net of tax provisions) 1.30 
1.30 

10 Investments As at As at 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) 
Investment in Mutual Funds units at FVTPL (Unquoted) 

Axis Overnight Fund Direct Growth 135.18 
HDFC Overnight Fund - Direct-Growth 203.68 
Aditya Birla Overn ight Fund Growth 789.08 155.24 
Edelweiss Overnight Fund Direct Plan Growth 73 .40 
Kotak Overnight Fund Direct-Growth 540.07 

Total 789.08 1,107.57 

Aggregate book value of un-quoted investments 789,08 1,107.57 
Aggregate Market value of un-quoted investments 789.08 1,107.57 
Note: Investment in mutual fund have been fair valued at closing NRV. 

11 Trade receivables As at As at 
(Unsecured, considered good) 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) 

Unsecured, Considered Good 615.11 760.37 
Total 615.11 760.37 

Note 1: 'No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person . Nor any trade or other receivable are due 
from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member. Trade receivable shown above all are within credit period. 

Note 2: The concentration of credit risk is very limited due to the fact that the large customers are mainly government bodies / departments. 

Trade Receivables aaein0 Schedufe ~ in Lakhs) 
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of receipt Total 
As at Not Due Less than 6 6 months - 1 year 1·2 years 2·3 years More than 3 years 

31st March, 2023 months 
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - 615.11 615.11 
considered good 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables 
- which have significant increase 
in credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables 
- credit impaired 
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables 
considered good 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant increa se in 
credit risk 
(v i) Disputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired 
Total 615,11 615,11 
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Particulars 
As at Not Due 
31st March, 2022 
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -
considered good 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables 
- which have significant increase 
in credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Rec eivables 
- credit impaired 
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables 
considered good 
(v) Disputed Trade Rec eivables. 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired 
Total 

12 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Balances with banks 
In current account 
Fixed Deposit 3 months or less 

13 Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Fixed Deposit - Margin Money 

14 Other Current Financial Assets 

Security Deposit 
Unbilled Revenue 
Interest accrued but not due 
Derivative Assets 

15 Other Current Assets 

Advance to Supplier 
Prepaid Expenses 
Advance to Employees 

OutstandinQ for followinQ I eriods from due date of receipt 
Less than 6 6 months • 1 year 1·2 years 

months 
760.37 

760.37 

I 
I 
I : 
I 

2·3 years 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

a d ani 
Tr.::Jnsmi::.!;ion 

Total 
More than 3 years 

760.37 

760.37 

As at As at 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) 

28.77 41 .68 
217.01 209.60 

245.78 251 .28 

As at As at 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) 

5.42 5.18 
5.42 5.18 

As at As at 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) 

10,00 10,00 
557.20 562,01 

21.86 249,81 
5.34 1,73 

594.40 823.55 

As at As at 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) 

1.70 1.78 
14.22 13.77 

0.24 
15.92 15.79 
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16 Share Capital 

Authorised Share Capital 
1,20,00,000 ( As at 31st March 2022 -1.20,00,000) Equity Shares off 10/- each 

Total 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Shares 
100,00,000 (As at 31st March 2022 -100,00,000) Equity Shares off 10/- each 

Total 

As at 
31st March, 2023 
~ in Lakhs) 

1,200.00 

1,200.00 

1,000.00 

1,000.00 

As at 
31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) 

1,200.00 

1,200.00 

1,000.00 

1,000.00 

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year 

At the beginning of the Year 

Add: Issued During the Year 

Outstanding at the end of the Year 

b. Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares 

As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022 

__ ccN.=.o·c..cS::.;h.c:a:.:.r::.;es'----~'-'--'i:.:.n.=Lc::ak::.:h.c:s:<.) ___ _;_Ncco:.:. • ..::S:.:.ha:::r..=e;:.s__ ~ in Lakhs) 

1,00,00,000 1,000.00 1.00.00.000 1,000.00 

1,00,00,ooo 1,000.00 1,00,00,ooo 1,000.00 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value oft' 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the 
Company the holders of the equity shares w ill be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion 
to the number of equity shares held by the sh are holders.The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors if any, is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. 

c. Shared held by Holding Company 
Out of equi ty shares issued by the company, shares held by its holding company together with its nominees are as below : 

Adani Transmission Limited(Holding Company) e, its nominees 

d. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company 

Equity Shares of f 10 each fully paid 
Adani Transmission Limited(H olding Company) e, its nominees 

100,00,000 (As at 31st March, 2022 -100,00,000) 
equity shares of, 10/- each along with its nominees 

As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022 

__ N=o.:...;S:::h.:.:a::..re:.:•=-------'~'-'-'in:.:_..=Lc:;ake;h.:.:s:<.) ___ _;_N:..:D:.:.· -=S"-ha:.:r.=e;:,s __ ~ In Lakhs) 

1,00,00,000 1,000.00 
1,00,00,ooo 1,000.00 

As at 31st March, 2023 
No. Shares 

1,00,00,000 

1,00,00,ooo 

'If. holding in the 
class 

100% 

100% 

1.00,00,000 1,000.00 
1,00,00,ooo 1,000.00 

As at 31st March, 2022 
No. Shares 

1,00,00,000 

1,00,00,ooo 

'If. holding in the 
class 

100% 

100% 

e. As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above 
shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares. 

e. Details of Shareholding of Promoters 
Particulars 

As at 31st March, 2023 
Adani Transmission Limited(Holding Company) e, its nominees 

As at 31st March, 2022 
Adani Transmission Limited(Holding Company) e, its nominees 

No. of 
shares 

1,00,00,000 
1,00,00,000 

1,00,00,000 
1,00,00,ooo 

% of total shares the 
Remark if change 
is more thin 25% 

100% 
100% 

100% 
100% 

17 Other Equity As at As at 

(a) Surplus/ (Deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
Opening Balance 
Add: Profit for the year 
Less: Other comprehensive income arising from remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans 
Add :Ta x relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 

(b) Other Comprehensive Income 
Hedge Reserve 
Opening Balan ce 
(Less) Reduction on account of cash flow hedge 
(Less) Ta x Relating to cash flow hedge 
Closing Balance 

Note: 

Total (a) 

Total (b) 

Total (a+b) 

31st March, 2023 

~ in Lakhs) 

7,012.64 
2,170.97 

(1.00) 
0.25 

9,182.86 

(267.73) 
(993.29) 
249,99 

(1,011.03) 

8 ,171.83 

a. Retained earnings represents the amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends considering the requirements of the Companies' Act, 2013. 

31st March, 2022 

~ in Lakhs) 

4,683.80 
2,328.71 

0.13 

7,012.64 

(303 .58) 
47,90 
(12.05) 

(267,73) 

6,744 .91 

b.The cash flow hedging reserve repre sents the cumulative effective portion of gains or losses arising on changes in fair value of designated portion of hedging instruments entered into 
for cash flow hedges. The cumulative gain or loss arising on changes in fair value of the designated portion of the hedging instruments that are recognised and accumulated under the 
heading of cash flow hedging reserve will be reclassified to profit or loss only when the hedged transaction affects the profit or loss, or included as a basis adjustment to the non­
financial hedged item. 
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18 Non-Current Financial liabilities• Borrowings 

USO Denominated Notes 

Less: Amount disclosed under the head "Short Term Borrowings" (Refer Note 22) 

Note: 
The Security details for the balances as at 31st March 2023 

Borrowings 

Total 

Non-Current 
As at 

31st March, 2023 
~ in Lakhs) 

14,347.71 

14,347,71 

14.347,71 

Securitv 

As at 
31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) 

13,661.06 

13,661,06 

13,661 .06 

adani 

Current 

As at 
31st March, 2023 
~ in Lakhs) 

476,87 

476.87 

476.B7 

As at 
31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) 

439.25 

439.25 

439.25 

Terms of Reoavment 
5.20% USO Denominated Notes USO Denominated Notes are secured/to be secured by first ranking charge on 5.20%, 18.23 Million (31st March, 2022 • 

receivables of the company, on all immovable and movable assets, charge or 1B.82 Million) USO Denominated Notes 
assignment of rights under Transmission Service Agreement and other project aggregating~ 14979.59 Lakhs (31st March. 
documents, charge or assignment of rights and/or designation of the Security Trustee 2022- ~ 14.264.15 Lakhs) which has a semi 
as loss payee under each insurance contract in respect of Project. The Notes are also annual repayment schedule with first 
secured by way of pledge over 100'6 of shares of the company held by Adani repayment in the month of Sep-2020 and 
Transmission Ltd. semi-annually then after over the period of 

its tenure ending March-2050. 

19 Lease Liabilities As at As at 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) 

Finance Lease (Refer Note 44) 85,61 B6.11 
Total 85.61 86.11 

20 Other Financial Liabilities As at As at 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) 

Retention Money 232.17 169.21 
Total 232.17 169.21 

21 Deferred tax liabilities (Net) As at As at 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) 

Deferred tax liability 1.250.42 1,321.14 
Total 1,250.42 1,321.14 

Deferred Tax relates to following· 

Particulars As at As at 

31st March. 2023 31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 
Difference between book base and tax base of property, plant and equipment (1.594.53) (1.412.91) 
M2M gain on Mutual Funds (0.27) (1 .62) 
Gross Deferred Tax liabilities (1,594.80) (1,414.53) 
Deferred Tax Assets 
Provision for Employee benef its 2.06 1.62 
OCI - Hedge Reserve 340.04 90.05 
Lease liabilities 2.28 1.72 
Gross Deferred Tax Assets 344.38 93.39 
Net Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) (1,250.42) (1,321 .14) 

(a) Movement in deferred tax assets (net) for the Financial Vear 2022-23 ~ in Lakhs) 
Particulars Opening Balance 

Closing Balance as 
as at 1st April, Recognised in profit and loss Recognised in OCI 

2022 
at 31st March, 2023 

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax 
liabilities: 
Depreciation on ROU 
M2M gain on Mutual Funds (1 .62) 1.36 (0.27) 
Difference between book base and tax base of (1.412,91) (181.61) (1,594.53) 
property, plant and equipment 
Total (1,414.53) (180.25) (1,594.80) 
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax 
assets: 
Employee Benefits 1.62 0.19 0.25 2.06 
OCI - Hedge Reserve 90.05 249.99 340.04 
Lease Liabilities 1.72 0.56 2.28 
Total 93 .39 0.75 250.24 344.38 
Net Deferred Tax Asset (1,321 .14) (179.51) 250.24 (1,250.42) 
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(b) Movement in deferred tax assets (net) for the Financial Year 2021-22 
Particulars Opening Balance 

as at 1st April, 
2021 

Tax effect of items constituting deferred ta• 
liabilities: 
Depreciation on ROU 
M2M gain on Mutual Funds 

Difference between book base and ta x base of (1.189.49) 
property, plant and equipment 
Total (1,189.49) 
Tax effect of items constituting deferred ta• 
assets: 
Employee Benefits 
CCI-Hedge Reserve 102,10 
Lease liabilities 
Total 102.09 
Net Deferred Ta• Asset/(Liabilities) (1,087.39) 

22 Current Financial Liabilities • Borrowings 

Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings (Refer Note-18) 

23 Current Lease Liabilities 

Finance Lease 

24 Tracie Payables 

Trade Payables 
- Total outstanding dues of creditors micro and small enterpri se 
- Total outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises 
Accrual for Employees 

adani 
Tr:,n s m i ~~i on 

(l' in Lakhs) 

Closing Balance as 
Recognised in profit and loss Recognised in OCI 

at 31st March, 2022 

(1.62) (1.62) 
(223.42) (1,412.91) 

(225.04) (1,414.53) 

1.62 1.62 
(12.05) 90,05 

1.72 1.72 
3.34 (12.05) 93.39 

(221.70) (12.05) (1,321.14) 

As at As at 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

(l' in Lakhs) (l' in Lakhs) 
476.B7 439,25 

Total 476.87 439,25 

As at As at 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

(l' in Lakhs) (l' in Lakhs) 

0,50 0.45 
Total a.so 0.45 

As at As at 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

(l' in Lakhs) (l' in Lakhs) 

23.25 0 .33 
181,25 200.23 

1,86 1.31 
Total 206 ,36 201 .87 

The Disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to Micro and Small Enterprises have been made in the standalone Financial Statements based on the information received and 
available with the company. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance sheet date.Hence additional disclosure as per MSME Act is not 
requi red, These facts have been relied upon by the auditors. 

24. 1 Trade Payables ageing schedule 

Particulars 
Outstandinq for following periods from due date of payment 

No Due <1 vear 1-2vears 2-3 years >3 years 
As at 3ist March, 2023 

(a) MSME 6.BO 16.45 

(b) Others B1.11 100.52 1.48 

(c) Disputed du es - MSME 
(d) Disputed dues - Others 
Total 87.91 116.97 1.48 

Particulars 
Outstandina for followinq aeriods from due date of oavment 

No Due <1 year 1-2years 2-3 vears >3 vears 
As at 31st March, 2022 

(a) MSME 0.33 
(b) Others 85.21 116.33 

(c) Disputed dues - MSME 
(d) Dispu ted dues - Others 
Total 85.54 116.33 

24.2 Trade Payables 

(a) the principal amount remaining unpaid to any suppl ier at the end of each accounting year 
(b) Interest due on principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year 
(c) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 
2006), along w ith the am ount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year 
(d) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day 
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the M icro, Small and Med ium Enterpris es Development Act, 2006; 
(e) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year: and 
(f) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

Total 

23.25 
183.11 

206.36 

Total 

0.33 
201 .54 

201 ,B7 

As at 
31st March, 2023 

(l' in Lakhs) 

23.25 

As at 
31st March, 2022 

(l' in Lakhs) 

0 .33 
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25 

26 

27 

28 

Other Financial Liabilities 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 
Retention Money 
Payable on purchas e of Property, Plante Equipment _ 
Deposit From Customers 

Provision for Estimated Loss on Derivative Contracts 

Provisions 

Provision for Employee Benefits (Refer Mote 40) 

- Gratuity 

• Leave Encashment 

Total 

Other Current Liabilities 

Statutory Liabilities 

Income Tax Liabilities (net) 

Current Tax Liabilities (net) 

Non - Current 

As at 
31st March, 2023 
~ in Lakhs) 

3.17 

2.61 
5.7B 

Total 

Non - Current 

As at 

31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) 

Total 

Total 

1.50 

4,01 
5.51 

As at 
31st March, 2023 

~ In Lakhs) 

43.27 
0.98 

60.10 
0.06 

104.41 

Current 

As at 

31st March, 2023 
~ in Lakhs) 

As at 

0.00 

0 .56 

0,56 

31st March, 2023 
~ in Lakhs) 

28.69 
28.69 

As at 
31st March, 2023 
~ in Lakhs) 

adani 
Tr~nsmi:::.5ion 

As at 
31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) 

41.21 

63.67 
0.06 
6 .02 

110,96 

Current 

As at 
31st March, 2022 

~ in Lakhs) 

As at 

0.00 

0 .92 

0.92 

31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) 

29.18 
29.1B 

As at 
31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) 

177.46 
177.46 
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29 Revenue from Operations 

Revenue from Operations: 
Income from Service of Transmission Line 

Details of Revenue from Contract with Customer 
Contract balances: 

Total 

(a) The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from the contracts with customers, 

Particufars 

Trade receivables (refer note 11) 
Contract assets (refer note 14) 
Contract liabilities 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2023 

Cf in Lakhs) 

4,855.45 
4,855.45 

As at 
31st March, 2023 

Cf in Lakhs) 

675.11 
557.20 

adani 
Tran~mi~~ion 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022 

Cf in Lakhs) 

4,863.06 
4,863.06 

As at 
31st March, 2022 

Cf in Lakhs) 

760.37 
562.01 

The contract assets primarily relate to the Company's right to consideration for work completed but not billed at the reporting date. The contract assets are transferred to receivables 
when the rights become unconditional. This usually occurs when the Company issues an invoice to the Customer. The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration 
received from the customers. 

(b) Reconciliation the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price: 

Particulars 

Revenue as per contracted price 
Adjustments 
Discounts 
Revenue from contract with customers 

3 O Other Income 

Gain on Sale/Remeasurement of Fair Value of Current Investments measured at FVTPL 
Interest Income 

- Sank 
• Others• 
From related party 
From others 

Unclaimed Llability/E><cess Provisions written back 

• Includes interest Income from delayed payment from customer amounting to?' 50.54 lakhs (PY f 320 .87 lakhs) 

31 Operating e>ep_enses 

Maintenance of Transmission Line 

32 Employee Benefits Expenses 

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 
Employee Welfare E><penses 

33 Finance costs 

(a) Interest Expense 
• Borrowing 
• Trade Credits 
- Lease liabilities 

(b) Other borrowing costs : 

- Bank Charges e. Other Borrowing Costs 
- loss on Derivatives Contracts 

I 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total (a) 

Total (b) 
Total (a+b) 

As at As at 
31st March, 2D23 31st March, 2022 

Cf in Lakhs) Cf in Lakhs) 
4,855.45 4,863.06 

4,855.45 4,B63.D6 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2D22 

Cf In Lakhs) Cf in Lakhs) 
33.47 30 .13 

63.32 54 .70 

385.69 298.16 
50.66 358.04 

6.34 
533.14 747.37 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2D22 

Cf in Lakhs) Cf in Lakhs) 

348.10 341.76 
34B.10 341,76 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2D22 

Cf in Lakhs) Cf in Lakhs) 

39.97 43.31 
2.99 2.64 
2.51 1.62 

45,47 47.57 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

Cf in Lakhs) Cf in Lakhs) 

824.42 810.39 
0.05 0.00 
8.40 8.44 

832.87 818.B3 

13.12 25.55 
602.36 635.06 
615.48 660.61 

1,448.35 1,479.44 
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34 Other Expenses 

Stores and Spares 
Legal e Professional Expenses 
Insurance Expenses 
Payment to Auditors (Refer Note Below) 
Office Expenses 
Communication expenses 
Travelling e Conveyance Expenses 
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer Note 45) 
Electricity Expenses 
Rates e. Taxes 

Miscellaneous Expenses 

(All Figures below t 500.00 is denoted as t 0.00) 

Nate: Payment to Auditors • 
Statutory Audit Fees 
Other Fees/Certificate Fees 

35 Income Tax : 
The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31st March, 2023 are: 
Income Tax Expense : 

Current Tax: 
Current Income Tax Charge 
Current Tax relating to earlier periods 

Deferred tax: 
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 

Income tax expenses reported in statement of profit and loss 

Total tax expense as per P8-L 

Total 

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by applicable tax rate for March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. 

Particulars 

Accounting profit/ (loss) before tax 
Income tax using Applicable tax rate 
Tax Effect of: 
Adjustment relating to earlier years 
Change In estimate related to prior years 
Provis ions disallowed 
Non deductible e)(penses 
Depreciation allowable on assets (difference between Income ta)( act and Companies act) 
Lease Liabilities 

Tax provisions; 
Current tax for the year 
Current Tax relating to earlier periods 
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 

Income tax recognised in the statement of profit and loss at effective rate 

36 Earnings per Share 

Basic and Diluted EPS 
Profit/ (Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders 
No of Equity Shares Outstanding 
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding during the year 

Nominal Value of Equity Share 
Basic and Diluted EPS 

~ in Lakhs) 
No. 

No. 

f 
f 

~ 

adani 
Tr;:in ~mi~~ ion 

Far the year ended Far the year ended 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) 

13.72 1.15 
29.13 21.47 
8.74 8.87 
1.00 1.01 

10.52 4.32 
32.54 23 .09 

5.53 2.57 
57.00 44.74 
0 .45 0.55 

0 .01 
0 .00 2.98 

158.63 110.86 

0.88 0 .65 
0.12 0 ,36 

1.00 1.01 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) 

574.84 600.68 
9.20 27.06 

584.04 627,74 

179,51 221 .70 
179.51 221 .70 

763.55 849.44 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) ~ in Lakhs) 

2.934.52 3,178.15 
738.56 799.88 

9.20 27.06 
-8 .97 

(0 .65) 
14.23 13.83 
0 .05 

10.48 9.32 

763.55 B49.44 

574.84 600,68 
9.20 27.06 

179.51 221.70 

763.55 B49.44 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) ~ In Lakhs) 

2,170.97 2,328.71 
1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000 

1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000 

10 10 
21.71 23.29 

- --' . \ .,.·') 

- -~, -
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37 Contingent liabilities and commitments : 

(i) Contingent liabilities : 

(ii) Commitments : 
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed (net of capital advances) 

As at 
31st March, 2023 

Cf in Lakhs) 

276.99 
276.99 

adani 
Transmission 

As at 
31st March, 2022 

Cf in Lakhs) 

56.98 
56.98 

38 The Company has taken various derivatives to hedge its loans. The outstanding position of derivative instruments are as under: 

As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022 

Nature Purpose Foreign Foreign 
~ in Lakhs Currency tin Lakhs Currency 

(USD in Million) (USD in Million) 
Principal Hedging of foreign currency borrowing 14,979.59 18.23 14,264.15 18.82 

Only principal liability 
Swaps 
Forwards Hedging of foreign currency borrowing 772.64 0.94 735,92 0.97 

principal 8- interest liability 

39 Capital Management 
The company's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity and healthy capital ratios is order to support its business and 
provide adequate return to share holders through continuing growth. The company's overall strategy remains unchanged from previous year. 

The company sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long term operation plans which include capital and other 
strategic investment. 

The funding requirement are met through a mixture of equity, internal fund generation and borrowing. The company's policy is to use borrowing 
to meet anticipated funding requirements. 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended as at 31st March, 2023 

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt (total debt less cash and bank balance and current investment)divided by 
total capital plus net debt. 

Cf in Lakhs) 
Particulars Refer Note 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

Total Borrowings 18 8- 22 14,824.59 14,100.30 
Less: Cash and Bank Balance 12 8-13 251.20 256.46 
Less: Current Investment 10 789.08 1,107.57 
Net Debt (A) 13,784.31 12,736.27 

Total Equity (8) 16 8-17 9,171.83 7,744,91 
Total Equity and Net Debt (C=A+B) 22,956.14 20.481.18 
Gearing Ratio 0.60 0.62 

40 As per Indian Accounting standard IND AS 19 "Employee Benefits", the disclosure as defined in the accounting standard are given below. 

(a) Defined Benefit Plan 
The Company operates a defined benefit plan (the Gratuity plan) covering eligible employees, which provides a lump sum payment to vested 
employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the 
tenure of employment. 

Particulars 

i. Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of defined benefit obligation 
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations at the beginning of the year 
Current Service Cost 
Past Service Cost 
Interest Cost 
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain)/ loss arising from: 
- Change in demographic assumptions 
- Change in financials assumptions 
- Experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs. assumptions) 
Liability Transfer ln/(out) 
Benefits paid 
Net Actuarial loss/ (gain) Recognised 
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations at the end of the year 

As at 
31st March, 2023 

Cf in Lakhs) 

1.5 
0,79 

0 ,09 

0.89 
-0,14 
0 .25 
(0 .21) 

3.17 

As at 
31st March, 2022 

Cf in Lakhs) 

1.20 
0.62 

0.08 

(0,34) 
0.41 

(0.21) 
(0,26) 

1.50 
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ii. Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of the Fair value of Plan assets 
Fair Value of Plan assets at the beginning of the year 
Expected return on plan assets 
Contributions 
Benefits paid 
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets 
Fa ir Value of Plan assets at the end of the year 

iii. Reconciliation of the Present value of defined benefit obligation and Fair value of plan 
assets 
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations at the end of the year 
Fair Value of Plan assets at the end of the Year 
Net Asset/ {Liability) recognized in balance sheet as at the end of the year 

iv. Gratuity Cost for the Year 
Current service cost 
Past Service Cost 
Interest cost 
Expected return on plan assets 
Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) 
Net Gratuity cost Transferred to Profit 8 Loss 

v. Other Comprehensive Income 
Actuarial (gains)/ losses 
- Change in demographic assumptions 
- Change in financial assumptions 
- Experience variance {i.e . Actual experiences assumptions) 
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income 

vi. Actuarial Assumptions 
Discount Rate (per annum) 
Annual Increase in Salary Cost 
Mortality Rates as given under Indian Assured Lives Mortality {2012-14) Ultimate 

vii. Sensitivity Analysis 

3.17 

(3.17) 

0 .79 

0.09 

0.88 

0.89 
(0.14) 
0.25 
1.00 

7.50% 
10.00% 

100% 

adan~ 
Transmission 

1.50 

{1. 50) 

0.62 

0 .08 

0.70 

(0.34) 
0.41 
(0.21) 
(0.14) 

6.90% 
10.00% 

100% 

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and 
mortality. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end 
of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below: 

Particulars 

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base) 

Particulars 

Discount Rate (- / + 1%) 
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 

Salary Growth Rate (- / + 1%) 
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 

Attrition Rate (- / + 50%) 
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 

Mortality Rate (- / + 10%) 
{% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 

As at 
31st March, 2023 
~ in Lakhs) 

Decrease Increase 

3.87 
22.20% 

2.61 
-17.60% 

3.17 
0.00% 

3.17 
0 .10% 

;?,':;_? 

, , , V 
I 

I ' I I 

L , 
I 

~ 

2.60 
-17.90% 

3.85 
21.40% 

3.17 
0.00% 

3.17 
-0.10% 

As at 
31st March, 2023 
~ in Lakhs) 

3.17 

As at 

As at 
31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) 

1.50 

31st March, 2022 
~ In Lakhs) 

Decrease 

1.68 
11.70% 

1.36 
-9.80% 

1.84 
22.60% 

1.50 
0.00% 

Increase 

1.35 
-10 .00% 

1.67 
11.20% 

1.28 
-14.80% 

1.50 
0.00% 
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viii. Asset Liability Matching Strategies 
The Scheme is managed on unfunded basis 

ix. Effect of Plan on Entity's Future Cash Flows 
a) Funding arrangements and Funding Policy 
The Scheme is managed on unfunded basis 

b) Expected Contribution during the next annual reporting period 
The Company's best estimate of Contribution during the next year is Nil 

c) Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation 
Weighted average duration (based on discounted cash flows) - 11 years 

Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis): 
1 year 
2 to 5 years 
6 to 10 years 
More than 10 years 

adani 
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~ in Lakhs) 
0.00 
0.02 
0.06 
15.39 

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term 
of the obligations. 

The actuarial liability for leave encashment and compensated absences (including Sick Leave) as at the year ended 31st March 2023 is t 3.16 
Lakhs (As at 31st March'2022 t 3.77 Lakhs). 

(b) Defined Contribution Plan 
Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans, charged to Statement of Profit 8- Loss for the year is as under: 

Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 

As at 
31st March, 2023 
~ in Lakhs) 

1.98 

As at 
31st March, 2022 
~ in Lakhs) 

1.82 
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41 The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as on 31st March, 2023 

Fair Value through 

Particulars other 
Comprehensive 

Income 

Financial Assets 
Investments in mutual funds 
Investments in the nature of Equity support 
Loans 
Trade Receivables 
Cash and Cash Equivalents -
Bank Balances other than above 
Derivative Asset (743.30) 
Other Financial Assets 
Total (743,30) 
Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings (including current maturities) 
Lease Liability 
Trade Payables 
Other Financial Liabilities 
Total -

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as on 31st March 2022 

Fair Value through 

Particulars 
other 

Comprehensive 
Income 

Financial Assets 
Investments in mutual funds 
Investments in the nature of Equity support 
Loans 
Trade Receivables 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Bank Balances other than above 
Derivative Instruments 
Other Financial Assets 
Total -
Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings (including current maturities) -
Lease Liability -
Derivative Instruments 35.84 
Trade Payables 
Other Financial Liabilities 
Total 35.84 

Fair Value 
through Profit or 

Loss 

789.08 

-
-

1,036.95 

1,826.02 

Fair Value 
through Profit or 

Loss 

1,107.57 

142.22 

1,249.79 

(29.82) 

(29.82) 

adani 
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~ in Lakhs) 

Amortised Cost Total 

789.08 
-

7,633.19 7,633.19 
615.11 615.11 

245.78 245.78 
5.42 5.42 

293.65 
1,324.26 1,324.26 
9,823.77 10,906.49 

14,824.59 14,824.59 
86.11 86.11 

206.36 206.36 
336.58 336.58 

15,453.64 15,453.64 

~ in Lakhs) 

Amortised Cost Total 

- 1,107.57 
1.700 1.700.00 

3,387.74 3,387.74 
760.37 760.37 
251.28 251.28 

5.18 5.18 
142.22 

1.508.02 1.508.02 
7,612.59 8,862.38 

14,100.31 14,100.31 
86.57 86.57 

6.02 
201.87 201.87 
274.16 274.16 

14,662.91 14,668.93 

- The management assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalents, other balance with banks, trade receivables, loans, trade payables, other 
financial assets and liability approximate their carrying amount largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments. 
- The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction 
between willing parties. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values. 
- Fair value of mutual funds are based on the price quotations near the reporting date. 
- The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with various counterparties, principally banks and financial institutions with investment grade 
credit ratings. Foreign exchange forward contracts are valued using valuation techniques, which employs the use of market observable inputs. The most 
frequently applied valuation techniques include forward pricing and swap models using present value calculations. The models incorporate various inputs 
including the credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates, yield curves of the respective currencies, currency basis spreads 
between the respective currencies, interest rate curves and forward rate curves of the underlying currency. All derivative contracts are fully collateralized, 
thereby, eliminating both counterparty and the company's own non-performance risk. 

42 Fair Value hierarchy 
~ in Lakhs) 

Particulars As at As at 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

Level2 Level2 
Assets 
Investments in Mutual Funds 789.08 1,107.57 
Derivative instruments designated in hedge accounting relationship 293.65 142.22 
Total 1,082.72 1,249.79 

- Fair value of mutual funds are based on the price quotations at the reporting date 
- The fair value of Derivative instruments is derived using valuation ~echniques which include forward pricing and swap models using present value 
calculations. < I t . ,,y 

1/.<cc '-IC' 
0 
r­r 
"t, 
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43 Financial Risk objective and policies 

adani 
Transmission 

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables, The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the 
Company's operations/projects, The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that 
derive directly from its operations. 
In the ordinary course of business, the Company is mainly exposed to risks resulting from exchange rate fluctuation (currency risk), interest rate 
movements (interest rate risk) collectively referred as Market Risk, Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk and other price risks such as equity price risk. The Company's 
senior management oversees the management of these risks. It manages its exposure to these risks through derivative financial instruments by hedging 
transactions. It uses derivative instruments such as Principal only Swaps, Interest rate swaps, foreign currency future options and foreign currency forward 
contract to manage these risks. These derivative instruments reduce the impact of both favourable and unfavourable fluctuations. 
The Company's risk management activities are subject to the management, direction and control of Central Treasury Team of the Group under the 
framework of Risk Management Policy for Currency and Interest rate risk as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Group's central 
treasury team ensures appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company through appropriate policies and procedures and that financial 
risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group's policies and risk objectives. It is the Group's policy that no trading in derivatives 
for speculative purposes may be undertaken. 

The decision of whether and when to execute derivative financial instruments along with its tenure can vary from period to period depending on market 
conditions and the relative costs of the instruments. The tenure is linked to the timing of the underlying exposure, with the connection between the two 
being regularly monitored, The Company is exposed to losses in the event of non-performance by the counterparties to the derivative contracts, All 
derivative contracts are executed with counterparties that, in our judgment, are creditworthy. The outstanding derivatives are reviewed periodically to 
ensure that there is no inappropriate concentration of outstanding to any particular counterparty. 

Further, all currency and interest rate risks as identified above is measured on a daily basis by monitoring the mark to market (MTM) of open and hedged 
position. The methodology used for computing fair value against different derivative products is as follows: 
The MTM is derived basis underlying market curves on closing basis of relevant instrument quoted on Bloomberg/Reuters. For quarter ends, the MTM for 
each derivative instrument outstanding is obtained from respective banks. 

Interest rate risk 
The company is exposed to changes in market interest rates due to financing, investing and cash management activities. The Company's exposure to the 
risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to The Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates and period of borrowings. 
However, during the year and as at period end the Company does not have any borrowings with floating interest rates, Hence, the company is not exposed 
to any interest rate risk. 

Credit risk 
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a loss to the company. The Company has adopted the 
policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial losses from default, and generally does not obtain any 
collateral or other security on trade receivables. 

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements represents the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk. 
Cash are held with creditworthy financial institutions. 
Liquidity risk 
The Company monitors its risk of shortage of funds using cash flow forecasting models. These models consider the maturity of its financial investments, 
committed funding and projected cash flows from operations, The Company's objective is to provide financial resources to meet its business objectives in a 
timely, cost effective and reliable manner and to manage its capital structure. A balance between continuity of funding and flexibility is maintained 
through the use of various types of borrowings, 

The table below analysis derivative and non-derivative financial liabilities of the Company into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period 
from the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. 

As at 31st March, 2023 Less than 1 year 
Borrowings*# 1,257.44 
Trade Payables 206.36 
Lease Liabilities 0.50 
Derivative Instruments 
Other Financial Liabilities .. 104.41 

As at 31st March, 2022 Less than 1 year 
Borrowings*# 1,183.10 
Trade Payables 201.87 
Lease Liabilities 0.45 
Derivative Instruments 6.02 
Other Financial Liabilities .. 104,94 

1-5 years 
5,909.05 

2.60 

232.17 

1-5 years 
4,499.86 

3,10 

169.21 

Over 5 years 
19,305.43 

83,01 

Over 5 years 
19,917.49 

83.01 

~ in Lakhs) 
Total 

26,471.92 
206.36 

86.11 

336.58 

Total 
25,600.45 

201.87 
86,56 

6.02 
274,15 

• Includes Non-current borrowings, current borrowings, current maturities of non-current borrowings, committed interest payments on borrowings. 
•• Includes both Non-current and current financial liabilities. Excludes current maturities of non-current borrowings. 
#The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial liabilities including interest that will be paid on those 
liabilities upto the maturity of the instruments, ignoring the call and refinancing options available with the Group. 
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44 Leases 
Disclosure under Ind AS 116 Leases: 

Particulars 
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 
Lease Liabilities on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 
Finance Costs incurred during the year 
Net Payments of Lease Liabilities 
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 (Refer note 19 and 23) 
Lease Liabilities on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 
Finance Costs incurred during the year 
Net Payments of Lease Liabilities 
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 (Refer note 19 and 23) 

Disclosure of Lease Contracts: 

adani 
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(fin Lakhs) 
Amount 
86,98 

8.44 
(8,86) 
86.56 

8.40 
(8,85) 
86,11 

The Company have been taken Leasehold Land on lease. The lease rent terms are for the period of 33 years. The lease agreement is of fixed rate and not 
cancellable. There is no contingent rent and no restrictions imposed by the lease arrangements.(Refer Note 43) 

45 Corporate Social Responsibility 

Particulars 

(i) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 
(ii) Amount of expenditure incurred 
(iii) Shortfall at the end of the year 
(iv) Total of previous years shortfall 

Total amount contributed during the year 

(v) Reason for shortfall : NA 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2023 

56.94 
57.00 

57.00 

(fin Lakhs) 
For the year ended 
31st March, 2022 

44.43 
44.74 

44,74 

(vi) Nature of CSR activities : Primary Education. Community Health, Sustainable Livelihood Development , Rural Infrastructure Development and 
Agriculture related activities. 
(vii) Out of (ii) above~ 5 7 Lakhs (Previous year:~ 9.30 Lakhs) contributed to Adani Foundation Trust which is an entity under common control in relation 
to CSR expenditure. 
(viii) where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation, the movements in the provision during the year 
shall be shown separately: No such provision required to be made during the year with respect to CSR. 

46 Events occurring after the Balance sheet Date 
The Company evaluates events and transactions that occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to the approval of financial statements to 
determine the necessity for recognition and/or reporting of any of these events and transactions in the financial statements. 
As of 2nd May, 2023, there are no subsequent events to be recognized or reported that are not already disclosed. 

46.1 Other Disclosure: 
During the quarter ended 31st March, 2023, a short seller report was published in which allegations were made involving Adani Group Companies. A writ 
petition was filed in the matter with the Hon'ble Supreme Court ("SC"), and the Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") has represented to the SC 
that it is investigating the allegations made in the short seller report for any violations of the SEBI Regulations. The SC vide its order dated 2nd March, 
2023 has also constituted expert committee to investigate and advice into the various aspect of existing laws and regulations and also directed to the SEBI 
to consider certain additional aspects in its scope. The above-mentioned investigations are in progress as of date. 
To uphold the principles of good governance, the Adani Group has undertaken review of transactions referred in the short seller's report (including those 
pertaining to the Company) through independent law firms and their opinions confirm that the Holding Company, Adani Transmission Limited, and its 
subsidiaries are in compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Based on the foregoing, the management of the Company is of the view that it is not 
likely to have any impact on the financial statements in this regard arising from the above matters. 
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47 Ratio Analyses 

Financial Ratios Particulars Numerator/ Denominator 
taken 

Current Ratio Ratio 
(in times) Numerator Current Assets 

Denominator Current Liabilities 

Debt- Equity Ratio Ratio 
(in times) Numerator Total Borrowings 

(Including Current 
Maturities of Long term 
borrowing) 

Denominator 
Total Equity 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio Ratio 
(in times) 

Numerator 
Net Profit before Tax, 
Depreciation e. Amortization 
Expense e. Interest Expense 

Denominator Interest e, Principal 
Repavment 

Return on Equity Ratio Ratio 
(in percentage) Numerator Net Profit after tax before 

OCI 
Denominator 

Average Total Equity 

Inventory Turnover Ratio • Ratio 
(in times) Numerator Revenue from operations 

Denominator Average Traded Inventories 
excluding stores inventories 

Trade Receivables turnover ratio Ratio 
(in times) Numerator Revenue from operations 

Denominator 
Average Trade receivables 
(including Unbilled revenue) 

Trade payables turnover ratio Ratio 
(in times) Numerator Operating Expenses and 

Other expense 
Denominator Average Trade payables 

Net capital turnover ratio Ratio 
(in times) Numerator Revenue from operations 

Denominator Average Working Capital 

Net profit ratio Ratio 
(in percentage) Numerator Net Profit after Taxes 

before OCI 
Denominator Revenue from operations 

Return on Capital employed Ratio 
(in percentage) Numerator Profit before tax and 

Interest expense 
Denominator Capital Employed 

(Tangible Net Worth+ Total 
Debt+ Deferred Tax 
Liability) 

Return on investment Ratio 
Numerator Income From Investment 
Denominator Cost of Investment 

adani 
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As at As at .,.. change Remark • Any change in 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 in Ratio the ratio by more than 

25¾ as compared to the 
preceding year. 

2.82 3.11 -9,34% 
2,305.06 2,986.51 

817.41 960.09 

1.62 1.82 -11.22% 
14,824.59 14,100.30 

9,171.83 7,744.91 

2.59 2,70 -3,85¾ 

4,836.38 5,110.24 

1,864.33 1,894.01 

26% 35% -27,67% Increase in equity and 
2,170.97 2,328.71 reserves 

8,458.37 6.562.56 

NA NA 0.00% 

3.89 3.25 19.94% 
4,855.45 4,863,06 
1,247.34 1.498.41 

2.48 3.74 -33,65°/o Increase in Trade Payble 
506.74 452.62 

204.11 120,97 

2.19 2.13 2.90% 
4,855.45 4,863 .06 
2,215.09 2,282 .87 

45% 48% -6.63% 
2,170.97 2,328.71 

4,855.45 4,863.06 

18% 20% ·11 .04% 
4,361.35 4,623.59 

24.556.97 23,159.94 

NA NA 0 .00% 

• The Company has been engaged 1n the business of prov1d1ng services. considering the nature of business Inventory turnover ratio 1s not required to disclose. 
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48 Related party disclosures: 

As per Ind AS 24. Disclosure of transaction with related parties are given below: 

> Holding Entity 

> Fellow Subsidiary 

> Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

>Entities under Common Control with whom there are 
transactions during the year 

Note: 

Adani Transmission Limited 

Adani Transmission (Rajasthan) Limited 
Maru Transmission Service Company Limited 
Maharashtra Eastern Grid Power Transmission Company Limited 
Chhattisgarh-WR Transmission Limited 
Raipur-Rajnandgaon-Warora Transmission Limited 
North Karanpura Transco Limited 

Mr. Hiteshkumar Vaghasiya,Director (Resigned on 23.03.2023) 
Mr. Rajeev Kumar Jain, Director 
Mr. Atul Sadaria (Appointed on 16.01.2023) 
Mr, Anupam Sawhney, Director (Resigned on 16.01.2023) 
Mr. Nitin Patel, Director (Appointed on 23.03.2023) 
Mr. Ankit Somani, Chief Financial Officer (Upto 30th November, 2021) 
Mr, Jatin Sharma, Company Secretary (Upto 14th June, 2021) 
Mr. Dhvanit Murthy, Chief Financial Officer (w.e. f 27th January, 2022) 
Mr. Dhwani Solanki, Company Secretary (w.e.f 2nd September, 2021) 

Adani Infrastructure Management Service Limited 
Adani Infra (India) Limited 
Adani Foundation 

The names of the related parties and nature of the relationships where control exists are disclosed For others. the names and the nature of relationships is 
disclosed only when the transactions are entered into by the Company with the related parties during the existence of the related party relationship. 

A) Transaction with related parties 

Nature of Transaction Name of Related Party For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

Investment in nature of equity support Adani Transmission Limited 1,700.00 

Investment in nature of equity converted into loan Adani Transmission Limited 1,700.00 
Loan Given Received back Adani Transmission (Rajasthan) Limited 84.00 
Interest Income Raipur-Rajnandgaon-Warora Transmission Limited 48.97 56.98 

Adani Transmission Limited 147.39 14.11 
Raipur-Rajnandgaon-Warora Transmission Limited 91.46 109.69 
Chhattisgarh-Wr Transmission Limited 97.87 117.38 

CSR Expenses Adani Foundation 57.00 9.30 
Loan given Adani Transmission Limited 2,075.16 300.00 
Purchase of Goods Adani Infra (India) Ltd 60.49 180.95 

Maharashtra Eastern Grid Power Transmission Company 
5.00 

Limited. 
Employee Transfred In/Out Maharashtra Eastern Grid Power Transmission Company 

1.04 0.04 
Limited 
North Karanpura Transco Limited 0.69 

Operating and Maintenance expenses Adani Infrastructure Management Service Limited 292.90 287.16 

B) Balance with related parties 

Closing Balance Name of Related Party As at As at 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

Unsecured Loans (Receivable) Adani Transmission (Rajasthan) Limited 433,97 517.97 
Adani Transmission Limited 4,254.52 346.70 
Raipur-Rajnandgaon-Warora Transmission Limited 1,421.55 1,218.82 
Chhattisgarh-Wr Transmission Limited 1,523.17 1,304.25 

Investment in nature of EQuity Support Adani Transmission Limited 1,700.00 
Interest Unpaid Adani Transmission (Rajasthan) Limited 21.48 1.42 

Chhattisgarh-WR Transmission Limited. 130,83 
Raipur-Rajnandgaon-Warora Transmission Limited. 120.41 

Accounts Payable Adani Infrastructure Management Service Limited 171.26 167.32 
Adani Infra (India) Limited 735,27 135.27 
Adani Transmission Limited 10.11 
Maharashtra Eastern Grid Power Transmission Company 

0.78 5.86 
Limited. 
North Karanpura Transco Ltd. 0.64 0,64 

Note 1: Interest accrued on Inter Corporate Deposit ("ICD") given to related parties amounting to ~ 587.96 Lakhs (Previous year - ~ 46.70 lakhs). have been 
converted to Inter Corporate Deposit as on the reporting date as per the terms of Contract. 
Note 2: Non Current Investment in nature of Equity of~ 1,700.00 Lakhs have been converted into Inter Corporate Deposits during the year. 
Note 3: All above transactions are in the normal course of business and are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail arm's length transactions. 

49 Summary of adjustments/regrouping in previous year figures is as follows: 
Previous year figures have been re-grouped, re-worked and re-classified wherever necessary, to make them comparable with current year figures. 

Particulars Note 
Earlier 

classification 
Reclassification Current Classlficaion Remarks 

Other Non Current Financial Asset 8 0.00 2.45 2.45 
Interest accrue on OSRA FDR classified as 
current financial asset. are classsified as 

Other Current Financial Asset 14 252.26 -2.45 249.81 
non current financial asset. 

Total 252.26 0.00 252.26 
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50 Statutory Information 
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(i) The company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been Initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property, 

(ii) The company does not have any working capital facility availed from bank or financ ial institutions and hence it is not required to file Quarterly returns or 
statement of current assets with bank or financial institutions. 

(iii) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in 
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"). with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries-) or provide any guarantee, security or th·e like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(iv) No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries·) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(v) Based on the information available with the Company there is no transaction with struck off companies. 

51 Approval of Financial Statements 
The Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March. 2023 have been approved by the Board of Directors at their meetings held on 
2nd May, 2023. 

As per our attached report of even date 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors For Dharmesh Parikh & Co, LLP 
Chartered Accountants HADOTI POWER TRANSMISSION SERVICE LIMITED 

Partner 
Membership No. 45501 

Place : Ahmedabad 
Date : 2nd May, 2023 

112054W/W100725 

Nitin Patel 
Director 
DIN:-100458B5 

,~~ -
Chief Financial Officer 

Place : Ahmedabad 

Ai::! 
Director 
DIN:· 09753841 

Dhwanl Solanki 
Company Secretary 
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Annexure C-1 – Managerial Capabilities 

Mr. R K Jain 

Mr R K Jain is a Mechanical Engineer. He has got extensive experience of around 
40 years and expertise in the field of power sector business, Project Execution, 
Management Consultancy, etc. 

Mr. Atul Sadaria 

Mr. Atul Sadaria is an Electrical Engineer and has 20+ years of experience. 
Currently, he is heading Operation & Maintenance activities of the Organization.   

Mr. Nitinkumar Patel 

Mr Nitin Patel is Chartered accountant and M.Com., He has worked with various 
organization, he has 20+ years of experience in F&A, M&A etc. 

Annexure C-1
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SHOP NO Z2 GROUND FLOOR S OPPERS PLAZA ADANI TOWNSHIP AND REAL ESTATE PVT LTD SHANTIGRAM NEAR VAISHNODEVI TEMPLE
GANDHINAGARI
REGISTERED OFFICE : "Trishul" - 3rd Floor Opp. Samartheswar Temple, Near Law Garden. Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad - 380006.

Telephone No. 079-26409322 Fax No. - 079-Z64093Z1 CIN: L65110GJ1993PLC020769 Website - www.axisbank.com

Authorised signatory

This certificate is issued at ^pecific request of the customer and without any risk or responsibility on part of the

bankortheofficial signing hereof.

This to certify that M/s. Ad mi Energy Solutions Limited (formerly known as Adanl Transmission Limited), having
it's address at Adani Housd, Near Mithakhaii Six Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad-380009, is maintaining

account number 921030001S545450 with us since 20.02.21

BANK CERTIFICATE

To,    ^

Rajasthan Electricity Regu atory Commission,
VidyutViniyamarkBhavan;

5ahkar Marg, Near State fTlotor Garge,

Jaipur

AXIS BANK
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Annexure C-3 - Technical Capability 

Adani Energy Solutions Limited (AESL) headquartered at Ahmedabad in Gujarat, is one of 

the largest private sector power transmission companies in India with a presence across 

all the regions of India. AESL owns and operates various High voltage AC transmission lines 

and substations of 132kV, 220kV, 400kV, 765kV voltage level and also High Voltage DC 

transmission lines and substations of +/- 500kV voltage level. Today, AESL has portfolio of 

more than 19,700 ckt km of transmission lines and around 46,000 MVA of power 

transformation capacity. 

AESL primarily aims at addressing the vast potential in India’s transmission sector and has 

set an ambitious target to set up 30,000 circuit km of transmission lines by 2030. AESL 

has invested in the latest technologies resulting in the highest network availability of over 

99.7% in the country, which corresponds to the best global standards. 

Our business: 

AESL is the transmission and distribution arm of the Adani Portfolio, serving as the largest 

private transmission company in India. It operates across 14 states, comprising a 

cumulative transmission network of 19,779 circuit kilometers (ckm) of transmission lines 

and 46,001 MVA of power transformation capacity from 132 to 765 kilovolts of HVAC 

systems and +/- 500 kilovolts of HVDC systems. Currently, 15,371 ckm are operational, while 

4,408 ckm are under construction. AESL also operates power distribution business, 

catering to over 12 Mn consumers in Mumbai and Mundra SEZ. As India’s energy demand 

is expected to quadruple in the future, AESL is dedicated to establishing a robust and 

reliable power transmission network to meet this growing need and strive to serve retail 

customers and service the nation. 

Our presence: 

AESL’s acquired MPSEZ Utilities Limited (MUL), which operates 148 ckm of distribution 

network; and distributed around 389 MUs with a distribution loss of 3.12% as on 31st March 

2023. AESL has approximately 5000 kms of OPGW fiber network, which has the potential 

to be leased to telecom carriers, neutral data providers, content players and multiple 

communication service operators, subject to regulatory compliances. Our 30 substations 

and 10,000+ tower locations can be utilised for telco co-location facilities. Recently our 
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company entered into the smart metering business. The Company won two smart meter 

projects. 

Our Transmission Portfolio: 

Transmission Route 

Length 

(ckm) 

Transformation 

Capacity (MVA) 

No. of 

Substations 

Maharashtra Eastern Grid Power 

Transmission Company Limited 

1217 6000 2 

Adani Transmission (India) Limited 3834 6630 3 

Aravali Transmission Service Company 

Limited 

97 630 1 

Maru Transmission Service Company 

Limited 

300 730 1 

Western Transmission (Gujarat) Limited 974 - - 

Western Transco Power Limited 2089 - - 

Adani Electricity Mumbai Limited 572 3250 8 

MPSEZ Utilities Limited 148 360 5 

Adani Transmission Bikaner Sikar Private 

Limited 

343 - - 

Sipat Transmission Limited 348 - - 

Raipur Rajnandgaon-Warora Transmission 

Limited 

611 - 1 

Chhattisgarh-WR Transmission Limited 434 630 1 

Adani Transmission (Rajasthan) Limited 278 - - 

Hadoti Power Transmission Limited (PPP 8) 116 310 5 

Barmer Power Transmission Limited (PPP 9) 133 150 6 

Thar Power Transmission Limtited (PPP 10) 164 125 5 

Alipurduar Transmission Limited 650 - - 

Fatehgarh Bhadla Transmission Limited 292 - 1 

Bikaner Khetri Transmission Limited 481 - - 

Ghatampur Transmission Limited 897 - - 
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Transmission Route 

Length 

(ckm) 

Transformation 

Capacity (MVA) 

No. of 

Substations 

Obra- C Badaun Transmission Limited 630 950 1 

North Karanpura Transco Limited 304 1000 1 

Lakadia Banaskantha Transco Limited 352 - - 

WRSS XXI(A) Transco Limited 292 3000 1 

Jam Khambaliya Transco Limited 38 2500 1 

Kharghar Vikroli Transmission Limited 74 1500 1 

Warora Kurnool Transmission Limited 1756 3000 1 

MP Power Transmission Package-II Limited 1060 2736 18 

Khavda-Bhuj Transmission Limited 221 4500 1 

Karur Transmission Limited 10 1000 1 

WRSR Transmission Limited 630 6000 1 

Khavda Phase – II, Part-A 354 - - 

Adani Electricity Mumbai Infra Limited 80 1000 2 

Total Asset 19779 46001 68 
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2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28
Actual Estimate Proj Proj Proj Proj

Income
From Sale 48.55        48.60       48.60          34.07 34.07        34.07        
Other Income 5.33          0.46          0.45            0.44               0.43          0.42          
Net Income 53.89        49.06       49.05          34.51            34.50        34.49        
Expenses
Overhead/ Other Expense 3.94          5.13          5.30            5.49               5.68          5.88          
Other Manufacturing Expenses 1.59          -           -              -                 -            -            
Subtotal 5.52          5.13         5.30            5.49               5.68          5.88          
PBDIT 48.36        43.94       43.75          29.02            28.82        28.60        
Depreciation 4.54          4.24          4.24            4.24               4.24          4.24          
Interest on Term Loan 14.48        14.13       13.67          13.20 12.74        12.27        
WC Interest -            -           -              -                 -            -            
PBT 29.35        25.56       25.84          11.57            11.84        12.09        
Current Tax 5.84          4.63          5.13            1.91               2.28          2.61          
Defferred Tax 1.80          -           -              -                 -            -            
PAT 21.71        20.93       20.71          9.67               9.55          9.48          

2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28
Actual Estimate Proj Proj Proj Proj

Source of Fund
Shareholders Fund
Equity 10.00        10.00       10.00          10.00 10.00        10.00        
Reserves & Surplus 81.72        102.65     123.36        133.02          142.57      152.05      
Loan fund
Secured Loan 143.48      143.45     138.65        133.85          129.05      124.26      
Unsecured Loan -            - -              -                 -            -            
Other long term Liabilities 3.24          19.14       19.14          19.14 19.14        19.14        
Deferred Tax Liability 12.50        - -              -                 -            -            
Current Liabilities 8.17          - -              -                 -            -            
Total 259.11      275.24     291.15        296.01          300.77      305.45      
Application of Fund
Fixed Asset
Net Block 128.32      145.24     140.99        136.75          132.51      128.27      
CWIP 8.28          - -              -                 -            -            
Other Non current Assets 99.46        79.25       79.25          79.25 79.25        79.25        
Other Current Assets 20.54        9.02          9.04            6.66               6.68          6.69          
Cash & Bank Balances 2.46          32.50       52.87          64.59 73.80        82.94        
DSRA 0.05          9.23          9.00            8.77               8.54          8.30          
Total 259.11      275.24     291.15        296.02          300.77      305.45      

Profit & Loss Account

Balance Sheet

(Rs. in Crores)

(Rs. in Crores)
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Cash Flow Statement 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28
Actual Estimate Proj Proj Proj Proj

Inflows
PAT+Depreciation+Amortisation+Defferred Tax 48.36        43.94          43.75            29.02              28.82            28.60       
Increase in share Capital -            -              -                - -                -           
Increase in Term Loans 6.87          -              -                - -                -           
Increase in other NCL 0.63          15.90          -                - -                -           
Decrease in CA 6.81          -              -                - -                -           
Decrease in other NCA -            20.21          -                - -                -           
Total 62.67       80.05         43.75           29.02             28.82           28.60      
Outflow
Capex (0.52)        8.64            (4.24)             (4.24)               (4.24)             (4.24)        
Increase in CA -            27.70          20.15            9.11                9.00              8.92         
Increase in other NCA 26.96        -              -                - -                -           
Decrease in CL 1.43          -              -                - -                -           
Repayment of Term Loan -            0.03            4.80              4.80                4.80              4.80         
Total 27.87       36.37         20.71           9.67               9.55             9.48        

Net Cash Flow 34.80       43.68          23.04            19.35              19.26            19.13      
Opening Balance 2.51          2.46            46.14            69.18              88.53            107.80    

Surplus/Deficit 37.31        46.14          69.18             88.53               107.80          126.92     
Closing Balance 2.46          46.14          69.18            88.53              107.80          126.92    

All Figures are in Rs Crore
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